
 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CULTURAL HERITAGE COMMISSION 
 
 

HISTORIC-CULTURAL MONUMENT  
APPLICATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

 
 

 HISTORIC-CULTURAL MONUMENT  
APPLICATION 

 
TYPE OR PRINT IN ALL CAPITAL BLOCK LETTERS 

 
IDENTIFICATION 
 
1. NAME OF PROPOSED MONUMENT:  GRIFFITH PARK 
 
2. STREET ADDRESS:  4730 CRYSTAL SPRINGS DRIVE                  

CITY: LOS ANGELES       ZIP CODE:  90027              COUNCIL DISTRICT: 4                                

3.  ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO: PLEASE SEE ATTACHMENT A 

4.  COMPLETE LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  PLEASE SEE ATTACHMENT B 
 
 
5.   RANGE OF ADDRESSES ON PROPERTY: (SITE ADDRESSES): 4730 CRYSTAL SPRINGS DRIVE; 3210 RIVERSIDE   

      DRIVE; 3201 RIVERSIDE DRIVE; 2715 VERMONT AVE; 3401 RIVERSIDE DRIVE; 5333 ZOO DRIVE 
   

 
6.   PRESENT OWNER: CITY OF LOS ANGELES DEPT OF RECREATION AND PARKS             

 STREET ADDRESS: 1200 WEST 7TH STREET 

 CITY: LOS ANGELES     STATE: CA      ZIP CODE: 90017   PHONE: (213) 928-9033          

 OWNER IS: PUBLIC                                                  

7.   PRESENT USE: PARK , RECREATION, EDUCATION.       ORIGINAL USE: PARK                                    

 
DESCRIPTION 
 
8.   ARCHITECTURAL STYLE:  VARIED INCLUDING SPANISH ECLECTIC, SPANISH REVIVAL, CLASSICAL MODERNE,   

      MODERN, MINIMAL TRADITIONAL, RANCH, VERNACULAR, WITH PARK STYLE OBJECTS, AMONG OTHER  

      STYLES.    

  
 
9.   STATE PRESENT PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE OR STRUCTURE (SEE OPTIONAL DESCRIPTION WORKSHEET) 
      PLEASE SEE ATTACHMENT C  
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HISTORIC-CULTURAL MONUMENT 

APPLICATION 

 
NAME OF PROPOSED MONUMENT:  GRIFFITH PARK 

 
 
 

10. CONSTRUCTION DATE: FACTUAL: 1853- 2007 

             ARCHITECT, DESIGNER, OR ENGINEER:   VARIED  
                                                                                      (CITY OF LOS ANGELES DEPT OF RECREATION AND PARKS) 
 
11. CONTRACTOR OR OTHER BUILDER:  VARIED  
                                                                              (CITY OF LOS ANGELES DEPT OF RECREATION AND PARKS) 
 
12. DATES OF ENCLOSED PHOTOGRAPHS: MARCH, 2008                      

13. CONDITION: VERY GOOD 

             ALTERATIONS: MAJOR ALTERATIONS, WHICH INDICATE THE END OF THE PERIOD OF SIGNIFICANCE           

             (1896-1957) INCLUDE THE ADDITION OF THE 5 AND 134 FREEWAYS THROUGH GRIFFITH   

             PARK AND THE INTRODUCTION OF TOYON LANDFILL. 

               
                                                       
14. THREATS TO SITE:  DEVELOPMENT 

15. THE STRUCTURE IS: ON ITS ORIGINAL SITE  

 
 
SIGNIFICANCE  
 
16. BRIEFLY STATE HISTORICAL AND/OR ARCHITECTURAL IMPORTANCE; INCLUDE DATES, EVENTS, AND 

PERSONS ASSOCIATED WITH SITE.  
 
             PLEASE SEE ATTACHMENT D 
 

SOURCES PLEASE SEE ATTACHMENT E 

  
                                                                                                                                                                
17. DATE FORM PREPARED: APRIL 19, 2008    
             PREPARER’S NAMES:  
             ICF JONES & STOKES: DANIEL PAUL, MEGHAN POTTER, ELIZABETH WEAVER,  
                                                     PROJECT MANAGER: CHRISTOPHER J. HETZEL   
             WITH CONTRIBUTIONS BY DR. MICHAEL EBERTS 
                                                         
 
18. SUBMITTED BY: GRIFFITH VAN GRIFFITH ORGANIZATION   THE GRIFFITH J. GRIFFITH CHARITABLE TRUST    
STREET ADDRESS:  2430 JUNIPER AVENUE  CITY    MORRO BAY    STATE   CA    ZIP CODE 93442     
PHONE (805) 772-0582 
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5581001906 5583025900

Attachment A: GRIFFITH PARK: Assessor's Identification Numbers
Los Angeles County Assessor, Property Data Sales, ITD. DS04-SBF abstract based on given map: Excel Format. 9 Apr 2008.

AIN:
5581001001 5593002908
2443022901 5593002910
5434016901 5593002912
5434039901 5593002913
5581017900 5593002917
5581010900 5593030903
5581010901 5593030904
5581010902 5581001903
5581011900 5593002902
5581012900 5434016900
5581013900 5587027900
5581013901 5434038901
5581008900 5582001900
5581001905 5581026900
5581001906 5583025900
5581005901 5593002905
5581005902 5593002907
5581006900 5593002909
5588036900 5593003908
5588001900 5581016900
5587025901 5581011901
5594016901 5581014900
5594016902 5581001904
5593002904 5587025900
5593002906 5593002911



M R C T 1N R 14W T 6 39 1 FT TH

Attachment B: GRIFFITH PARK: Legal Descriptions  Los Angeles County Assessor, Property Data Sales, ITD. DS04-SBF abstract based on given map: Excel Format. 9 Apr 2008.
AIN Legal Description Line (LDL) #1 LDL #2 LDL #3
5581001001 TRACT # 9766 EX OF FLOOD CONTROL   EASEMENT L A RIVER CHANNEL LOT  
2443022901 *TR=SUBDIVISION OF RANCHO PROVIDENCIA   AND SCOTT TRACT*LOT (EX OF ST) COM N    39›42'58" W 20 FT FROM MOST S COR OF    
5434016901 IVANHOE LOT COM NE ON SE LINE OF LOT 36 150 FT FROM MOST S COR OF SD LOT TH NE  ON SE LINES OF SD LOT AND LOT 37 TO SW  
5434039901 IVANHOE EX OF STS LOTS 1,2,3,4,5,6,7 AND LOT    8 BLK    1                                                               
5581017900 EX OF ST LOT 2 TR NO 10781 AND ALL OF   LOTS 28 AND 29 BLK 4 TR NO 9367                                                 
5581010900 LOT COM AT SW COR OF LOT 2 IN SEC 26 T  1N R 14W TH N ON W LINE OF SD LOT 440 FT TH E 900 FT TH N 92 FT TH E 1200 FT TH  
5581010901 *LOT COM N 89›49' E 2199.99 FT AND N    398.92 FT FROM SW COR OF LOT 2 IN SEC   26 T 1N R 14W TH N 34.68 FT TH W 100    

810109025581010902 *LOT COM AT SE COR OF SEC 26*LOT CO  AT SE CO  OF SE  26 T 1N R 14W TH W 6 9 90 F         H W 79.90 T TH N 39 1 FT TH W 64 FT TH N 92 41 FT TH SEFT TH N 5.5       W 645.75 FT TH N 925.41 FT TH SE        
5581011900 TRACT NO 10781   LOT    6                                                                                               
5581012900 THAT PART DESC IN OR22071-300 S AND E   OF TR NO 10781 E NE 1/4 OF              SEC   35 T   1N R 14W                   
5581013900 TRACT NO 10781   LOT    5                                                                                               
5581013901 TRACT NO 10781   LOT    8                                                                                               
5581008900 LICENSED SURVEYOR'S MAP AS PER BK 22    PG 32 OF L S LOT COM AT MOST N COR OF   LOT 5 TH S 21›24' W 2949.20 FT TH N 13› 
5581001905 LAND DES IN DOC 1990, 74-4-18 TRACT     NO 9766   (EX OF ST) LOTS 181, 182,     183, 184, 185, 186, 187, 188, 189, 190, 
5581001906 M R 43-47-59 FOR DESC SEE ASSESSOR'S    MAPS POR OF SD RO                                                               
5581005901 L S 22-32 FOR DESC SEE ASSESSOR'S MAPS  POR OF LOT 3                                                                    
5581005902 POR OF LOTS 2 AND 3 L S 22-32 AND POR OF PROVIDENCIA PARK TRACT M R 43-47-59                                             
5581006900 M R 43-47-59 FOR DESC SEE ASSESSOR'S    MAPS POR OF SD RO                                                               
5588036900 HILLHURST PARK 2.69 MORE OR LESS ACS    COM AT MOST W COR OF LOT 103 TRACT      NO 27460 TH W ON W PROLONGATION OF N    
5588001900 HILLHURST PARK 4.79 MORE OR LESS ACS    BEING EX OF ST COM AT NE COR OF LOT 114 TH SW ON NW LINE OF SD LOT TO W LINE    
5587025901 GRIFFITH'S SUB OF THE SOUTHERN SLOPE    OF THE RO LOS FELIZ AND OF LOTS 15 AND  17 LICK TRACT LOT BD E AND NW BY FERN   
5594016901 LOT COM AT INTERSECTION OF NW LINE OF   RANCHO SAN RAFAEL PER FM12325 WITH W    PROLONGATION OF N LINE OF LOT 2 WATTS   
5594016902 LOT COM S 89›52'15" W 284 FT AND N 0›   08' W 150 FT FROM SW COR OF LOT 11 TR   # 11437 TH N 0›08' W 460 FT TH S 89›52' 
5593002904 RANCHO LOS FELIS COM AT SW COR OF SEC 29 T 1N R 13W TH E TO NE LINE OF RO LOS    FELIS PER F M 12325 TH NW THEREON TO W  
5593002906 RANCHO LOS FELIS EX OF ST AND EX LAND   DESC IN DDS 1900-274 TO L A CITY        SEC   31 T   1N R 13W                   
5593002908 RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT COM AT NW COR OF   SEC 5 T 1S R 13W TH S TO A PT S 81›54' W FROM MOST N COR OF TR # 9050 TH N 81›   
5593002910 RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT EX OF STS COM AT SE COR OF SEC 24 T 1N R 14W TH N TO SW LINE OF SUBDIVISION OF RANCHO PROVIDENCIA AND
5593002912 RANCHO LOS FELIS SEC   36 T   1N R 14W                                                                                  
5593002913 RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT COM AT NW COR OF   SEC 1 T 1S R 14W TH S ON W LINE OF SD   SEC TO NW COR OF HILLHURST PARK PER     
5593002917 RO LOS FELIS FOR DESC SEE ASSESSOR'S    MAPS POR OF SEC 19 T 1N R 13W                                                   
5593030903 LOT COM AT NW COR OF LOT 14 TR # 5673 TH N ON W LINE OF SD TR 369.96 FT TH S 89› 52' W TO SW LINE OF RANCHO SAN RAFAEL   
5593030904 LOT COM AT NW COR OF LOT 14 TR # 5673   TH S 610.09 FT TH N 89›52' E 100 FT TH S 190.04 FT TH N 89›52' E 100 FT TH S 0›  
5581001903 SUBDIVISION OF RANCHO PROVIDENCIA       AND SCOTT TRACT   THAT PART DESC IN     DOC NO 2801, 6-24-71 OF PROVIDENCIA     
5593002902 RANCHO LOS FELIS THAT PART DESC IN      DDS1900-274 IN GRIFFITH PARK                                                    
5434016900 IVANHOE LOT COM AT NW COR OF LOT 30     BLK 3 TH N 86›30' E TO SW LINE OF       RIVERSIDE DR TH SE THEREON 28.06 FT TH  
5587027900 HILLHURST PARK LOT COM AT NE COR OF     LOT 25 TR # 4040 TH S ON E LINE OF SD   TR TO NE LINE OF BLACK OAK DR TH SE     
5434038901 RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT COM AT INTERSECTION OF N LINE OF IVANHOE WITH NE LINE OF    RIVERSIDE DR TH N 86›09' E TO SW LINE OF
5582001900 TRACT NO 10781 EX OF ST                 LOT    1                                                                        
5581026900 TRACT NO 10781 LOT COM AT NE COR OF     LOT 2 BLK 19 TR NO 6450 TH S 78›49'19" E 56.43 FT TH NE ON A CURVE CONCAVE TO SE 
5583025900 LOT COM AT E 1/4 COR OF SEC 35 T 1N R   14W TH S 0›02'30" E TO S LINE OF SD SEC TH W ON SD S LINE TO A PT E THEREON 60  
5593002905 LOT EX OF ST COM AT NW COR OF SEC 30 T  1N R 13W TH S TO SW COR OF SD SEC TH E  TO SE COR OF SD SEC TH N TO NE LINE OF  
5593002907 RANCHO LOS FELIS 72.39 MORE OR LESS ACS BEING EX OF STS LOT COM AT SW COR OF    SEC 32 T 1N R 13W TH N TO NW COR OF SD  
5593002909 RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT COM AT NW COR OF   SEC 6 T 1S R 13W TH E TO NE COR OF SD   SEC TH S TO A PT S 81›54' W FROM MOST N 
5593003908 THAT PART IN GLENDALE CITY OF LOT COM SE ON SW LINE OF S P R R  R/W 924.56 FT    FROM MOST N COR OF LOT 6 TR NO 646 TH S 
5581016900 LOT 3 TRACT NO 10781 AND LOT 26 BLK 6   TRACT NO 9367                                                                   
5581011901 TRACT NO 10781   LOT    7                                                                                               
5581014900 TRACT NO 10781   LOT    4                                                                                               
5581001904 LAND DES IN DOC 1990, 74-4-18 SUBDIVI-  SION OF RANCHO PROVIDENCIA AND SCOTT    TR AS PER BK 43 PGS 47 TO 59 OF M R     
5587025900 LOT COM AT MOST E COR OF LOT 8 TR # 4040 TH SW AND FOLLOWING BDRY LINE OF SD TR  TO W LINE OF LOT 1 SD TR TH S 89›55'30" 
5593002911 RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT COM AT STA 23 TH N 21›42'55" E TO N LINE OF SEC 25 T 1N R  14W TH E AND FOLLOWING BDRY LINE OF SD  



S 4 FT TO G R 4 4

GRIFFITH PARK: Legal Descriptions  (CTD: LDL #4, #5, LAST).  Los Angeles County Assessor, Property Data Sales, ITD. DS04-SBF abstract based on given map: Excel Format. 9 Apr 2008.
AIN LDL #4 LDL #5 LDL Last Line
5581001001
2443022901 LOT 6 TR NO 9213 TH N 39›42'58" W TO    SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION PARK TRACT                              
5434016901 LINE OF RIVERSIDE DR TH NW THEREON TO NW SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT   37                                
5434039901                                                                                                                         
5581017900                                                                                                                         
5581010900 S 92 FT TH E 100 FT TH S TO S LINE OF   SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION PART OF N 1/2 OF SEC   35 T   1N R 14W  
5581010901 FT TH N 92 FT TH W TO W LINE OF LOT 3   SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION SEC   26 T   1N R 14W                   

810109025581010902 1330 90 FT TH S 1230 4 FT TO BEG POR1330.90 FT TH  1230. 7   BE   PO OF SE 1/4 OF SE 1/4 OF  OF SE 1/  OF SE 1/  OF              SEC 26 T 1N R 14W    SEC   26 T   1N R 14W                   
5581011900                                                                                                                         
5581012900                                                                                                                         
5581013900                                                                                                                         
5581013901                                                                                                                         
5581008900 12'27" W TO NW LINE OF SD LOT TH N 57›  SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT    5                                
5581001905 AND              LOT  191                                                                                               
5581001906                                                                                                                         
5581005901                                                                                                                         
5581005902                                                                                                                         
5581006900                                                                                                                         
5588036900 LINE OF SD LOT TO E LINE OF FERN DELL   SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT  115                                
5588001900 OF SD LOT TH S THEREON TO N LINE OF RED SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT  114                                
5587025901 DELL DR AND SE BY LOS FELIZ BLVD PART   OF LOTS 2 AND    LOT    3 BLK   82                                              
5594016901 SUB OF A PART OF THE RANCHO SAN RAFAEL  SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION THE RANCHO SAN RAFAEL                   
5594016902 15" W TO NW LINE OF RANCHO SAN RAFAEL   SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION T 1N R 13W RANCHO LOS FELIS             
5593002904 LINE OF SD SEC TH S TO BEG PART OF      SEC   29 T   1N R 13W                                                           
5593002906                                                                                                                         
5593002908 54' E TO SD MOST N COR TH S 22›20'55" E SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION SEC    5 T   1S R 13W                   
5593002910 SCOTT TR TH NW AND FOLLOWING BDRY LINE  SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION TO BEG PART OF   LOT      BLK   24      
5593002912                                                                                                                         
5593002913 MB22-190-191 TH N 72›25'40" E TO E LINE OF SD SEC TH N TO NE COR OF SD SEC TH W TO BEG PART OF   SEC    1 T   1S R 14W  
5593002917                                                                                                                         
5593030903 PER F M 12325 TH S 51›30' E TO STA 12   SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION 13W RANCHO LOS FELIS                    
5593030904 08' E 150 FT TH S 89›52' W 373.99 FT TH SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOS FELIS                               
5581001903 PARK TRACT                                                                                                              
5593002902                                                                                                                         
5434016900 SW ON SE LINE OF LOT 33 SD BLK 415.58 FT SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT   33 BLK    3                       
5587027900 THEREON AND N ON W LINE OF FERN DELL DR AND SW ON SE LINE OF RED OAK DR TO BEG  PART OF          LOT  114               
5434038901 GOLDEN STATE FRWY TH NW AND FOLLOWING SD FRWY TO E LINE OF LOS FELIZ BLVD TH S   THEREON AND SE ON SD NE LINE TO BEG     
5582001900                                                                                                                         
5581026900 RADIUS EQUALS 65 FT 43.51 FT TH N 53›   SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT    9                                
5583025900 FT FROM NW COR OF LOT 1 BLK 15 TR       SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION SEC   35 T   1N R 14W                   
5593002905 RO LOS FELIS PER F M 12325 TH NW THEREON SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION RANCHO SAN RAFAEL                       
5593002907 SEC TH E TO NE LINE OF RO LOS FELIS PER SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION PART OF          SEC   32 T   1N R 13W  
5593002909 COR OF TR # 9050 TH S 81›54' W TO A PT S SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION TO BEG PART OF   SEC    6 T   1S R 13W  
5593003908 71›46'06" W 169.34 FT TH S 73›26' W     SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION TRACT NO 646                            
5581016900                                                                                                                         
5581011901                                                                                                                         
5581014900                                                                                                                         
5581001904 LOT COM AT MOST S COR OF TR NO 9766 TH  SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION THEREON TO BEG                          
5587025900 49.94 FT TH S 0›04'30" E 244.37 FT TH   SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION FELIZ AND OF LOTS 15 AND 17 LICK TRACT  
5593002911 SEC TO BEG PART OF                      SEC   25 T   1N R 14W                                                           
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ATTACHMENT C:  Griffith Park Description  

Summary 
The largest interurban wilderness park in the United States, Griffith Park is a 
4,218-acre City of Los Angeles public park located within the eastern edge of the 
Santa Monica Mountains, due northwest of downtown Los Angeles and adjacent 
to a 4.9 mile stretch of the Los Angeles River.  Most of Griffith Park is a 
chaparral wilderness of rocky hills, canyons, and gullies with large portions of 
open, rugged natural landscape. Plant species within the Park include an 
abundance of coastal native trees, shrubs, vines, and herbs, and riparian 
vegetation, including small quantities of threatened Manzanita and Berberis 
species.  Non-native specimens are also well-represented, including numerous 
eucalyptus and redwood specimens.  Griffith Park features seven peaks that 
exceed 1,000 feet.  These upper elevations provide panoramic viewsheds of the 
greater Los Angeles metropolis and the Pacific Ocean under certain 
circumstances.  Likewise, Griffith Park’s hilly, natural terrain is visible for miles, 
and this upper viewshed is accentuated by two of the City’s most iconic 
treasures: City Historic Cultural Monument (HCM) No. 111: the Hollywood Sign 
and HCM No 168: the Griffith Observatory. 
 
Throughout Griffith Park are lower lying areas that feature lawns, picnic areas, 
infrastructure buildings, various recreational and educational amenities, and 
previously declared City of Los Angeles HCMs. Some of these resources 
represent the City’s early cultural history, including City HCM No.112: the 
Gabrielino Indian Site, which is the only archeological landmark in Los Angeles 
and City HCM No. 401: the 1853 Feliz Adobe, which is the oldest building 
within Griffith Park.  Many of the buildings in Griffith Park are excellent 
examples of a number of architectural styles, including the Classical Moderne 
Griffith Observatory of 1935; the 1927 Spanish Colonial Revival Municipal 
Plunge; the Wilson & Harding Golf Club House of 1937; the 1930 Second Greek 
Revival Greek Theatre, and the Mid-Century Modern Girls’ Camp by Jones, 
Emmons & Contini completed in 1952.  City HCM No. 474: the “Little Nugget” 
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is a custom 1941 Union Pacific Club Car.  Railroading as an educational, 
hobbying, and recreational activity is well represented in Griffith Park.  Griffith 
Park also contains important objects and landscapes such as the Griffith Park 
Merry-Go-Round, Fern Dell, and abundant other examples within the terrain of 
rusticated Park Style infrastructure built by federal assistance programs in the 
1930s.  
 
Circulation through Griffith Park is achieved through 53 miles of hiking and 
bridle trails, in addition to various automobile roads which integrate and 
correspond to the natural terrain of the Park.  The majority of the built amenities 
in the Park are located off of the auto roads, which themselves are primarily 
located at the lower lying perimeter areas of the Park.  The primary entrance into 
Griffith Park is on Crystal Springs Drive, which enters the Park at its southeast 
portion near the Griffith Park & Southern Miniature Railroad (1947,1961), and 
the Pony Rides (1946).    

 
Crystal Springs Drive is the primary auto route running parallel to the Park 
through its northeast, flatlands portion, changing its name briefly to Western 
Heritage Way as it passes the Autry National Center, and again changing its 
name to become Zoo Drive as it runs north of the Los Angeles Zoo.  Both the 
later-era Autry National Center (1988) and Los Angeles Zoo (1966)   are located 
within Griffith Park at its northeast portion, and are important cultural 
destinations for Los Angeles residents.  The Los Angeles Live Steamers Museum 
and Travel Town Transportation Museum are present along Zoo Drive in the 
northwest portion of the Park.  Griffith Park Drive runs through the hilly portion 
of the Park in a manner loosely parallel to Crystal Springs Drive, and located 
along  it are the Wilson and Harding Golf Courses with a 1938 Clubhouse built 
by the Public Works Administration (PWA), the Boys’ Camp, the Old Zoo, and 
Park Center with its various amenities.  The Wilson and Harding Golf Courses 
are two of five municipal golf courses throughout the Park.  Major automobile 
roads into the park accessed at the Park’s southern portion include Vermont 
Canyon Road, which passes the Greek Theatre, the Bird Sanctuary, and leads to 
the Observatory, Fern Dell Drive, and Canyon Drive, which leads to the 
Hollywoodland Girls’ Camp.  Commonwealth Drive ends at a gateway into the 
park, yet this road is not open to the public.    
     
The Los Angeles River serves as a historic boundary for the north and east sides   
of Griffith Park.  Portions of Griffith Park are located north of the Los Angeles 
River, and these include amenities such as the Los Feliz Golf Course, North 
Atwater Park, the Griffith Park Equestrian Center, the Central Service Yard, the 
Bette Davis Picnic Area, and an open, undeveloped flatlands riparian area called 
the Pollywog.  Additionally, a portion of Griffith Park is located east of the 
Crystal Springs Drive entrance, and includes amenities such as Friendship Hall, a   
former clubhouse for the Los Angeles Breakfast Club called the “Ranger House,” 
the Municipal Plunge and the rest of the multi-resource Griffith Park Recreation 
Center.  The following page is a GIS map highlighting areas and resources of 
particular historic sensitivity in addition to areas that have been altered.  
Appendix 4 is a spreadsheet with GPS points for the vast majority of the 
resources discussed in the description essay, including all of the features 
highlighted upon the attached map.    
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SECTION 1: Built Recreation and Amenities  
Introduction: How the Description is organized 

The vast majority of the built recreational and educational amenities, along with 
most infrastructure related buildings and structures, are primarily located off of 
various named roads.  Because of the scale of Griffith Park as a whole, these 
roads are used as the organizing device through which the description of built 
amenities proceeds.  This description begins at the southeastern corner of Griffith 
Park along Riverside Drive, in front of what is considered the primary entrance 
into the Park itself: the Crystal Springs Drive entrance.  The various resources as 
seen entering in and driving through the Park upon Crystal Springs Drive are 
then described.  The road that is Crystal Springs Drive briefly changes names to 
Western Heritage Drive, before becoming Zoo Drive—all as one travels 
northwest upon this alignment, which is the primary road through the north 
portion of Griffith Park.  The resources along Zoo Drive are described and where 
Zoo Drive crosses Griffith Park Drive just beyond the Travel Town 
Transportation Museum (Travel Town), at that point the resources associated to 
Griffith Park Drive are then described.  This includes resources located just off of 
Griffith Park Drive that may have spur roads with different names, in which case 
the name of the spur road will be indicated along with the name of the primary 
access road that feeds it.  The Griffith Park Drive resources are described in a 
manner moving northwest to southeast, completing a loop that ends near the 
Crystal Springs Drive entrance.  After the Griffith Park Drive resources are 
described, those resources located in the small sections of the park due east and 
north of the Los Angeles River are described, in a manner moving from southeast 
to northwest parallel along the River.  

Finally, the built resources along the southern portion of Griffith Park are 
described, and are done so in a manner moving generally east to west: Vermont 
Canyon Road (which feeds Commonwealth Canyon Drive), followed by Fern 
Dell Drive, itself followed by Canyon Drive.  Unlike Crystal Springs and Griffith 
Park Drives that loosely parallel the northeastern curve of Griffith Park, the 
southern portion streets all enter Griffith Park in a manner perpendicular to the 
Park’s southern boundary line.  An arrow symbol (→) is used to describe the 
instances when one road either spurs off of another or changes name.  Mt. 
Hollywood Drive and Vista Del Valle Drive will be described in the second 
section of the description, which will be primarily devoted to Griffith Park’s 
trails, landscape, and various plant types, both indigenous and introduced.  The 
last portion of this description discusses the various barriers, culverts, drainage 
channels, and other infrastructure components that are park-wide and are 
consistently integrated into the natural landscape.   

Riverside Drive 
The far eastern edge of Griffith Park is located upon either side of Riverside 
Drive due east of the Crystal Springs Drive entrance.  Beginning east and moving 
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west, the portion of the Park off the north side of Riverside Drive features a 
mowed grass park area with mature jacaranda, pine, sweet gum, cypress and fir 
trees (Figure 1). 

 
Figure 1:  Landscaped area due south of the Shrine of  
Friendship Building.  View E.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008 
 
Just above this area is “The Shrine of Friendship,” (Figure 2) a two-story, 
rectangular-plan, low-pitch side-gabled meeting hall done in a Modern Mission 
Revival design system. Friendship Hall has an arcaded front elevation topped by 
an arcaded clerestory.  This building is the former headquarters for the Los 
Angeles Breakfast Club.  Horseshoe embellished wrought iron, decorative light 
fixtures which date from c.1927 are located within the lower level arcade.  The 
cladding of the structure is white stucco.  This structure dates from 1965.   

 
Figure 2:  Griffith Park Shrine of Friendship Lodge, 1965.  
View N, Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008 
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West of the Shrine of Friendship Lodge is a semi-circular landscaped area with 
mowed lawn and Ponderosa pine trees. Due northwest of this is a large parking 
area which itself contains mature pacfic bayberry, sycamore, and pine trees.  
Other mature tree specimens border this parking area in the area where it nears 
and parallels Riverside Drive (Figure 3).  Many of these trees appear to be over 
50 years old and are likely part of the original, pre-existing terrain.  In the rear 
portion of the parking area is a grouping of portable trailers that is presently 
called the Griffith Park Adult Community Center.  

 

Figure 3:  Griffith Park Recreation Center:  
Landscaped Area paralleling Riverside Drive. 
 View W.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008 
 

 

Within the northwest corner of this parking area just south adjacent the sound 
wall for the Interstate 5 freeway is an early, rectangular plan, one-story residence 
called the “Ranger House” (Figure 4) with wood shiplap siding, cornerboards, 
and low-pitch side gabling. The front entrance, which faces southeast, is elevated 
off the ground and is accessed by a concrete stairwell.  Above the entrance is a 
small front facing pop-up gable.  Four windows, including a grouping of three 
identical windows, are present at the front elevation.  The rear elevation of the 
Ranger House features a centered, shed roofed pop-up with woodframe sixteen-
unit glazing in a large, 8x8 squares.  This building was a clubhouse for the 
“Breakfast Rangers,” a group of avid horsemen within the Los Angeles Breakfast 
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Club.  The Ranger House was constructed in the 1930s during a three-year period 
when the Breakfast Club was meeting at the Ambassador Hotel.  

 
Figure 4:  Ranger House, c. 1938.  View N.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008 
 

Griffith Recreation Center  

West of the parking area in which the Ranger’s House resides are two recent 
soccer fields (Figure 5), which run roughly parallel to the nearby U.S. Interstate 5 
freeway.  This was formerly an archery range.  

 
Figure 5:  Griffith Park Recreation Center: Soccer Fields, c.1990.  
View N.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008 
 

Due southwest of the soccer fields, between them and Riverside Drive, is a 
landscaped front parking area, itself fronted by a strip of lawn with eucalyptus 
and other tree specimens adjacent to Riverside Drive.  Adjacent directly above 
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these soccer fields is a set of three tennis courts, each with a green face and terra 
cotta trim (Figure 6).  Each tennis court is surrounded by a chain link fence.   

 
Figure 6:  Griffith Park Recreation Center: Tennis Courts. 
View E.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008 
 
Due south of these three affixed tennis courts is a Spanish Revival rectangular-
plan, single-story, side-gabled tennis clubhouse completed c. 1927 (Figure 7).  
The roof of the structure is of red Spanish tile, and is underscored by wide, 
shaped rafter tails of wood.  The front elevation of this building features an 
aluminum storefront entry door, a large picture window, and a roll-up metal door.  
The cladding of the resource is of thick, rough, hand troweled stucco.  Wood 
lintel beams, currently painted over, are inset above the pedestrian entries within 
this resource.  Inset within the side gabling at the west side-end of the building 
are two circular openings, one placed atop the other.  Across this side elevation is 
also a flat roofed overhang that wraps around the southwest corner to the front 
elevation.  The east side of this building features a later, circa 1946 Ranch style 
addition that is itself side gabled.   

 
Figure 7:  Griffith Park Recreation Center: Tennis Pro Shop.  
View N.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008. 
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Due northwest directly above the engaged set of three tennis courts and the tennis 
club facility are an additional eight tennis courts in two parallel rows of four.  A 
separate tennis court, which appears to be the main court (Figure 8), is located 
just south, southwest of the group of eight tennis courts.   

 
Figure 8:  Griffith Park Recreation Center: Main Tennis Court. 
View N. Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008. 
 
This tennis court is acclimated in the same direction as the others, and features 
wood bleachers on either lengthwise side of it.  The court itself is enclosed by a 
wood, shiplap sided fence roughly 4 feet high.  Both this fence and the bleachers 
are painted a dark evergreen.  This tennis court is inset below a landscaped berm 
between it and Riverside Drive.  This lawn covered berm has mature tree 
specimens, including canary pine. 

 
Due immediately northwest of this court is a single-story square-plan tennis 
reservations kiosk (Figure 9), circa 1959.  This small kiosk has a low-pitched 
pyramidal shaped, asphalt shingle roof with a cupola style, flat-sided vent atop its 
apex.  The roof has wide eaves on all four sides that extend well past the front 
service counter, which runs full length and is presently enclosed by a metal 
security mesh.  Horizontally acclimated, full-length louvered vents traverse the 
length of all four sides of this building in the area just below the roof and directly 
above the service counter.  The building is clad in smooth stucco, and is beveled 
inward at all four sides.   
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Figure 9:  Griffith Park Recreation Center: Tennis Reservations  
Kiosk.  View E.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes. March 2008 
 

 
Figure 10.  Griffith Park Recreation Center: Park activity area  
due N of Tennis Courts.  View SW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008 
 
Above the tennis courts area is a section of rolling park space consisting of 
mowed lawn and mature tree specimens (Figure 10).  Above these sections of 
green space are the “Plunge” Swimming Pool and its associated buildings (Figure 
11).  This complex is acclimated north-south, and is fronted by elm, bottle brush 
trees in addition to a large rubber tree.  The pool house itself is a two-story 
rectangular-plan, side-gabled Spanish-style building with thick, troweled stucco 
exterior walls, and Spanish tile roofing.  Decorative Spanish tile and decorative 
masonry pattern window baffles are part of the design.  The front, south facing 
elevation of the pool house features a large, centered, two-story arch with two 
window bays on either side.  At either side of the front elevation is a tall stucco 
wall with periodic piers each with a decorative cap.  The front and rear elevations 
of this building consist of five bays—at the rear elevation the building features 
three arches at the lower level with a window bay at each outer level.   
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Figure 11: Griffith Park Recreation Center: Poolhouse,1927. 
View N.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008 
 
The two symmetrical corredors protruding from either side of the pool house 
each consist of a row of freestanding arches covered with a wood trellis.  The 
rear of the pool house opens up onto the pool itself: a large-scale rectangular plan 
pool.  This pool is the largest public pool in the City of Los Angeles (Figure 12). 

 
Figure 12:  Griffith Park Recreation Center: Plunge and Poolhouse, 1927. 
View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007 
 
Due south of the pool and perpendicular to the pool house is a rectangular plan 4 
x 1 bay, single-story Spanish-style building that presently serves as a day care 
center (Figure 13).  This building has Front gabling, Spanish tile, and stucco 
walls.  The entry is topped by a transom window, and is located at the south 
elevation of the building.  Exposed rafter tails, a stucco chimney with a masonry 
apex cap, an arch window at the side elevation, and inset peep-hole attic vents are 
part of the design.   
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Figure 13:  Griffith Park Recreation Center: Day Care Center, c.1927.   
View SE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008 
 
The immediate setting surrounding the pool house complex is a low, rolling 
landscape of mowed lawn and mature Chinese elm and sycamore trees (Figure 
14).  The pool house complex as a whole is slightly lowered into the landscape 
from the surrounding streets, including Riverside Drive.  Low hills and berms 
buffer the complex at the edges where it meets the street.  

 
Figure 14:  Griffith Park Recreation Center:  
Landscaped Park Area Due N of Municipal Pool.   
View E.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008 
 
Across Riverside Drive due southwest of the pool complex is the 1940 William 
Mulholland Memorial Fountain, which is City of Los Angeles Historic Cultural 
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Monument #162. The fountain is technically not in Griffith Park, but is upon 
DWP owned property.  

Within the Griffith Park Boundary, due south of the Mulholland Fountain along 
the west side of Riverside Drive is the “LA Shares” charitable facility warehouse 
(Figure 15).  

 
Figure 15:  Former Costume Workshop (LA Shares), 1961   View S.  Photo: ICF Jones &   
Stokes, March 2008 
 
The primary building of LA Shares is an expressionist Modern design. The 
floorplan is hexagonal.  Two wrap-around extensions are affixed to the 
hexagonal shaped building in a helical pattern, and a hexagonal-shaped concrete 
patio and flagpole program is present immediately off of Riverside Drive.  
Exposed wood beams protrude out around the base of the building. This facility 
is located in a flat area nestled into a hill just south of it.  The LA Shares facility 
is surrounded by mature elm, cypress, sugar pine and eucalyptus trees. The 
parking lot for the facility is itself six sided; an extruded hexagon. The hexagon 
motif is a character defining feature of this resource and the surrounding 
landscape program.  A sidewalk with crooks identical in angle to the building 
itself connects the parking lot to the building. This building was the former 
Costume Workshop for the Griffith Park Children’s Theater, which was located 
immediately north of the Workshop and burned in the late 1980s. This resource 
and the Children’s Theater were designed by the noted Modernist firm of 
William L. Pereira and Associates.  

Crystal Springs Drive 

The Pony Rides, The Miniature Train, and the DWP 
Structure 

As Riverside Drive crosses Los Feliz Boulevard due west, it becomes Crystal 
Springs Drive: the primary entrance into Griffith Park proper.  Driving northwest 
on Crystal Springs Drive, the southern portion of this entrance features a large 
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corner area of mowed lawn canopied with cedar and willow trees.  At the 
northern portion of this primary entrance, within a landscaping that appears 
relatively recent, is a bronze statue upon a square base of Colonel Griffith 
Jenkins Griffith that was finished in 1996 by the sculptor John Bickart and was a 
gift of the Griffith J. Griffith Charitable Trust (Figure 16).  Behind this statue is a 
biomorphic-shaped planter of single course irregular boulders of various colors 
set in concrete.  Within it are specimens of miniature palm, ferns, and flowers.   

 
Figure 16:  Griffith J. Griffith Statue, Artist:  
John Bickart, 1996.  View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007 
 
Continuing northwest upon the Crystal Springs alignment into Griffith Park, 
most of the built recreational amenities are located along the northern shoulder of 
the road.  The sidewalk along Crystal Springs Drive adjacent to this grassy area 
features irregular course boulders laid flat into concrete in the Park style.  
Driving westward, a grouping of rectangular plan, one- and two-story metal-clad, 
auxiliary sheds buildings is present behind mature tree specimens.  Adjacent to 
these buildings are fenced holding facilities for horses and the ponies that are 
presumably used as part of the nearby pony ride.  Further westward upon Crystal 
Springs Drive are concessions and other buildings related to a miniature train ride 
and a pony ride.  The pony ride features a square plan, hipped roof waiting 
canopy (Figure 17), acclimated north-south, supported by 4x4 painted wood 
columns.  The roof of this canopy is clad in asphalt shingle, and is underscored 
with painted wood fascia.  The wood plank rafters within the canopy are 
exposed.  Fixed, pipe metal stanchions are present beneath this waiting canopy.   
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Figure 17:  Pony Rides, 1946.  View N. Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007 
 
Due immediately east of this canopy is an oval-shaped pony track with wood 
plank fences.  Due immediately west of the waiting canopy is a small, square-
plan, single-story ticket kiosk with an asymmetrical, side-gabled roof (Figure 
18).   

 
Figure 18:  Pony Rides Ticket Kiosk, c.1946.  View NW. Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes.  
March 2008. 

This kiosk features an open full-length ticket counter at its east elevation that is 
inset into a small porch supported by wood columns at its outer corners.  The 
kiosk has a painted wood wainscot across the side and rear elevations, a door at 
its rear elevation, and a covered window at its south-side elevation.  The gable 
ends are clad in scalloped vertical boards spaced slightly apart from one another.  
The service counter within this kiosk is covered by a pair of barn style board and 
batten shutters.  The rear, west facing door of this kiosk also features this pattern 
upon its door.  Immediately north of the waiting canopy and the pony track is a 
small, circular “pony-go-round” covered with a circular canvas canopy 
supporting a metal pipe framework.  Just south of the waiting canopy and pony 
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oval track are a row of three single slab, unpainted concrete benches with 
rounded sides.  A star pattern that was the insignia of the 1984 Los Angeles 
Olympics, underscored by the five Olympic Rings, is embedded into the sides of 
these benches (Figure 19).  

 
Figure 19:  1984 Olympics Sitting Benches.   
View N.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007 
 
Due immediately north of the Pony Rides complex is a single-story, rectangular-
plan refreshment stand and bathroom structure constructed of running course 
cinder brick (Figure 20).  The walk-up service area is three bays wide set back 
into the building.  Each bay features a small service window, and is glass infilled, 
underscored by a scalloped, vertical board wainscot.  The restroom facilities are 
located at either side of the building.  The rear portion of the building is covered 
with a shed roof, and the frontal portion is flat roofed.  All the roofing is 
underscored with fascia boards.  Upon the roof of the building are a backlit sign 
and row metal panels with an embossed diamond design running lengthwise 
behind the sign.  

 
Figure 20: Concessions Building near Pony Rides. 
View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007 
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Griffith Park & Southern Railroad Train Complex 

Located off of Crystal Springs Drive, just northwest of the pony rides complex is 
a grouping of buildings and structures dedicated to the Griffith Park & Southern 
Railroad miniature train ride.  The primary building among these is a 1.5-story 
square-plan ticket kiosk with false bevel wood siding and a cross-gable roof clad 
in staggered course asphalt shingle (Figure 21).  The front entry faces south, and 
is located off-center its elevation adjacent a bay window consisting of four 
window bays each with 4/4 woodframe double hung sash.  A similar sash is 
present upon the side elevations of this building.  The building features a variety 
of eclectic revival elements including half-timbering, in the gables, elongated 
decorative roof brackets, and beadboard wainscots.  An extended full-length 
wraparound eave with visor roof and exposed rafter tails is present across all four 
elevations.  Directly behind the themed ticket kiosk is a side gabled loading 
canopy of rectangular plan supported by wood, T-post and beam columns affixed 
directly to the canopy itself.  A metal bell is affixed to the east-side elevation 
beam.  Customers riding the train enter onto the train below this canopy.   

 
Figure 21:  Griffith Park & Southern Railroad and  
Associated Buildings.  View NW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007 
 
A small scale rectangular plan pitched roof concession stand is immediately east 
of the entrance canopy.  This concessions stand has a single panel door at its 
side-elevation and a full-length service window at its front elevation.  The roof is 
underscored with wood rafter tails.   

Due northeast of the canopy in the middle area of the train track right of way is a 
¾ scale water tower supported by cross-braced wood columns and two lintels.  
The water tower tank is circular and is clad in four wide bands of standing seam 
metal.  The roof upon it is a circular, low-pitched roof with a centered peak.  A 
measuring gauge numbered one to 10 is affixed to the side of the tank.  A long 
metal pour spout of the type seen on watering cans is affixed to the side of the 
tank, presumably for its novelty value.  Directly behind this building is the train 
ride itself, set within a landscape dotted with various ¾ scale buildings and 
structures.  These themed structures include: a rectangular plan clapboard train 
storage shed, three bays long and one bay wide, with 4/4 woodframe double hung 
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windows with a pair of arched doors of painted wood board.  A full length lean-
to is affixed to the side of this structure.  One track spur runs inward through 
each of the doorways.  Just northeast of the train storage structure is a small, 
rectangular plan hut with false bevel cladding, cornerboards, and a tall, steep 
pitched front gable with fascia boards and asphalt shingles.  Two doors are 
present at the east-side elevation.  The front and east-side elevations each feature 
off-center 8-unit glazing windows that meet near the southeast corner of the 
structure.    

The train tracks themselves are narrow gauge, with wood ties underscoring the 
tracks themselves.  The path of the miniature train is a roughly 600’ long narrow 
oval  The alignment moves southbound behind the pony rides to a point just 
north of the landscaped area at the front entrance to Griffith Park at the northern 
shoulder of Crystal Springs drive.  At this section, the train route turns eastbound 
and then winds back up in a northwestern-western direction parallel to Los Feliz 
Boulevard and then against the southbound Interstate 5 off ramp from Griffith 
Park.  Where the right of way crosses behind the pony rides, there is a miniature 
train signal of the type commonly seen on typical roads.  This signal features a 
vertical metal pole on which are two symmetrical red lights, a white “X” sign 
that says “railroad crossing,” and a red- and white-striped arm that lowers when 
triggered.  Where the train runs against Los Feliz Boulevard, it crosses over a 
miniature Pratt truss bridge (Figure 22) with diagonal members of cable and 
vertical members of metal column.  This bridge, which is four full bays wide 
with an additional half bay at either end, is only slightly elevated off the ground, 
and is constructed entirely of metal.  Within the inner circle of the train’s oval 
path are numerous mature tree specimens, mowed lawn, and various mature 
cactus and succulent specimens.    

 
Figure 22:  Pratt Truss Bridge in the Griffith Park and  
Southern Railroad Right of Way.  View E.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007 
 
Along Crystal Springs Drive in the area just above the miniature train complex is 
a c.1926 City infrastructure building (Figure 23).  This building is a one-story, 
rectangular-plan, side-gabled building with red asphalt shingle, and Colonial 
Revival elements.  The centered entry to the building is accessed by a set of three 
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concrete stairs, faces southwest, and is surrounded by a quoin-like articulated
masonry molding around the doorframe.  The jack arching above the door is 
slightly peaked.  A 1/1 wood frame double hung window covered with a m
security screen is also present at the front elevation, as are two decorative 
modillions at the upper corners.  Molding is present across the fro

 

etal 

nt and rear 
elevation, and it forms gable returns at the side of the structure.   

 
Figure 23:  Los Angeles City Infrastructure Building.  View E.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007 

in.  

rth 

 

s, 

Water and Power powerhouse building that dates from 
the 1920s (Figure 24).  

 

The Crystal Springs Picnic Area, Pote Field, Ranger’s 
Station, and Visitor’s Center 

Moving northwest along Crystal Springs Drive, the next cluster of visible built 
amenities, located off of the east shoulder of Crystal Springs Drive, is the Picnic 
Area and Pote Field, the Rangers Station, and other structures included there
The Crystal Springs Picnic Area and Pote Field are located immediately off 
Crystal Springs Drive roughly 1.5 miles northwest into Griffith Park due no
along Crystal Springs Drive.  This picnic and ball field area includes other 
buildings, some of which serve an infrastructure function.  The entirety of this
complex and its associated resources is set below grade from Crystal Springs 
Drive and is separated from it by a continuous berm.  The first of these building
which is due north on Crystal Springs Drive, is a rectangular plan,  City of Los 
Angeles Department of 
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Figure 24: City of Los Angeles DWP Powerhouse. c.1920s.  View SE.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Constructed of concrete, this building is side gabled and is five bays long by 
three bays wide.  Each bay is a large inset panel with molded surrounds.  Most of 
the bays feature large 1/1 window covered with wire security and topped with 
low arching.     

Due east/northeast of this structure is a single-story, square-plan building that is 
similar in design to a Minimal Traditional residence (Figure 25).  This building 
has a low, pyramidal roof, clapboard baseboards, and a symmetrical front 
elevation with a single panel wood door and 6/6 woodframe double hung 
windows at either side of it.  This structure was a restroom facility relocated from 
the adjacent picnic area that was redeveloped in the 1980s. 

 

Figure 25: Restroom building, c.1948.  View SE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  
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Immediately west of the DWP switching station is a grouping of buildings that 
appear to date from the late 1950s of a complex formerly called the “Pettigrew”  
(Figure 26).  The Pettigrew complex is immediately below Crystal Springs Drive 
and features three buildings each with a low pitch shed roof, wood clapboard 
cladding, and fascia boards.   

 
Figure 26:  Former Pettigrew Complex.  View SW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 
2008.  

One of these buildings is a long, single-story building that is four bays long by 
one bay wide.  At its rear elevation, these three bays feature four unit fixed wood 
frame windows.  The second building, located adjacent north the previous, is 
considerably smaller than the first and is of a single-story rectangular plan and is 
two bays long by one bay wide.  At the northernmost portion of the Pettigrew is a 
two-story clapboard-clad, rectangular plan building with wood fascia boards.  
The Pettigrew complex was originally an educational complex to teach grade 
school children about animal life.  A two-story flat-roofed, corrugated metal open 
shed, a recent addition, is located immediately south of the Pettigrew buildings.  
Just north of the Pettigrew complex is a single-story, rectangular-plan front-
gable-forestation building clad in painted corrugated metal with two garage bays 
at its north-west facing front elevation.   

East of the Pettigrew is an open lawn covered area with mature sycamore trees.  
In the center of it is a fire circle made of boulders.  A single-story complex of 
recent, metal clad shed buildings serves as a fire station and is located adjacent 
the picnic area.  Due immediately north of the Pettigrew complex is a large 
grouping of picnic tables atop a large concrete pad in the shape of a trefoil.  Each 
of the picnic tables is a single, folded piece of painted concrete with round edges. 
The benches that accompany them are of the same design.  This picnic area was 
developed in preparation for the 1984 Olympics. The northern and eastern 
portion of the Crystal Springs area is a park setting with mowed lawn, narrow 
blacktopped streets, and numerous mature sycamore, elm, fragrant ash, 
eucalyptus and other tree specimens.  
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Low, rolling, mowed lawn hills are part of the design and this picnic area 
continues north and westward up to the 5 freeway, to which it runs parallel for a 
couple hundred feet.  Within this portion of Griffith Park, the 5 freeway is often 
baffled by a row of eucalyptus trees, and is elevated above the grade of the park.  
Present in the middle of the Crystal Springs Picnic Area is a bathroom building 
that dates from c. 1951 (Figure 27). 

 
Figure 27:  Crystal Springs Picnic Area restroom structure, c. 1951.   
View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

This building is of rectangular plan with cinder brick construction with a framed 
vertical-lap siding.  A wood, wraparound louvered screen is used for ventilation 
and serves as a clerestory.  The structure’s roof is gabled and is underscored with 
long, extended eaves.  The rear/ upper portion of the picnic area arcs northwest in 
a manner parallel to the 5 freeway, which serves as the northern boundary for this 
entire area.  This upper picnic area features additional picnic benches of the 
design prior described and also a sand-covered volleyball court.  Where it meets 
the road, the entire border of this picnic area is lined with either repeating wood 
posts with chamfered tops or is lined with old telephone poles laid horizontally at 
the shoulders of the road.  The picnic area does not abut the berm that supports 
the 5 freeway, though it does closely parallel it.  Running directly parallel against 
the 5 freeway is a continuous dirt equestrian trail that doubles as a jogging path.  
Just west of the Pettigrew and the southern portion of the picnic area is a baseball 
diamond called Pote Field (Figure 28), the entirety of which is lined with a tall 
chain link fence.   
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Figure 28:  Pote Field, 1950-1976.  View E.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

The taller, chain link backstop of this baseball field is located at the northwest 
corner of the field and it faces southeast.  Wood bleachers are present at either 
side of it, and are inset in front of a roughly 13’ tall grass berm that runs along 
the first and third base sides of the field, and gives Pote Field the impression of 
being sunken into the ground.  Pote Field was originally installed in 1950.  In 
1976, the ball field underwent many renovations and improvements.  The 
original materials and construction from1950 is non-extant.  Immediately 
southeast of Pote Field just outside the fence of the left field portion is a 
rectangular-plan, single-story, 1951 Ranch-style “Field House & Comfort 
Station” of painted, running course brick and overlapping gabling (Figure 29).  

 
Figure 29:  Field House and Comfort Station, 1951.  View SW. 
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

The building features extended eaves and large exposed wood rafter tails with 
rounded ends.  Aside from the restrooms, there are two entries into this structure 
and each is covered by a small pitched roof overhang that is supported by 
untreated tree trunk columns.  A roll-up metal garage door is present at its south 
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elevation.  Symmetrically placed men’s and women’s restrooms are present at 
either end of the east elevation, as is a ribbon-row of seven bays each with 
jalousie windows.  Part of the design are 1/1 horizontally acclimated windows 
and paired casement windows.  Due northwest of Pote Field, the grade rises 
behind the berm running east-west along the first base line.  Behind this berm is a 
single row of blacktopped parking spaces.  Beyond Pote Field due northwest and 
paralleling Crystal Springs Drive is a series of structures primarily used as both a 
Visitors Center and Ranger Station.  

Ranger Station and Visitor’s Center Area 

The area of Griffith Park devoted to the Ranger Station and Visitor’s Center is 
located just off Crystal Springs Drive due immediately west of Pote Field.  The 
first of these structures, which is closest to Crystal Springs Drive, is the “Adobe 
of the Ranch Los Feliz” (Figure 30).   This adobe structure is of rectangular plan 
with thick, adobe walls, and a cross gabled roof clad in Spanish tile.  The 
structure is of the Spanish Revival design system.  The structure features 
woodframe multi-unit windows that are, like the doorways, recessed into the 
deep adobe walls.  Banana trees and birds of paradise are present at the south-
facing front elevation.  The western portion of the front elevation is a 3-bay, front 
gabled unit with a decorative attic vent of square brick with large openings.  The 
eastern portion of the front elevation contains the front entrance, is side gabled, 
and is of four window bays in addition to the entry.  At either shoulder in front of 
the entry is a low solid adobe balustrade.  Upon the northern balustrade is an 
early decorative wrought iron light pole with lantern fixture.  A mowed grass 
front yard is present in front of this building.  Within this front yard is a recent 
planter of boulders in concrete topped by a cap of flat, header course bricks.  
Within this planter are flowering bushes and recent signs that read “Park Ranger 
Headquarters” and “Griffith Park Visitor’s Center.”  This building, which 
underwent a substantial renovation in the 1940s, dates from 1853 and is the 
earliest building in Griffith Park. 

 
Figure 30:  Feliz Adobe, 1853, exterior renovation in 1940s.   
View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.   
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Sunken behind the Feliz Adobe is a square plan, single-story Ranger Station 
Visitor’s Center complex with smooth stucco cladding and a flat roof.  This 
structure, which was completed in 1980, is done in a Modern style. The roof is 
underscored by an oversized, painted, rectangular box eave that wraps around all 
four elevations.  The entrance to the Visitor’s Center features a pair of aluminum 
shop doors.  Five bays of bronze framed pairs of casement windows are also 
present at the front elevation that faces southwest. Directly in front of the 
Visitor’s Center is an enclosed patio with floor of concrete and also of an inlaid 
brick pattern.  A wood trellis is present at the northern portion of this patio.  A 
tapered steel flagpole is present in the middle of this patio, which is enclosed by 
stucco walls and partitions roughly 8’ tall.  Various fired ceramic decorative 
panels by the artist Elaine Katzer and Biologist Judith Hopkins are present along 
the walls inside the patio (Figure 31). 

 
Figure 31:  Ranger Station Visitor’s Center Complex: Patio.  View NW.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

The flagpole base is of an abstracted series of planes, which also surround a 
minimalist style painted wood bench within the patio.  Due east of the Visitor’s 
Center is a small, rectangular plan building of the same design as the Visitor’s 
Center.  This structure is acclimated northeast to southwest.  Its entry faces north, 
is recessed, and features a pair of single panel painted metal doors topped by a 
metal transom.  An open concrete floored picnic area with concrete picnic tables 
is present between the Visitor’s Center and its auxiliary building to the south of 
it.   

Across a two-lane driveway due northeast/east behind the Visitor’s Center is a 
rectangular plan single-story front gabled double-wide portable building, which 
serves as the Park Ranger administrative offices.  The sides of this building are 
clad with scored plywood siding and the roof is of rolled asphalt shingle.  Seven 
bays of aluminum sliding windows, each with a simple wood surround, are 
present at either side of it.  The front elevation features a metal shed roof canopy 
overhang.  The front entry beneath it features a pair of metal doors with a single 
glass panel at each upper portion.  As Crystal Springs Drive continues northwest, 
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through the Wilson-Harding Golf Course, it then turns east and changes name to 
Western Heritage Drive.  

Western Heritage Drive  

Auxiliary area  

At the south shoulder of Western Heritage Drive is a large, semi-circular 
blacktopped parking area, which is but one component of a larger blacktopped 
area that contains a variety of permanent and temporary structures that appear to 
be for educational, auxiliary, and support uses for the park.  These buildings 
include the Griffith Observatory Reservations Center, the Griffith Park Visitor 
Services Warehouse, three long 1960s era rectangular plan school buildings, 
three recent portable structures, and two large open storage areas that are 
enclosed with chain link fencing, located at the southern and eastern perimeters 
of the property.  The above mentioned school buildings are part of the Griffith 
Park Zoo Magnet School.  All of these buildings and their associated resources 
appear to have been completed after the period of significance (1896–1957) for 
the park.  

Western Heritage Drive → North Zoo Drive  

Western Heritage Way passes through the Autry National Center to its east and 
the parking lot of the Los Angeles Zoo to the west (Figures 32 and 33).  Both 
resources, which are destinations for both local residents and tourists, post-date 
the period of significance.   

 
Figure 32:  Los Angeles Zoo parking area and front entrance, as seen  
from Western Heritage Drive.  View W.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  
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Figure 33:  Autry National Center (Autry Center for Western Heritage), 1987.   
View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

The street curves westward and changes name to Zoo Drive.  An arm of Zoo 
Drive winds east over the 134 freeway, curves northward and then westward 
immediately parallel to where the Los Angeles River forms a sharp angle as it 
flows from eastward to southward.  This section of road is called “North Zoo 
Drive.”  A small grove of sycamore trees, which appears to be original to the 
park, is present due looking west of Zoo Drive near State Highway 134 on and 
off ramps (Figure 34).   

 
Figure 34.  Sycamore Grove near SR 134 off of north Zoo Drive.  
View W.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

This setting of this section of Griffith Park, its northeasterly most corner, is 
largely industrial, with tall power lines running parallel just north of North Zoo 
Drive, and numerous large scale, aging industrial buildings off San Fernando 
Road due immediately north and east of the Los Angeles River, which in this 
portion is paved.  Further west on North Zoo Drive are the Ferraro Soccer fields: 
five regulation soccer fields and two practice/ rugby fields, the majority of which 
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are acclimated east-west.  A rectangular plan, single-story restroom building is 
present at the northeast portion of the athletic fields complex.  This building, 
which is recent and of post-modern design, is made of cinder block and has a 
butterfly roof.  Six restroom entries are located at the west elevation.  Just 
beneath roof, inset into all four elevations, is a continuous band of horizontally 
acclimated milled aluminum vents.  Affixed to the south-west elevation of this 
building is a one-story, metal frame geodesic dome with black and white infill 
paneling designed to look like a soccer ball.  A recent circular irregular course 
rock planter with rock and plant specimens and a wood sign that reads “John 
Ferraro Athletic Fields Welcomes You…” is present in front of the building 
facing North Zoo Drive, as is a mowed lawn area with mature palm specimens.  
Immediately east of the restroom structure is a recent playground.    

Each of the soccer fields is surrounded by tapered steel column stadium lights 
that run roughly 10 stories tall.  Each light standard features six large halogen 
bulbs.  Due immediately west of the soccer complex is a dog park upon a 
triangular plot of land that is wedged between the Ventura Freeway at its south 
side, and North Zoo Drive at its north side.  This dog park is covered with earth 
and gravel, is enclosed with a chain link fence, and features mature tree 
specimens.  The dog park is divided into two sections: the eastern section is for 
regular dogs and the smaller western section is for “Small or timid dogs only.”  
The Zoo Drive Extension runs parallel along the northern edge of this dog park, 
which is bounded by a row of parking spaces.  The far western end of the dog 
park is paralleled by the terminus of North Zoo Drive.     

Zoo Drive  

The Pecan Grove Picnic Area 

The Pecan Grove Picnic area runs adjacent to Zoo Drive due immediately east of 
it for roughly ½ mile, ending at Riverside Drive and the exit ramp off of the 5 
Freeway. The Pecan Grove picnic area features a small, grassy area that angles 
upward to meet the road to a low berm that runs immediately parallel to the 
road’s east shoulder.  Thirteen concrete picnic tables in four diagonally 
acclimated rows are present, as are steel, elevated hibachi style barbeques at the 
southern portion of the picnic area.  In the center of this southern portion is a 
mature live oak Tree set into the landscape in a sunken planter circle bordered by 
vertical wood plank wall (Figure 35). The Pecan Grove Picnic Area features an 
assortment of oak, sycamore, pine and eucalyptus trees.  
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Figure 35:  Live oak within the Pecan Grove Picnic Area. View W.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

The eastern edge of the Pecan Grove Picnic area features a continuous row of 
low, wood posts.  Just west of the Pecan Grove Picnic Area parking lot is a 
boulder with a 1996 plaque commemorating the Juan Bautista De Anza Historic 
Trail (Figure 36).  Immediately north of the parking area is the equestrian trail 
(Figure 37) and immediately beyond that is a tall, bush-covered berm on the 
other side of which is the State Route 134 freeway.   

 
Figure 36:  De Anza Memorial Plaque,1996.  Pecan Grove Picnic area.  
View W.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  
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Figure 37:  Equestrian Paths, Pecan Grove Picnic Area, c.1959.  
Equestrian trails run continuously along the I-5 and SR-134  
freeways within Griffith Park.   

Zoo Drive→ Riverside Drive 

A small section of Riverside Drive is present off of Zoo Drive just west of the 
Pecan Grove Picnic Area.  Before it enters into the Bette Davis Picnic Area, 
which will be described later in the text, it crosses the Los Angeles River via the 
Riverside Drive Bridge.  Constructed in 1938 as a Public Works Administration 
project, the Riverside Drive Bridge is of a 5-bay, concrete span. Each bay is 
underscored by a segmental arch supported by a large concrete pier between each 
arch.  Each pier runs the width of the bridge, and each forms a water channel.  
Each pier has rounded edges with a scored line detailing the upper portion.  The 
railing of the bridge is also concrete and consists of an A-B pattern of open and 
closed vertical rectangles with pointed headers.  At either side of the bridge 
above each support pier and at each end are affixed pole light fixtures.  A stylized 
base is present beneath each pole, running downward along the outer edges of the 
bridge.  This stylization is of a deco-style zig-zag pattern that fans out at its lower 
portions.  The light poles, also concrete, have a fluted pattern and a fluted base.  
The light fixtures are bronze lantern style fixtures.  The Riverside Drive bridge is 
four lanes wide.  A 1938 bronze commemorative plaque is present at the northern 
portion of the bridge, along the inner portion of the west railing.  
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Zoo Drive 

Second Picnic Area and Maintenance Facility  

A second unnamed picnic area (Figure 38) located off of Zoo Drive runs parallel 
the 134 freeway between the Riverside Drive bridge over the Los Angeles River 
and the Griffith Park Maintenance Service Yard located at 5201 Zoo Drive. 
Numerous Pine specimens are present within this picnic area.  

  
Figure 38: Unnamed picnic area due west of Riverside Drive  
off of Zoo Drive.  View W.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

A chain link security fence with barbed wire is present across the front portion of 
the maintenance yard, as is a row of mature canary pine trees.  The Maintenance 
Service yard is located off the east shoulder of Zoo Drive, running parallel to it 
and backed by the 5 freeway. The yard is largely blacktopped, as a place to park 
various maintenance vehicles.  At the far southern end of the maintenance yard is 
“Building 1,” a Modern, irregular plan, 1.5-story building of various layered 
rectangular-plan units set in a ninety-degree relationship to one another (Figure 
39).  
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Figure 39:  Building 1, Maintenance Service Yard. View N.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Building 1 is acclimated north-south.  The northern-side portion of the building is 
1.5 stories taller than the southern portion.  This structure is of cinder block, and 
its flat roofs are underscored by simple beveled concrete molding.  The front and 
rear elevations feature long horizontal bands of windows each topped by a small, 
pitched eave.  The window bays within these bands undulate with panels of 
cinder block.  Many of the windows within these bays are 8-glazed fixed 
woodframe horizontally acclimated windows.  Other bays within these bands are 
now infilled with milled aluminum vents.  The front entry is acclimated east and 
is inset into the right angle corner formed by two separate units of the building.  
Due north of Building 1 is a blacktopped parking area fronted by a two gas 
pumps.  

Buildings 2 and 3 are located at the northern portion of the Maintenance Service 
Yard.  Building 2 is a rectangular-plan, single-story cinder block building with a 
flat roof underscored by simple beveled concrete molding.  The structure is 
Modern in design, and dates, like the other buildings in this area, from the early 
mid-1950s.  The north elevation of Building 2 has one door, plus a band of three 
horizontally acclimated window bays topped by a small pitched eave.  A similar 
eave tops the door at this elevation.  The west facing side elevation of Building 2 
features a centered pair of single unit metal doors topped by a similar eave of the 
kind previously mentioned.  The south-facing elevation of Building 2 features 
four 8-unit horizontally acclimated window bays in a single band topped by the 
low pitch eave of the type previously mentioned.  Between each of these window 
bays is brick infill painted a different color than the rest of the building. 

Located directly behind Building 2 is Building 3, which is a rectangular plan 1.5-
story Modern Building made of cinder block and done in the Modern style.  
Similar to Buildings 1 and 2, Building 3 has a flat roof underscored with a simple 
concrete beveled molding.  Building 3 is divided into two units: a 1.5-story 
northern component and an affixed 1-story southern component.  The southwest 
facing front elevation features a pair of metal doors and two horizontally 
acclimated window bays each of 8-unit glazing.  Both windows and the door are 
topped by a continuous small pitched eave.  The front elevation also features a 
tall, pitched roof corrugated metal porch underscored by rafter tails and 
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supported by four steel pipe columns.  A small, square plan single-story building 
constructed similarly to the above three with a molded, flat roof and cinder block 
construction is located at the back of the maintenance yard in its northwest 
corner.  This building is not numbered.  

Los Angeles Live Steamers Railroad Museum1 

The Los Angeles Live Steamers Railroad Museum (Live Steamers) is located 
across the street from the Griffith Park Maintenance Facility.  The Museum is an 
open air collection of rideable, 1/8th scale miniature steam, electric and diesel 
trains over 23,000 feet of steel rail track, including a main line that is a 1.5 mile 
circuit around the perimeter of the Museum (Figure 40).   
 

 
Figure 40: 1/8th scale train taking passengers through  
Los Angeles Live Steamers Railroad Museum, January 2008.  
View S.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, January 2008.  
 
Walt Disney, who donated the line, lent his name to 2,615 feet of the 1/8 gauge 
trackage.  The line used to traverse his 5-acre Holmby Hills property.  Two 
turntables, 40-foursteaming bays, and two power hoists are also present, as are 
over 80 electric signals.  The track is set upon a miniature built environment of 
“three miniature towns, two water towers, a roundhouse, three train stations, a 
coal tipple, and two control towers,” among many other buildings.2  Three 
concrete tunnels are present, as is a steel frame gambrel truss bridge, called the 
O’Brien-Moore Bridge.  The track itself is of various miniature gauges.  
Interspersed among the various miniature villages within the Live Steamers 
Museum are five early train cars, three of which are cabooses that pre-date 1950, 
a Union Pacific Baggage Dorm Car built in 1941, and a Union Pacific Sleeper 
Car constructed in 1956.  An open sided, metal frame, rectangular plan Steam 
Plant is present at the rear, south-east portion of the property. The Plant is topped 
with a side gabled, metal canopy with a canopied clerestory bump-out upon its 
eastern portion.  This steam plant contains numerous demonstration pieces of 
miniature steam powered machinery.  Numerous mature tree specimens, which 

                                                      
1   “Los Angeles Live Steamers Railroad Museum,” information brochure. Toluca Lake, CA: Los Angeles Live Steamers, c.2007.   
2  Ibid.    
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appear to predate the museum, are present throughout Live Steamers and provide 
a degree of shade over the premises.  
 
At the eastern portion of Live Steamers is “Walt’s Barn,” a relocated workshop 
that belonged to Walt Disney and served as his workspace for his own model 
train line, which as mentioned above, is now part of Live Steamers (Figure 22).  
This workshop, constructed in 1950 by Disney Studio architect John Cowles Jr., 
is modeled after a pre-existing barn that was a play-place for Walt Disney during 
his childhood years. Walt’s Barn is rectangular plan, single-story clad in wood 
board and batten siding.  A full length porch runs along the west-side elevation.  
The roof is of medium pitch front gable, and the ridgeline purposely sinks, so as 
to imply aging.  A dovecote is present atop the ridgeline.  A centered, double 
barn-door entry is present at the south-facing elevation.  Above it is an exposed 
wood ridgebeam, and a centered, double set of attic doors.  The eastern-side 
component of the Barn reads as a full-length shed roofed lean-to.  This lean-to 
component features two symmetrically placed sets of three woodframe windows 
and a small, square plan bumpout with a shed roof at its south elevation.  Inside 
the Barn are numerous displays of tools and model train components that once 
belonged to Walt Disney.  All benches and desks inside the barn were 
handcrafted by Walt Disney.  Walt’s Barn was originally constructed in 1950 by 
Disney Studios architect John Cowles Jr. and was relocated to the Live Steamers 
Museum in 1999.  
 

 
Figure 41: “Walt’s Barn,” 1950. Los Angeles Live Steamers  
Railroad Museum.  View NW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, January 2008 

Picnic Area 

Across the street on Zoo Drive due northwest of the Maintenance Facility and 
immediately north of the Live Steamers is a grass-covered picnic area primarily 
of square plan with an extended arm at its west end that extends south.  This 
picnic area is flat, with a mowed lawn covering, and features mature tree 
specimens and concrete benches, two of which are covered with 6-sided central-
plan canopies supported by metal post V-bracing and clad with fiberglass panels 
in the shape of multiple wood shingles.  A gravel-covered parking area is located 
just south of this picnic area and between it and the picnic area is a continuous 
row of low wood posts (Figure 42).  
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Figure 42:  Picnic Area located between Travel Town and Los Angeles  
Live Steamers off south shoulder off Zoo Drive.  View W.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, 
March 2008.  

Travel Town Transportation Museum 

The Travel Town Transportation Museum (Travel Town) is located at the 
northwest edge of the Park off of Zoo Drive where it meets the far western 
terminus of Griffith Park Drive (Figure 43).   

 
Figure 43: Travel Town Transportation Museum.  View E.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Travel Town is acclimated east-west and features an assortment of buildings, 
structures, and most notably, various examples of actual transportation, including 
a variety of early steam locomotives.  Among these, The 1937 “Little Nugget” 
Union Pacific Club Car is City of Los Angeles Historic Cultural Monument #474 
(Figure 44).  
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Figure 44: “Little Nugget” Union Pacific Club Car, 1937.  View SW.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

A narrow gauge miniature train encircles Travel Town.  A blacktopped parking 
area is located directly south of the primary entrance into travel town.  The kiosk 
of the primary entrance is located at the southwest corner of travel town.  The 
entry kiosk was recently built.  This kiosk is constructed of metal columns, and it 
has a steep pitch cross gabled roof.  As one steps through the entry kiosk, directly 
behind it is a recent metal frame bridge with stucco piers at either end that 
crosses above a small gully with the narrow gauge right of way.  The various 
buildings, structures and objects of Travel Town are connected by concrete and 
blacktopped walkways that cover the low, rolling hills within Travel Town that 
are covered with mowed lawn and mature tree specimens.     

At the far west edge of Travel Town is a small, rectangular plan waiting canopy 
constructed of wood posts infilled with diagonal cross beam members at its upper 
portions.  This waiting canopy, which does not appear to be used as such 
anymore, has a wood clapboard wainscot.  Its roof is side gabled and each gable 
end is infilled with spaced vertical wood beams.  Exposed wood plank rafter tails 
are part of the design.  This waiting canopy is adjacent west of the small gauge 
railroad that loops around Travel Town, inset onto a concrete pad among ivy 
bush.  Just east of this canopy is a decaying Los Angeles Railway Horse car.  
Along virtually the entire eastern edge of Travel Town are four rows of standard 
gauge rail spurs that have upon them a variety of steam locomotives, cabs, and 
other rail-related objects dating from the 1880s to the 1930s.  An eight-sided 
wood gazebo is present at the northeastern edge of travel town, adjacent Griffith 
Park Drive.  Near the southeastern edge of Travel Town these locomotives and 
other train cars are beneath a large, rectangular plan, three-story train shed that 
was built within the last 15 years and is done in a turn of the century industrial 
style.  The structure is side gabled and is open at each gable end.  Each gable end 
consists of three large bays that are each topped with an arch that is supported by 
exposed steel truss members.  These arches repeat at each of the nine bays that 
comprise the length of the shed.  Its canopy, which is nine bays long, is of 
corrugated metal roofing except at its northern edge, where this roofing becomes 
glass.  A full-length clerestory is present upon this building.  
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Due west of the large train shed is a recent, rectangular plan single-story visitors 
center constructed of running course brick and having a low-pitched hip roof 
with asphalt shingle.  Centered atop the hip roof of this building is a square plan 
brick cupola with a pyramidal roof and a simple clock face at its north elevation.  
One entrance to the visitor’s center is recessed behind a full-length opening at the 
north elevation.  Red glazed ceramic brick tile, laid vertically, is present on the 
walls around this entrance.  The second entrance is at the west facing elevation.  
Both entrances feature a pair of aluminum framed glass shop doors full height 
aluminum framed sidelight glazing.  

Immediately north in front of the primary entrance is a circa 1952 pylon-shaped 
“park style” drinking fountain of irregular coursework with smooth, colored 
ashlar cut sandstone and a concrete basin.  Due immediately west of this drinking 
fountain is a square-shaped planter that is bounded by recent concrete benches 
with the words “Travel Town” emblazoned into them.  In the middle of this 
planter is a re-creation, dedicated in 1993, of the Statue “Spirit of the CCC,” 
which is placed upon a beveled end concrete pedestal. The artist of the original 
version of this work is John Palo-Kangas. The Travel Town area, and the area 
that is now part of SR-134 above it, was originally part of an early CCC camp, 
and later served as a Prisoner of War camp during World War II.  

Just north of this planter, which serves as the center point for congregation in 
Travel Town, is a large, rectangular plan, corrugated metal “Exhibit Hall” with a 
centered opening and a low-pitched front gable roof clad in standing seam metal.  
The primary space inside the Exhibit Hall includes numerous examples of train 
cars, carriages, early automobiles, and other early forms of transportation and 
travel.  Located north of the Exhibit Hall is an open, grassy area with picnic 
benches, mature trees, and a wide stairway that leads up to the entrance/exit gate.  
An early San Francisco Cable Car is present within this picnic area, as is a faux 
water tower with a wood base and cylindrical, corrugated metal tank that is 
adjacent the narrow gauge tracks that run along the edge of this picnic area.  Due 
southwest of the visitor’s center is a rectangular-plan single-story portable trailer 
that serves as the Travel Town Gift Shop.  

Due southwest behind this structure is a rectangular plan one-story side-gabled 
Depot building clad in wood shiplap (Figure 45).   
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Figure 45:  Depot, Travel Town Transportation Museum.  View SE.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

The side gable roof has long, extended eaves with long, thin scrolled wood 
brackets, and is covered with staggered course asphalt shingle.  Part of the design 
are 9/1 wood frame windows.  The depot is four bays long, and a ticket counter is 
located within the open breezeway at the center of the building.  Large carriage 
doors are part of the design, and open up most of the building to the outdoors, 
revealing that the roof is supported with repeating bays of wood queen trusses.  
The north-side gable of the depot features a centered 9/1 wood frame double 
hung window, and the south side of the depot features two horizontally 
acclimated windows with wood surrounds.  

Just north of the train shed, on either side of the western-most of the four rail 
spurs, are two train signals, one on either side of the tracks (Figure 46).   
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Figure 46: Train signal with 1952 administrative building in background.  
Travel Town Transportation Museum.  View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Each of these is supported by a steel pole, with two red lights at either side of it.  
Atop the pole is an enclosed bell with white “X” that reads “Railroad Crossing” 
just below it, and another sign reads “3 Tracks” in reflecting font.  Affixed to 
each of the arms themselves, which have a standard red and white striped 
diagonal pattern upon them, are three small red hanging lanterns.  At the northern 
portion of Travel Town are two circa 1952 buildings.  The first is a square-plan, 
single-story flat-roofed building with vertical tongue and groove siding and a flat 
roof with long wraparound eaves and beveled fascia boards.  This building 
features narrow horizontal window bays, each lined with standing wood molding 
that wrap around the corners of the building.  The front elevation of this building 
faces west and features a centered entry with a rustic style vertical board wood 
door with an infilled upper glazed panel.  A pair of 2/2 woodframe double hung 
windows are located to the south of this entry, and a small ribbon of three square 
windows are present to the north of the centered entry.  This building, which 
appears to be an administrative building for Travel Town, has wood clapboard 
wainscoting across all four elevations. 

Behind this small administrative building is a small-scale, square-plan single-
story restroom building with metal “board and batten” cladding and a low-pitch 
butterfly roof.  Metal screened transom openings, present across all four 
elevations, are part of the design.  The restroom entry ways are placed 
symmetrically at either end of the southwest elevation, and each is covered by a 
metal screened partition.  At the northwest corner of Travel Town begins Griffith 
Park Drive.  
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Zoo Drive → Forest Lawn Drive  
A small spur of Zoo Drive runs west of Travel Town and connects to Forest 
Lawn Drive.  Off the northern shoulder of this spur is the Martinez Arena: an 
earth covered horse recreation area enclosed with a wood fence and dotted with 
sparsely placed tree specimens  Griffith Park briefly runs against a roughly 1 
mile stretch of Forest Lawn Drive due west of Travel Town.  The property within 
the Griffith Park boundary is primary adjacent the north shoulder of Forest Lawn 
Drive, and consists of an open, earth-covered area dotted with mature tree 
specimens and containing utility poles.  This stretch of land is variously referred 
to as the “Headworks” and the “Spreading Grounds,” and it is immediately 
adjacent to the Los Angeles River (Figure 47).  

 
Figure 47.  Headworks area.  View NW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

On this stretch of road, the primary portions off the southern side of Forest Lawn 
Drive consist of Mount Sinai and Forest Lawn Memorial Parks, both of which 
are not part of Griffith Park.  Near the entrance to Forest Lawn, a small portion of 
Griffith Park is located off of the southern shoulder and it contains the recently 
completed Junior Achievement Center, which is a two-story, L-plan concrete 
brick educational building with a semi-circular rotunda entrance.    

Griffith Park Drive: Mineral Wells Picnic Area 
Griffith Park Drive begins at the northwest corner of Travel Town, and its last 
leg runs parallel to Crystal Springs Drive from a point beginning at Park Center 
and ending at Los Feliz Boulevard at the primary, eastern entrance to the park.  
The first stretch of Griffith Park Drive winds through an area called Oak Canyon, 
a largely open and undeveloped area of the Park. Due southeasterly through Oak 
Canyon, the outer edge of the Toyon Canyon landfill is present off of the south 
shoulder of Griffith Park Drive (Figure 48).  At the present time, the Toyon 
canyon Landfill is being conditioned to become a nature restoration project.  
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Figure 48: Toyon Canyon Landfill, 1958.  View S off of Griffith Park Drive.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008. 

Beyond Oak Canyon due east upon Griffith Park Drive is the Mineral Wells 
Picnic Area.  The Mineral Wells Picnic Area is a long, narrow picnic area 
acclimated northwest to southeast set into its own gully.  The ground cover is 
mowed lawn, and mature Cypress, pine, sycamore, and maple trees are present.  
There is a culvert running diagonally through this picnic area.  A retaining wall is 
placed between the road against the hillside and flat landscape, where there is a 
low wall stepped and composed of rusticated concrete. On the site are picnic 
tables, a bathroom building, small metal water foundation, and small concession 
stand.  These structures date from the mid-1950s (Figure 49).  

 
Figure 49: Mineral Wells Picnic Area.  Concessions kiosk in foreground,  
restroom building in background.  View SE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, April 2008.  

Located near the center, northern portion of Mineral Wells Picnic Area is a 
rectangular plan single-story bathroom structure.  The side elevations are the 
long, lengthwise elevations and the men’s and women’s entries are placed 
symmetrically, underneath either gable end.  The south-side elevation features 
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two ribbons of window: one of four bays and the other of six.  The north-side 
elevation features a ribbon of square windows at the east side, upon the men’s 
restrooms.  This structure is clad in smooth stucco and features a gabled roof clad 
in asphalt shingle and underscored with exposed wood rafter tails.  Stucco-walled 
partitions are present in front of each entry.  The doors to each restroom are 
rusticated wood board and batten with a small view window. 

A single-story rectangular-plan, small-scale concessions kiosk is located due 
west of the restrooms, near the northwest corner of the Mineral Wells Picnic 
Area.  This structure is clad in smooth stucco siding and has a hipped roof clad in 
rolled asphalt shingle underscores by wood rafter tails.  The front of this 
concessions stand faces south and is fronted by a full-length porch supported on 
either end by three thin wood posts.  A pedestrian entry is present on the east 
portion of the front elevation, and it is surrounded by wood framing.  Two 
counter bays, now infilled with T-111 siding, are present at this elevation.  No 
windows are present upon this structure, which, like the previously described 
restroom, is minimal traditional in style.  A power hookup pole is present due 
west of the front elevation.  

Above the Mineral Wells Picnic Area is the very recent Los Angeles Zoo Animal 
Hospital facility.  This structure is very recent and is Postmodern in design.  The 
animal hospital facility consists of various component buildings and an irregular, 
U-plan arrangement.  Each component building ranges from one to three stories.  
The structure is made primarily of rusticated concrete block, but features 
numerous elevations of continuous glass fronted by metal screens. Above the 
roofs of these structures are metal cantilevered canopies upon both side units.   
The rear unit is slightly elevated above the other two units and features a primary 
south-facing elevation of continuous vertically acclimated full green glazing 
fronted my metal screen.  The west wing contains a balcony, and the right wing 
is one story with a subterranean level.  The courtyard in front of these buildings 
features a large driveway and permanently affixed machinery.  The complex is 
fronted by an ivy covered wall with the words “Los Angeles Zoo” written in a 
modern, metal font affixed to this wall.    

Wilson Harding Golf Clubhouse 

The Wilson Harding Golf Clubhouse is a two-story, irregular plan, cross gabled 
clubhouse with hand troweled stucco cladding designed to look like adobe.  The 
structure is Spanish Eclectic in design, such as  The features that associate it to 
the Spanish Eclectic design system include hand troweled stucco cladding, 
Spanish tile roofs, and corredors. The general symmetry of the front elevation, 
with a two story central component with extended wings and a centered cupola 
with weather vane give provide the building Colonial overtones (Figure 50). 
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Figure 50: Wilson-Harding Golf Clubhouse, 1937.  View NW.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

All roofs are underscored with decorative rafter tails.  A large pitched roof porch 
supported by four piers made of brick is present in front of the main entry.  The 
sides of this pitched roof portion feature a colonial revival type tongue and 
groove pattern in wood with scalloped edges.  This porch is supported by six 
square piers each made of brick, the frontal four of which support a continuous 
lintel beam, itself topped by scrolled rafter tails and the Spanish tile clad pitched 
roof itself.  Present on the side of one of the two inner beams is a bronze plaque 
that reads “Built by the Works Progress Administration 1937.”  Behind the 
southern portion of the frontal unit of the golf clubhouse is an enclosed patio with 
a centered, terra cotta decorative fountain supported on an octagonal brick base.  
The rear portion of the building appears to be a separate structure, though it is 
connected.  This rear component is one-story rectangular plan, and has a recessed 
front elevation that faces south onto the patio.  This front elevation is recessed 
behind a centered porch supported by two wood columns.  Two entry doors 
symmetrically placed are present within the recessed portion of the front 
elevation of the rear component of the clubhouse.  The wood screen door is 
original and features three panels topped by a large screen picture panel.  Wood 
board and batten cladding is present in the recessed element of the front 
elevation.  This rear structure is one-story, rectangular plan with side gabling and 
has stylistic features associated with the early California Ranch design system.  
At the southern portion of its front elevation is a paired casement window with 
each window being three vertical glazed units.  Wood shutters are present at 
either side.  The very rear portion of the building is a rectangular-plan one-story 
structure clad in hand troweled stucco with an asymmetrical side gabled roof clad 
in Spanish tile.  The east facing side elevation features a continuous band of 
horizontally acclimated six-unit wood frame windows.  Two additional structures 
done in the Spanish Revival Style are located behind the clubhouse and are part 
of the same program as the Lounge itself.  The golf course area is surrounded by 
small putting greens of various sizes located in front of and due south of the 
building.  A new, later fountain is present due south of the clubhouse. 
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Behind the Wilson Harding Golf Clubhouse is a large, two-story metal golf 
driving range facing west.  This platform for this driving range is a two-story 
metal frame structure with a metal banister.  The driving range is enclosed by a 
large, 20’-tall chainlink fence, placed atop an early park-style wall with irregular 
rusticated concrete block, which appears to be more recent. . Grass covers the 
driving range, which is roughly 250 feet in length.  The parking area for the 
clubhouse complex is located due southwest of the clubhouse proper.  Around 
these parking areas are irregular course square block park style walls of 
sandstone and/or aggregate concrete block with irregularly placed dry course 
mortar.  The lower of the rock walls runs virtually full length parallel to the row 
of parking spaces just south of the driving range.  

The Wilson and Harding Golf Courses 

The Harding Golf Course is an 18-hole course spanning 6,536 yards for a Par 72.  
It is located off of Crystal Springs Drive and combines with Wilson Municipal 
Golf Course, which is similar to the Harding Course, where it contains 18 holes 
and 6,942 yards for a Par 72 (Figure 51).   

 
Figure 51: Wilson & Harding Golf Courses.  View SE.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Both courses are rectangular in shape, located adjacent to Interstate 5 to the east, 
bounded by Griffith Park Drive to the south and west, and bordered by the Los 
Angeles Zoo to the north.  Crystal Springs Drive divides the course, running 
north-south, where 12 holes, driving range, and golf clubhouse is located on the 
northwest section.  Both of the landscapes have a flatter terrain than the 
Roosevelt course, with occasional low level hills and gatherings of oak and 
sycamore trees.  The western course contains areas of natural growth vegetation, 
or groves, which have a brush area where wildlife such as deer reside; as well as 
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larger hills with terrain unchanged from the Rancho period.  Older golf 
maintenance buildings exist on the western course in a fenced area, as well as 
other auxiliary buildings.  There is a restroom located north of the maintenance 
buildings that is one story, rectangular in plan.  It is composed of stucco with 
wood frame windows and upper window and door sills.  The windows are one-
over-one double hung and designed in a symmetrical formation.  There are door 
frames on the north and south elevations with a concrete block wall guiding each 
entrance.  The roof has a medium-pitch with composition shingles and 
overhanging eaves with exposed rafter tails on the east and west elevations.  
Another auxiliary building includes a one-story, rectangular in plan wood shed.  
The building features a slanted roof line, vertical wood siding, and a pair of wood 
doors.  The western course contains landscape features such as park style 
retaining walls, minimalistic concrete bridges with metal balustrade, and small 
stone bridge with decorated arch in the park style.  The eastern course is larger in 
scale, and contains more buildings, such as a golf shop, café, and restroom 
building that is centrally located within the course.  It is one-story, rectangular in 
plan, and composed of concrete block.  The roof has a medium-pitch with 
composition shingles and overhanging eaves.  The eastern elevation, which is a 
gable end, consists of large, multi-paned windows within wood frames that 
follow the pitch of the roof.  Two doors are located on the north and south 
elevations; one is for the restrooms, while the other provides access into the 
shop/café area.  A pair of one-pane, metal encased windows are also located on 
these elevations, set within a wood frame.  Northeast of this building is a raised 
concrete structure.  It has concrete steps and a wood balustrade that encompasses 
the foundation; located within the structure is a metal picnic table.  Slightly 
northwest is a wood bridge with concrete foundation located over a stone 
waterfall that leads to a small pond.  Also within the eastern course, near the 
northern boundary, is an outline of a concrete foundation; there is no information 
pertaining to what structure was formerly located on the premises.  Both of the 
courses contain a series of wood benches and features park-style water fountains, 
as well as water attributes within the course and sand traps around the holes. 

Griffith Park Drive → Camp Road Boys Camp 
The Griffith Park Boys Camp (Figure 52) is located off Camp Road, which is 
accessed off of the southern shoulder of Griffith Park Drive.  The camp buildings 
are inset into a pine tree-laden hilly enclave, all upon the east facing hillside 
slope.   
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Figure 52:  Griffith Park Boys Camp.  View E.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007.  
 
At the southwest corner of its access road and Camp Road is a decorative yard art 
vignett e featuring a wood totem pole (Figure 53), an Indian teepee and a canoe.   

 

Figure 53: Griffith Park Boys Camp.  View SW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007.   
 
The Griffith Park Boys Camp consists of 14 cabins, four restroom buildings, a 
larger scale main building, and a Directors house.  The buildings share an 
expressivist Modern design system informed by the earlier A. Quincy Jones Girls 
camp units located off of Canyon Drive.  All of the buildings appear to date from 
within the last 30 years.  Each of these buildings is one story, with a rhomboid 
plan.  Each building features triangular, low pitched angled roofs underscored by 
fascia molding and exposed beams.  The ridgeline of each gable is acclimated 
toward the corners of the building, making the various buildings appear diamond 
shaped.  Each elevation is clad in tongue and groove vertical wood bays painted 
the color of redwood, undulating with vertical stucco bays with one aluminum 
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slider window per bay.  At the corners of the cabins are vertical pylons of béton 
brut plank concrete.  The east elevation of the Boys Camp Main Building, which 
is larger and appears to be used for gatherings, contains bays entirely infilled 
with large, square glazing units framed in aluminum mullions.  Its west elevation 
features a wall primarily of irregular course boulders set into concrete.  Adjacent 
southeast of the camp complex is a square plan, grass-covered playing field.  Due 
immediately west of the camp complex is a rectangular-plan five-lane swimming 
pool, and low retaining wall of irregular course rubble set in mortar that appears 
to predate the camp buildings.  This wall, which is roughly 3 feet high, runs 
north-south toward its south end, where the wall conjoins with a stairway leading 
to the foundation of a pre-existing building.  Due south of the Boys Camp 
buildings, inset into a separate hillside enclave, is a row of concrete foundations, 
running east-west of former cabins that have since burned.  Elevated above this 
hill and due slightly westward from the abandoned foundations is a now 
abandoned concrete swimming pool, surrounded by a chain link fence and 
adjacent a small guard stand with a gabled roof clad in wood shingles.   

Griffith Park Drive Ctd. 

NYC Picnic Areas 

Due east of the Boys Camp, Griffith Park Drive continues east past the base of 
the hills due northeast of Bee Rock.  Off the southern shoulder of this stretch of 
Griffith Park Drive are three small picnic areas each cleared by the 
Neighborhood Youth Council (NYC).  Located off the west shoulder of Griffith 
Park Drive, moving from north to south, the first NYC picnic area (NYC 3) is a 
triangular grass pad with a small row of four wood posts at its northwest portion.  
The rear portion of NYC 3 terminates in a gully area away from the road.  The 
NYC 2 picnic area is an isosceles-shaped pad of mowed lawn, with its vertices 
away from the street, and terminating in a gully formed by two hillsides.  Parallel 
to the road, NYC 2 has two concrete benches, side by side, beneath two fully 
mature sycamore trees.  A modern steel beam L-shaped drinking fountain is 
present near these benches.  Two additional trees are symmetrically placed at 
either side of the middle portion of this picnic area.  The northern boundary of 
this picnic area is bordered by a row of cylindrical wood posts, above which is a 
dirt parking area.  The NYC 1 picnic area is an isosceles-triangle-shaped pad of 
mowed lawn that runs east west, and terminates into a gully between two hills.  
NYC 1 has three concrete picnic benches underneath two sycamore trees (Figure 
54).  A row of low wood posts border this picnic area along its north and south 
sides.   
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Figure 54:  NYC 1 Picnic Area.  View S.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Old Zoo Picnic Area 

The Griffith Park “Old Zoo” (Figure 55) is inset at the north-facing base of hills 
forming Spring Canyon below Old Zoo Trail.  The Old Zoo is a continuous row 
of semi-recessed cave-like spaces made of sculpted concrete designed to look 
like various over-sandstone boulders.  The design of the Old Zoo features a 
variety of asymmetrical, irregular arrangements of these boulders, which often 
appear to be protruding outward at their upper courses.  These caves read as 
integrated into the landscape and have a quality of a primitive or prehistoric 
construction.  These cave-like openings were for the various animals within 
various cages, and they vary in size and design from tall, narrow, flat-topped 
openings that are similar to a pedestrian entry to wider, lower round arched 
opening that were used for various animals.  Metal pulley wheels are present 
upon the rear elevations upon the southern-most of the zoo structures.   

 
Figure 55:  Old Zoo Picnic Area, Public Works Construction,  
c. 1932.  View SW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, July 2007.  
 
Set within the far northern niche, and present behind chain link fencing, is a low 
drinking fountain that is one piece of sculpted concrete.  This drinking fountain 
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features a swirling shaped base and a concrete step with aggregate rock in its 
tread.  This step is one continuous piece with the rest of the fountain, which 
overall has an organic, handmade quality.   

 
Figure 56:  Old Zoo Picnic Area, Public Works Construction,  
c.1932.  Drinking Fountain.  View SW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, July 2007.  
 
At either side of the Old Zoo are low walls in concrete of the same stylization as 
the Zoo structure itself—square cut irregular course concrete designed to look 
like sandstone boulders.  The northern edge wall above the caves features large 
undulating square cut concrete blocks that create a crenellation effect atop the 
wall.  The Old Zoo is fronted by a large, semi-circular picnic area covered with 
mowed lawn and featuring mature tree specimens and seven concrete picnic 
benches.  Old Zoo Trail runs directly behind the caves.  At the southern portion 
of the trail, east shoulder, are original metal fence poles with metal finials.  As 
the trail nears closer behind the Old Zoo, at either shoulder of it are low, park-
style barrier walls of irregular course rubble in mortar.  Additional zoo-related 
resources are present at either side of the trail.  At the southern portion of the 
trail, at its west shoulder, is a concrete base, single-story square-plan cage with 
thin metal vertical column bars and flat, metal horizontal members.  Due west of 
this cage on the opposite end of the trail is the former animal hospital building.  
This building is a square plan, single-story corrugated metal structure with a 
corrugated metal gabled roof underscored with exposed rafter tails.  Its front-
facing south elevation has three square window openings in a continuous row at 
its eastern portion, and one larger window bay at its western portion.  The rear 
elevation features a ribbon row of three square window bays, and a rectangular, 
square attic vent.  A clapboard clad lean-to with a pedestrian entry is affixed to 
the rear elevation, with a west facing entry that is currently door-less; the entire 
building is open and abandoned.  Due immediately west of this building is a 
concrete trough inset into the ground, and it is located next to a small rectangular 
plan concrete brick object that appears to have been a small animal house.  This 
object, which is no more than 4 feet off the ground, has a large, center opening at 
its south elevation.  Off of the south shoulder of Old Zoo Trail due slightly west 
of the zoo itself is the foundation remains of the former Zookeepers house 
(Figure 57).  This foundation is accessed by a small concrete stairwell off of the 
trail. The foundation is square plan, with the remains of a chimney at the east end 
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of it.  A scored concrete porch is still present in front of the foundation, as are 
remnants of pink square and yellow hexagon ceramic tile slabs within it.  

 
Figure 57:  Foundation of Zoo Keepers House above  
the Old Zoo, c.1914.  View SE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, July 2007.  

Wilson-Harding Turf Maintenance Facility 

The Wilson-Harding Turf Maintenance facility is a complex of 12 single-story, 
rectangular-plan buildings and structures acclimated northwest to southeast 
around a paved, central, rectangular open court (Figure 58).  The majority of the 
buildings are clad in corrugated metal painted evergreen, and have corrugated 
metal gabled roofs underscored with exposed wood rafter tails.  Though all of the 
structures are gabled, the gable acclimation varies from front to side gabled.  The 
majority of the structures at the upper/eastern row of this complex are sheds and 
garages, and have large, continuous open bays supported by metal columns that 
face the inner court.  Exposed wood trusses are visible inside the open faced, 
eastern row of buildings and structures.  Carriage-style doors are part of their 
design.  The majority of the buildings at the lower/western row are fully 
enclosed, and at present serve as offices.  Many buildings still possess their 
original wood doors, each of five panels.  The west-facing rear elevations of the 
south row of buildings feature 4/4 woodframe windows.  Two front gabled auto 
garage structures are also present along the south row, though they are due 
slightly west, outside of the court.  One of these garages is of smooth stucco and 
the garage due west of it is of wood clapboard.  The garage bay occupies the 
entire length of each front elevation, and each garage door is a single panel wood 
door.   
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Figure 58:  Wilson Harding Turf Maintenance  
Facility (Former Ranger’s Headquarters).  View N.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, July 2007 
 
A corrugated metal, gable roofed, open-sided structure is located at the southern 
portion of the paved court and appears to have been an early filling station 
(Figure 59).  Due south of this structure, at the far south end of the complex, is an 
L-plan cross gabled building, also clad in corrugated metal, that has an off-center 
entry at its north-west, front gabled elevation.  This entry door is fronted by a 
two-panel woodframe screen door that appears to be original.  A gabled square 
plan, corrugate metal cupola straddles the ridgeline of the roof above the entry.  
Mature tree specimens surround the Wilson-Harding Turf Maintenance Facility.     

 
Figure 59:  Service Station within Turf Maintenance Facility   
View S.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007 

Park Center 

Park Center is a large, semi-circular grassy area that elevates slightly as it 
ascends toward the hills south and west of it.  The southern portion of Park 
Center features four tennis courts enclosed by chain link fencing covered in green 
nylon cloth, and surrounded by mature tree specimens.  A small, rectangular plan 
kiosk with wood board and batten cladding and a pitch roof is located slightly up-
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grade immediately south of the tennis courts.  At present this kiosk is surrounded 
by chain link fencing.  A sign at its west facing front elevation reads “pony ride.”  
This kiosk appears to be abandoned.  Immediately north of it is an abandoned 
pony-go-round apparatus of steel pipe and chain.  Immediately west of the tennis 
courts is a rectangular plan, single-story bathroom structure of cinder block with 
a flat roof underscored by a ribbed row of horizontally acclimated clerestory 
windows at its east-facing rear and west facing front elevation.  Exposed 
horizontal beams protrude out from the clerestory windows at the west facing 
front elevation.  The front elevation of this restroom structure faces west and 
features structural partitions at either end which one enters behind to access the 
restrooms.  Immediately west of the tennis courts and uphill, across a single lane 
service road is the Griffith Park Merry-Go-Round (Figure 60).  

 
Figure 60:  Merry-Go-Round.  View NW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

The merry-go-round is a four abreast, all horse Spillman type carousel.  It 
features early horse sculptures believed to have been carved by carousel pioneer 
Charles Looff in the 1880s, and these horses are elevated slightly higher than the 
others.  The merry-go-round is inset into a nook surrounded by steep grass 
berms.  Directly above it is a parking area that traverses north-south.  A second 
parking lot is located above Park Center due north and slightly down grade of the 
previous parking lot.  This second lot, which is called “Merry Go Round Lot 2,” 
is rectangular plan and features later boulder wall elements with concrete 
stairwells set into them.  These stairs, located at the northern portion of the lot, 
lead downward into the park.     

In the middle, upper portion of Park Center are two structures.  One is a square-
plan, single-story structure of painted cinderblock, and a flat roof underscored by 
a wood inset fascia.  This structure, which is done in a Modern style, was 
originally constructed in 1954 as a “Seal Show” exhibit, as early construction 
plans identify the building as such (Figure 61).  The front elevation of this 
structure faces south, and contains an inset concrete stage.   
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Figure 61: Park Center: Seal Show Building, 1954.  View NW.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007 
 
Due north of the seal show is a small-scale, rectangular-plan single-story 
bathroom building with stucco clad walls.  The gabled roof is underscored with 
exposed wood rafter tails with rounded edges and is clad in asphalt shingle.  One 
bathroom entry is present at each gable end; men at the south gable and women 
at the north gable.  In the apex above each entry are three ceramic, circular 
openings in a triangle formation that serve as attic vents.  Each entry features a 
single leaf wood door with a small security window.  The lengthwise side 
elevations feature symmetrically placed paired window bays with each window 
covered with decorative metal security bar in a diamond pattern (Figure 62).  A 
wood lintel tops each pair of windows as well as each door, each of which is 
fronted by an enclosure of wood plank.    

 
Figure 62:  Park Center: Restroom Facility.  View E.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007 
 
In Park Center a long, continuous row of 21 concrete picnic tables runs roughly 
north-south in the area just east of the above-mentioned resources.  These picnic 
tables are set between two rows of mature sycamore trees that are, at present, 
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roughly 50 feet tall.  A second long, continuous row of 12 picnic tables is located 
just south east of the Park Center tennis courts, near the southern edge of Park 
Center.  Each of these picnic tables is of smooth concrete stained orange.  The 
table and benches are each of one affixed unit.  The City of Los Angeles 
Department of Recreation and Parks insignia is present in a circle at the support 
base of the table.  These picnic tables as well are located between two rows of 
mature sycamore trees.  

In the middle, northern portion of Park Center is an irregular plan, single-story 
building that serves as the Park Services Building (Figure 63).  This building, 
which dates from circa 1937, is house-like, and features a variety of Spanish 
Revival elements.  This building is clad in stucco with the front entry facing 
south.  The front-gabled apex above the entry has molding and two circular 
protruding openings, one placed over the other, that serve as an attic vent.  The 
entry doors are a pair of single leaf wood units.  The entry is slightly recessed, 
and is topped by a wood lintel.  One window bay is present at either side of the 
entry and each of these window units is topped by a long, wood plank lintel, and 
each is underscored with T-111 siding.  A slightly elevated porch with scored 
concrete and fireflash tile is present in front of the entry.  A second entry to the 
building faces east, and is inset inside a small covered porch with a shed roof 
supported by wood posts.  The door at this entry is a single leaf wood door with a 
small window at its upper portion.  This window features a security bar covering 
of wrought iron in a simple lattice pattern.  A large enclosure is present behind 
the north/rear elevation of this resource.  

 
Figure 63: Park Center, Park Services Building,  
c. 1927.  View N.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, July 2007.  
 
Directly west above the Park Services building is “Shane’s Inspiration,” a 
sprawling complex of various types of playground equipment all designed to be 
fully accessible by the disabled (Figure 64).  
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Figure 64: Park Center: Shane’s Inspiration Universally  
Accessible Playground.  View W.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007.  
 
At the upper, western portion of Shane’s Inspiration is a rectangular plan 
restroom structure of multi-colored cinderblock done in the postmodern style.  
This structure features variegated massing including small, square planed tower 
components with steep, standing seam metal pyramidal cupolas.  Aluminum 
milled attic vents underscore each of these cupolas.  Angled walls are juxtaposed 
with flat walls across all four elevations, and each plane is of a different color 
than that adjacent to it.  Shane’s Inspiration was built within the last 15 years and 
is not a contributor to the historic significance of Griffith Park.  An arm of Park 
Center extends the southwest arm of Shane’s Inspiration and it features various 
concrete picnic benches, including an abstract, Modern style concrete bench with 
beveled sides.  The benches to these are trapezoidal in shape, with some half-
length of the tables and others full-length.  This picnic area extends westward 
into a small, hilled gully.  

After Park Center, Griffith Park Drive continues southeast for roughly 1 mile at 
the perimeter of the central, hilly portion of the Park before coming to a turn-off 
for the Marty Tregnan Golf Academy.   

The Marty Tregnan Golf Academy 

The Marty Tregnan Golf Academy is a junior golf center located up the hill from 
the southeastern section of Griffith Park Drive (Figure 65).  The driveway 
contains a small stone and concrete wall that has been painted.  The wall is 
replicated at the top of the hill, with a large retaining wall that diminishes into the 
smaller wall bordering the parking lot.  The maintenance building north of the 
parking lot has a one-story, rectangular plan with a concrete foundation.  There is 
vertical wood siding with two, symmetrically located, roll-up garage doors that 
have inset wood panels.  The building has a pitched roof with composition 
shingles and a belt course that runs around the building, located at the top of the 
wood frame garages. 
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Figure 65: Marty Tregnan Golf Academy.  View NW.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, November 2007  
 
The Golf Academy building is new construction that is one-story and situated 
above the retaining wall.  The concrete stairs and ramp leading to the building 
have a brick memorial dedicated to the people who helped finance the Academy 
and structures.  It is composed of stucco with tinted, single pane, side-by-side 
windows on the east and west elevations.  The north elevation, which faces the 
driving range, has an embedded arcade supported by columns with a central 
tinted glass window.  The west elevation, that faces the putting range, has a 
stucco porch with supporting columns and gable roof.  There is an extended 
metal porch with a flat roof and metal poles located south of the gabled porch.  
Picnic tables and benches are located underneath the metal porch.  The roof of 
the entire building is pitched with Spanish tiles. 

The Golf Facility is on a downward sloping landscape to the south.  It is 
comprised of a driving range to the north of the Academy building and a small 
putting green in between the driving range and building.  To the south, west, and 
northwest of the building are three holes, in which small sand traps are located 
around the putting green of each hole.      

Amenities and Areas due east and north of the Los 
Angeles River  

A portion of State Route 134 is within the historic boundary of Griffith Park and 
parallels the Los Angeles River where it runs east-west.  Where the river turns 
southward, the section of it against Griffith Park is now paralleled by the 
Interstate 5 freeway, which is due west of the river and is set within Griffith Park.  
Interstate 5 and State Route 134 read as the physical east and north boundaries of 
Griffith Park.  The vast majority of the park is due southwest of these two 
freeways. However, there are smaller portions of the park with various resources 
located on the opposite side of both the 5 and the 134 freeways near to the 
communities of Atwater, Glendale, and Burbank.  Historically, Griffith Park not 
only abutted the Los Angeles River, but also traversed it due north and east.  
Beginning at the southeast corner of Griffith Park and running north, and then 
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westerly, the following areas are contained within Griffith Park but are located at 
either the east or north sides of the Los Angeles River.  

The Baum Bicycle Bridge is present over Los Feliz Boulevard, between the Los 
Angeles River and Interstate 5 (Figure 66).  The bridge is composed of concrete 
and metal with a large metal circle through which one rides at each end done in 
the style of a spoked bicycle wheel.  The bicycle tire theme is expressed through 
a small metal balustrade on top of the concrete sides, and again on the larger 
balustrade on the ramp leading up to the large, decorative circles.   

 
Figure 66:  Baum Bicycle Bridge.  View E.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, November 2007 

Los Feliz Boulevard 
Los Feliz Golf Course 

East of Interstate 5 and the Los Angeles River is the Los Feliz Golf Course 
(Figure 67).  This 9-hole Special “Pitch and Putt” course is accessed via Los 
Feliz Boulevard, and runs parallel against the Los Angeles River.  The course is a 
Par 3, which spans 1,065 yards, and includes a small putting green near the 
southwest corner.  The landscape consists of low rolling hills with maple and 
pine trees.  In addition, there are a few wooden benches placed on the course, as 
well as very small auxiliary structures that are rectangular sheds composed of 
wood with a central door, or a larger shed with double wood doors.   
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Figure 67:  Los Feliz Pitch and Putt Golf Course.  View N.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, November 2007  
 
Set within the Los Feliz Golf Course, the Los Feliz Café was constructed in 1948 
by transforming a Quonset hut (Figure 68).  Although the exterior does not 
portray this building style, the interior contains the barrel vaulted supports.  The 
building is one-story and has large window panes that slant upward and to the 
exterior.  There is a stone water table and two brick pillars that surround the glass 
door that faces west, to the parking lot.  There is a concrete extension of the 
building to the west, along Los Feliz Boulevard, that has raised side-by-side 
single pane windows with decorative, applied security bars.  The west side of the 
building has a concrete patio with wood canopy to the north and newer concrete 
and metal fence.  In front of the Los Feliz Café is a 1950s-era pole sign with the 
word “EAT” in block lettering highlighted in neon and set upon a rectangular 
backing.  Immediately beside it is an intact, early 1950s era backlit pole sign for 
the course itself (Figures 69 and 70).  

 

 
Figure 68:  Los Feliz Café.  View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, November 2007  
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Figure 69: “EAT” neon pole sign at Los Feliz Café,  
Los Feliz Golf Course. C.1956.  View SW.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  
 
 

 
Figure 70: Los Feliz Golf Course backlit pole sign, c. 1960.  
View S.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  
 
Within the Los Feliz Golf Course there is an auxiliary building facing the Los 
Feliz Café used to store landscaping and maintenance equipment.  It is one-story, 
rectangular in plan, with a flat roof.  The building contains board-and-batten 
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siding, as well as a garage and metal door.  A square-plan, single-story, tongue-
and-groove-clad check-in kiosk is also located southwest of the Los Feliz Café 
(Figure 71).  This check-in kiosk is mid-century vernacular in design, and has a 
pitched roof that cantilevers out as an overhang.  This roof is underscored with 
stylized fascia boards that wrap around the rear elevation of the building.  

 
Figure 71: Los Feliz Pitch and Putt: Kiosk.  View W. 
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, November 2007 
 
There is parking for the facility adjacent to the Boulevard and River in a small, 
paved lot.  A small circa 1955 golf shop building is present that features a slanted 
roofline with exaggerated, metal roof line and German clapboard siding.  The 
building resides on a concrete foundation and has aluminum encased windows on 
the main (north), west, and east elevations with security bars.  Below the 
windows is a projecting water table that has a small top surface where it meets 
with the windows. 

Chevy Chase Drive 
North Atwater Park 

Directly above the Los Feliz Golf Course are private equestrian facilities that are 
not part of Griffith Park.  Located off of Chevy Chase Drive, above these 
facilities is North Atwater Park (Figure 72).  North Atwater Park is a small, 
rectangular section of Griffith Park east of Interstate 5 and the Los Angeles 
River, where it is classified as the Griffith-Metro Region.  The northern side has 
two large concrete circles within the ground that contain sand and playground 
equipment within one, and the other is in-filled with brick and contains different 
heights of large column structures.  Directly south of the concrete circles is a 
bathroom building that is one-story, rectangular in plan.  It is composed of metal 
and concrete siding with a cast concrete foundation and pitched roof with 
composition shingles.  There are inset doorways on the north and south 
elevations and series of raised open-air metal screens that are located on all 
elevations.  There are flower boxes surrounding the building.  To the south and 
west of the bathroom building is predominantly flat, grassy landscape that has 
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pine and maple trees, as well as picnic benches.  To the south of the park area are 
basketball courts, small baseball field, and a metal water fountain.  

 
Figure 72.  North Atwater Park.  View S. Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, November 2007   

Griffith Park Central Service Yard 

Directly north of North Atwater Park is the Griffith Park Central Service Yard.   
The Griffith Park Central Service Yard is a trapezoidal piece of land that is 
located adjacent to Interstate 5 on the east and directly north of North Atwater 
Park.  The area that encompasses the Central Service Yard is 27.55 acres and 
contains an asphalt ground surface with sections designated for different 
departments, in which each division has a main building and designated area for 
storing temporary structures, machinery, and vehicles.  The main access into the 
yard is via Chevy Chase Drive, where the entrance into the Central Service Yard 
is through a security booth.  It is a one-story, small square structure that has a 
large roof overhang, which is flat.  The building resides on a concrete foundation, 
with a concrete water table that is fluted and large single-pane windows above.  
There are two metal doors with a glass transom on the east and west elevations.  
The road extends north, through the yard, where after passing the security booth 
there is a warehouse directly to the west.  It is a one-story, rectangular-plan 
building on a concrete foundation.  The elevations are composed of corrugated 
metal with metal doors and a flat metal roof.  The windows are metal casement 
and double metal encased with concrete lower sills.  Directly north of the 
warehouse is a parking lot and fenced-in area that holds temporary storage 
structures.  To the north is a one-story, rectangular building that holds the 
Equipment Division.  It has a concrete foundation, vertical wood siding, metal 
encased windows in a wood frame, and a flat roof.  The building has a front 
porch with wood supports that faces north.  Directly east of the small building is 
a larger concrete warehouse.  It is a tall one-story building used in conjunction 
with the Division’s administrative building.  

Off the main road to the east is a trailer that holds the Golf Division.  It is a 
rectangular building composed of vertical wood siding and metal encased 
windows within a wood frame.  There is a concrete foundation, flat roof, and 
wooden front porch that looks north.   
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Continuing north on the road, there is a large office administration building for 
the Department of City Wide Construction (Figures 73 and 74).   The building 
has a T-shape, where the cross of the T is two stories and the extension is one-
story.  The structure has a concrete foundation, water table, and flat roof.  It 
features large single pane windows that are side-by-side on each elevation.  This 
is the largest office building within the central Service Yard and the most 
architecturally defined.  This building is done in a Mid-Century Modern design 
and features a generous use of large-scale glass windows in continuous 
horizontal ribbons; a flat roofed car canopy; and an extended second level with 
large glazing units fronted by metal, decorative screens with a repeating circle 
pattern.  The planters around this building are done in the park style, though they 
appear to be from the late 1950s, like the building itself.   

 

 
Figure 73:  Central Service Yard, administration building, 1958.   
View SE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, November 2007   
 
 

 
Figure 74.  Central Service Yard, administration building, 1958.  
View S.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, November 2007  
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To the east of the Construction Department, across the street, is a larger 
warehouse and administrative building.  It has single pane windows on the 
northeast corner, where the elevations primarily consist of concrete with roll-up 
garage doors.  The majority of the north elevation contains a concrete loading 
dock.  To the north of the buildings are two large warehouses that lie before the 
northern boundary of the property.  They are tall one-stories, rectangular in plan 
on a concrete foundation.  The eastern warehouse is composed of corrugated 
metal east and west elevations, with concrete elevations on the north and south.  
There are metal doors, roll-up garage doors, and a flat roof.  The building 
features a series of side-by-side garages, with no garage doors, on the west 
elevation.  The east elevation has a downward slanting porch roof, composed of 
metal, which provides shelter for the loading dock.   

The western warehouse has concrete elevations and clerestory hopper windows.  
It contains a large roof overhang on the eastern elevation, with metal supports, 
that provides shelter for the series of garages with roll-up doors.  On the south 
elevation is an extended concrete porch that is a filling station.  To the west of 
this garage is a tall metal structure that provides shelter to equipment stored 
outside.  It has metal supports and a pitched roof of corrugated metal.  

The northeastern corner of the yard is a fenced in area that holds equipment and 
temporary storing facilities.  To the south, is a trailer that holds the Park Safety 
Officer Program.  It has corrugated metal elevations, wood skirt, and a concrete 
ramp to the main door on the south with wood barrier wall.  It has metal encased 
double windows with security bars on the south elevation and a metal door.  The 
trailer faces a rectangular parking lot that extends towards the southern boundary.  
Southeast of the Park Ranger Division is a trailer that faced west.  It is a single-
wide with vertical wood siding, metal encased windows with security bars, a 
small front porch stoop of wood, and a low barrel vaulted roof.  To the south of 
this trailer is a large warehouse building for the Metro Region Green Machine 
Landscape and Support Division that is the oldest in the yard, and dates from the 
middle to late 1950s.  It is two joined buildings, each with a pitched roof and 
elevations of corrugated metal.  They are rectangular in plan with metal doors, 
where the main entrance is on the south.  The west elevation contains the 
concrete loading dock with roll-up garage doors.   

Riverside Drive Resources North of the Los Angeles 
River 

The remaining resources associated with Griffith Park on the other side of the 
Los Angeles River are those that are due north of the 134 freeway and the river 
itself.  These resources include the Bette Davis Picnic Area, the Los Angeles 
Equestrian center, and an open natural, flatlands area called the “Pollywog.”  All 
three of these areas are located off of Riverside Drive where Riverside Drive runs 
north of Griffith Park.  



 
Griffith Park Description  

63 
January 2008

 

The Bette Davis Picnic Area is bordered by the Los Angeles River and 134 
Highway to the south and Rancho Avenue to the north with a portion of it 
spanning Riverside Drive (Figure 75).  This picnic landscape is a predominantly 
flat area abundant with sycamore, ash, oak, and mulberry trees.  There are several 
concrete picnic tables throughout the park.  To the west of the grassy park is a 
large dirt area that is used by the equestrian center.  The dirt area is adjacent to 
the Los Angeles River, with access to the equestrian center via a small concrete 
bridge.  It has short, rounded concrete pillars that are joined by a wood balustrade 
and a metal fence extends from the outer sides for precaution. 

 
Figure 75: Bette Davis Picnic Area. View SE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Across from the Los Angeles River to the south, by the 134 Highway, is a one-
story, rectangular plan residence that is upon the Griffith Park property.  It is 
composed of stucco with a pitched roof with composition shingles.  There is an 
inset front porch on the east elevation, vinyl windows, and a picket fence.  The 
immediate area contains maintenance equipment.  This property may be a 
caretakers or workers house, and is not readily accessible.  Within the Bette 
Davis Picnic Area, near the 134 Highway and Riverside Drive, is a one-story 
rectangular-plan building, which is a restroom facility.  It is composed of brick 
running course with side inset entrances to the east and west, metal doors, and a 
flat roof.  Within this area of the park is a small drinking fountain composed of 
stone.  There are concrete water drainage tunnels running below the highway.  
Across Riverside Drive due northeast, the picnic area continues with sycamore 
and maple trees.  Within this section there is a park building that is one-story, 
rectangular in plan, and has a cast concrete foundation.  There is clapboard siding 
with wood vents and a vertical wood sliding door.  The roof is pitched with 
exposed rafter ends and is composed of composition shingles.  There is an 
additional building, which is smaller in scale.  It is one-story, rectangular plan, 
with a pitched roof of composition shingles.  The building has clapboard siding, 
three one-pane windows side-by-side on the gable ends, and a double metal doors 
on the other elevations.  It has a concrete foundation, and there are screens 
underneath the roof pitch on the gable ends.  The building holds a piece of 
equipment and is connected with an exterior piece of equipment that is fenced in, 
adjacent to the building.  The Bette Davis Picnic Area runs westbound in a 
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fashion parallel to the Los Angeles River, until it crosses a creek and then 
conjoins with the Los Angeles Equestrian Center.  

The Los Angeles Equestrian Center 

The Los Angeles Equestrian Center is a large equestrian complex located 
immediately north of the 134 Highway.  The siteplan is semi-circular, with a 
main entrance off of Riverside Drive, entering into the complex due south. 
Except for one structure to be described below, the Equestrian Center dates from 
the mid-1980s, which is well beyond the period of significance for purposes of 
this nomination. However, this area has historically been used for equestrian 
related activities.  The northern section of the Equestrian Center is open to the 
public; however, the southern stables and western office area are private.  The 
entrance to the center is accessed to the north through a large entry way structure 
that has a concrete foundation and horizontal wood siding.  The shape of the 
structure mimics a stable with the double pitched roof.   

Directly south of the entrance is a one-story house that is rectangular in plan 
(Figure 76).  The building has board and batten siding, wood frame windows, and 
four pane French doors.  There is a gable on hipped roof with composition 
shingles.  There is a stone chimney near the north elevation, and an overhang 
porch on the primary, east elevation.  There is a concrete foundation with an 
original, protruding addition on the north elevation.  This building dates from the 
1930s and originally served as a Cricket Clubhouse. The chimney appears to be a 
later reconstruction.  

 
Figure 76:  Equestrian center: Former Cricket House, c.1933.  
View NW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, November 2007  
 
Inside the complex to the left is a paddock used to show horses with bleachers 
located adjacent to Riverside Drive.  Directly to the south is a parking lot 
accessed off of the main road.  To the south, across from a parking lot, is a 
bathroom structure that is small, one-story, and rectangular in plan.  There is a 
concrete foundation with clapboard siding and a flat roof with asphalt covering.  
There are inset doors on the east and west elevations that lead to interior 
bathrooms.  The same building is replicated on the south side of the Equidome.  
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Directly south of the bathrooms is a very large open air building, the Equidome, 
that is used as a showing facility.  It is a concrete supported structure with 
horizontal wood veneer on the exterior elevations.  There is a pitched roof of 
corrugated metal with barrel vaulting concrete supports displayed from the 
interior.  There is individual stadium seating surrounding a centered showing ring 
with a dirt floor.  The exterior of the building is above elevation on the north and 
south elevations, where concrete steps and metal railing lead to the pedestrian 
walkways.   

To the east of the Equidome, following the parking lot, is a small building used 
as a horse rental facility.  The building is one-story, rectangular in plan.  The 
trailer is raised from the ground and composed of wood logs that resemble a log 
cabin.  There are two aluminum windows in a wood frame, where one window is 
slightly arched.  In between the windows is an offset wood door.  The roof is 
pitched with a corrugated metal roof.  Surrounding the building to the south and 
west is a series of outdoor stables covered with metal structures that have a 
pitched roof or corrugated metal.  The landscape surrounding the stables is flat 
and composed of dirt.  Southeast of the Equidome is a series of 11-horse stables 
surrounded by a flat, dirt landscape.  The stables are one-story, rectangular in 
plan.  They have horizontal wood siding with vertical wood paneled doors.  The 
buildings are open-air with a low pitched roof with corrugated metal.  Only one 
of the 10 stables is different, composed solely of metal with a tarp roof and lower 
section of the sliding metal stable doors.  Plywood is also used on this stable on 
the gable ends and on the lower portion of each stall.   

A building directly south of the Equidome is a one-story, rectangular-plan 
structure called La Cantina.  It is a concession stand that has a concrete 
foundation and is composed of clapboarding.  There are two inset window bays 
on the south, main, elevation that have a series of aluminum encased windows 
with a tile water table.  There is a flat roof with an added roof structure that has a 
mansard roof and projecting, central sign.  Directly south of the south side 
bathrooms is a row of three buildings.  The far south structure holds Dominion 
Saddlery, which is a two-story building that has a rectangular plan.  There is a 
large inset in the center of the building on the first floor that has vertical wood 
siding veneer to the south and corrugated metal to the north.  The structure is 
composed of plywood encased with metal.  Aluminum encased metals are 
present as is double pitched roof composed of corrugated metal with a wood 
cupola.   

The central building is a concession stand that is one story in an L-shape plan.  It 
has a concrete foundation and patio, vertical wood siding around the concession 
area and board and batten siding on the northern section of the building.  Wood 
frames that hold metal encased screens are present.  There is a metal door to enter 
the concession stand and a tilt-up garage door on the west elevation.  The north 
building holds the veterinarian offices.  It is a one-story trailer rectangular in plan 
and raised from the ground.  It contains vertical wood siding with a plywood 
skirt.  The windows are vinyl, six-over-six in a wood frame.  This resource 
possesses a flat roof plus metal doors and stairs.  To the west of the 
aforementioned buildings are two separate dirt rings that are encased with 
concrete block.  To the south of these buildings is a series of horse jumping rings 
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that span across the majority of land adjacent to the 134 Highway.  West of the 
Equidome is the Los Angeles Equestrian Center building, which is one-story and 
U-shaped in plan.  The large structure houses “Calamigos,” a restaurant that 
holds private parties; gift shops, restrooms, box office, and the center offices.  It 
has a concrete foundation and porch, which is covered from the extended roof 
line and supported by wood supports, that wraps around the inner and western 
sections of the U shape.  The entire building has clapboard siding, wood frame 
windows that are side-by-side, and wood and glass doors with four pane 
transoms.  However, the central section of the building has been modernized with 
large, tinted glass encased by metal on the west elevation, which includes the 
doors.  The interior has been renovated as well.  The roof on the entire building is 
gable-on-hipped with composition shingles.  The Equestrian Center building can 
also be accessed via car through the main road within the complex.  Before the 
parking lot within the U shape of the building is accessed, a square plan, one 
story information booth is present.   It has a cross gabled roof with composition 
shingles.  The building is composed of clapboard siding with wood frame 
windows that are 16 pane to the north, four pane with four pane central window 
with four pane fanlights, and a wood paneled and glass door to the south.  
Another booth is placed after passing the Equestrian Center building.   

West of the main access road is a series of three large stables.  They are one-
story, rectangular in plan, with horizontal wood siding on the first floor, vertical 
wood siding under the gable ends, and wood vents on the gable ends.  The roofs 
are double pitched with corrugated metal.  The buildings are open-air stables, 
where there are three rows of stalls, two of which are accessed via the north and 
south on the porch that has metal supports.  There are two, large interior halls 
that are accessed by the gable ends.  In between the three stables are two 
bathrooms lined on the east.  They are one-story, rectangular in plan, with a 
concrete foundation.  The building is composed of newer concrete block with a 
slightly slanted roof line that has overhanging eaves to the east and west, with 
exposed rafter ends.  This building features inset entrances to the north and south 
with metal doors.   

To the west of the two bathrooms are outdoor training areas separated by metal 
fencing.  To the west of these facilities are temporary storage facilities composed 
of vinyl siding.  Off of Mariposa Street, which is the western edge of the 
complex, is a private access road that holds a large parking lot.  Within this area 
is a series of trailers that are single- or double-wide, one-story, rectangular in 
plan, with horizontal wood siding.  Some structures have flat or barrel vaulted 
roofs, corrugated metal skirts, metal doors, aluminum encased or vinyl windows, 
and metal stairs leading to the raised door.  To the south of the parking lot is a 
one-story office building that has a long, rectangular plan.  The main entrance 
faces the parking lot, north, with large panes of glass used as windows and doors.  
The elevations are composed of brick to the east, and an extended western 
section is concrete.  The building resides on a concrete foundation and has a flat 
roof with concrete overhang.  There is a one-story house composed of stucco 
located adjacent to Mariposa Street, north of the parking lot.  It has a hipped roof 
and single pane windows only located on the eastern, projecting bay.  The entire 
equestrian center appears to have been constructed after the period of 
significance, with the majority of the buildings constructed in the 1980s.  
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The Pollywog 

Due west of the Equestrian Center upon Riverside Drive is a trapezoidal area of 
largely flatlands called the Pollywog (Figure 77).  The pollywog is unique to 
Griffith Park as a flatlands area that is not covered with mowed lawn.  The 
occasional tree specimen is present in the pollywog, as are various unofficial 
horse and pedestrian trails. 

 
Figure 77:  Pollywog.  View E.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, November 2007  

Griffith Park: Southern Portion Amenities 
The southern portion of Griffith Park is set directly behind the neighborhoods of 
Los Feliz and Hollywood Hills.  The primary amenities at the southern portion 
are initially accessed by three separate roads: Vermont Canyon Road, Fern Dell 
Drive, and Canyon Drive.  Commonwealth Canyon Drive, off which are the 
Vermont Tennis Courts, the Roosevelt Municipal Golf Course, and the Nursery 
and Horticultural Center, is located off of Vermont Canyon Road.  

Vermont Canyon Road 
Entrance into the park from Vermont Canyon Road is through a wide pass up a 
hill, which winds past the Bird Sanctuary to access the Observatory at the peak of 
the hill. This section of Griffith park begins well north of Los Feliz Bloulevard, 
behind a residential community of hillside single family residences constructed 
primarily between the 1920s and the 1950s.  Within Griffith park, off of Vermont 
Canyon Road due east, the Roosevelt Municipal Golf Course is a Par 33, 9-hole 
course that covers 2,400 yards (Figure 78).  
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Figure 78: Roosevelt Municipal Golf Course, 1966.  View S.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2006.  

 The course was developed in 1966, which is after the period of significance for 
Griffith Park. The course is bordered by Commonwealth Canyon Drive to the 
north and east, Vermont Canyon Road to the west, and the southern border of the 
Park that is buffered by a residential area.  The landscape consists of large rolling 
hills with some grouping of natural vegetation and several pine and oak trees.  
Aside from wood benches, the only structure on the course is a small, one-story 
restroom facility of newer construction.  The building is composed of concrete 
block with clerestory window frames that contain metal screens.  The roof has a 
medium-pitch with composition shingles and overhanging eaves.  There are door 
frames on the north and south elevations for the respective bathrooms, and 
attached water fountains on the east and west elevations.  The Roosevelt 
café/golf shop is a one-story building square in plan (Figure 79).   

 
Figure 79: Roosevelt Café, c.1967.  View S.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes,  
October 2007  
 
The café and golf shop are separate rectangular buildings connected with a wood 
canopy and concrete patio that has picnic tables.  Both structures are extremely 



 
Griffith Park Description  

69 
January 2008

 

similar in design; however, the golf shop is smaller in scale.  The buildings have 
a concrete foundation with vertical wood siding.  The golf shop has a flat roof, 
and the café roof is flat with a combination of a very low pitch.  There are 
aluminum framed windows and metal doors.  The west, Vermont Street, side of 
the building has a wood patio and fence.  Roosevelt Golf Course auxiliary 
structures are located north of the golf shop and café.  There are three small, 
rectangular sheds that have a flat, corrugated metal roof and wood doors.  Within 
the same area there is a wood structure that has a pitched roof with composition 
shingles.  It is supported with wood columns.     

Vermont Canyon Road → Boy Scout Road 
Boy Scout Road is a small spur road off of Vermont Canyon Road due west, 
across the street from the Roosevelt Golf Course amenities and entrance.  A one-
story and rectangular-plan restroom building is present at the southwest corner of 
Boy Scout and Vermont Canyon Roads.  It has a pitched roof with composition 
shingles and a concrete foundation and patio.  The gable ends are wood framed 
with mesh nets underneath the pitch of the gables.  Surrounding the building are 
wood supports of a pergola.  This building has entrances on the east and west 
elevations.  Water fountains are attached to the south elevation.  This building 
appears to be recent.  A cleared picnic area with picnic tables is present off the 
north shoulder of Boy Scout Road, as is a small concrete amphitheater (Figure 
80).  

  
Figure 80: Amphitheater off of Boy Scout Road. View N.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  
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Vermont Canyon Road → Commonwealth Canyon 
Drive 

Commonwealth Canyon Drive is located directly above the Roosevelt Café and 
Golf Shop and below the Greek Theatre.  Commonwealth Canyon Road runs 
eastward, above the Roosevelt Municipal Golf Course and down past the Griffith 
Park Nursery and Horticultural Center.  Above the Roosevelt Golf Course off of 
Commonwealth Canyon Drive are the Vermont Tennis Courts (Figure 81).  The 
Vermont Tennis Courts are three sets of four tennis courts located north of the 
Roosevelt Golf Course, just north of Commonwealth Canyon Drive.  These 
tennis courts are set upon bases of park-style irregular course boulder work 
embedded in masonry.  Directly south of the courts is the reservation booth 
building, which is one-story and rectangular in plan.  It has a concrete foundation 
and patio with stucco siding and wood veneer.  It has a flat roof and wood 
canopy extending to the north.  An aluminum sliding window is present on the 
west elevation.  A shed that has a gambrel roof with composition shingles is 
present to the north of the building.  It is a small one-story, rectangular-plan 
structure that has vertical wood siding and a double wood door.  It is placed on 
concrete blocks.  A wood structure is placed in between courts, adjacent to the 
walkway.  It has a pitched roof of corrugated metal.  North of the courts is a one-
story rectangular-plan building that contains bathrooms.  It has a concrete 
foundation and stucco siding.  There are raised one pane windows side-by-side in 
a metal frame.  The roof is pitched with extended eaves and composition 
shingles.  The gable ends contain a wood door and vents underneath the pitch of 
the roof.     

 
Figure 81:  Entrance Stairs to Vermont Tennis Courts.   
View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007.  

Griffith Park Nursery and Horticultural Center 
(Commonwealth Nursery)  

The Commonwealth Nursery is inset into the natural terrain of the southeast 
section of Griffith Park, located immediately south and below grade of Vista Del 
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Valle Drive, and immediately east off Commonwealth Canyon Drive, where the 
nursery complex is accessed via a small, unpaved road.  Located off the west side 
of this access road the first structure associated with the nursery is the Nursery 
Caretakers House.  The Nursery Caretakers House is a one-story rectangular-plan 
building with stucco cladding.  There are vinyl and aluminum windows, lunette 
attic vents, and two overlapping gables with composition shingles.  A detached 
garage is present behind the residence, and its 2-car garage entry is covered with 
a recent, metal roll-up door.  This residence, which was originally done in the 
Spanish Revival design, was constructed in 1927, and has lost its integrity due to 
exterior alterations.  Due north of the Nursery Caretaker’s House, on the same 
side of the access road, is a small but overgrown clearing among mature tree 
specimens that contains a picnic area dating from the 1930s (Figure 82).  This 
picnic area is set upon a platform of smooth, molded edged concrete at its lowest 
course, rusticated, SCR-scaled, square-cut concrete block in its centered courses 
and topped by a smooth concrete floor with square edge molding.  Cut into this 
base are two wide stairways consisting of molded concrete lower stairs and 
rusticated concrete block upper stairs.  A recent, metal picnic table is present 
upon this base, and is barely discernible behind an overgrown oak tree.  Across 
this access road due east and north of the residence is the nursery complex itself, 
which is divided into three parts: an upper section consisting of parking areas and 
two long, attached buildings; a middle section consisting of garden plots and 
greenhouses; and a lower section, consisting primarily of temporary and recent 
structures around a blacktopped auto court.   

 
Figure 82:  Picnic Area near Nursery, c. 1934.  View NW. 
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007.  
 
The upper section of the nursery complex is accessed by the service road, which 
turns easterly and ends at the eastern edge of the nursery.  At the southern 
shoulder of the service road is a row of parking spaces that traverses the length of 
the nursery.  At the upper portion of the service road are two early buildings, 
both horizontally acclimated, and connected to one another.  The most westerly 
of these is the Nursery Office and Locker Room building (Figure 83).  This 
building is one-story and is side-gabled, with stucco cladding.  This building 
consists of two components.  The west-end component is slightly recessed and its 
front elevation consists of five adjacent bays, four of which are large, 4/4 
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woodframe double hung windows, and one of which is an off-center entry 
fronted by a metal security door.  This elevation is inset behind brick planters, 
and the entry is accessed by a concrete walk.  Presumably, this unit of the 
building was originally the nursery office itself.  Woodframe, paired casement 
windows are part of the design.  Each of these windows is topped by an inset 
wood plank lintel.  One of the bays is an overhang for the entry, which is 
recessed.  Above the entrance to the overhang itself is a scrolled bracket present 
within one corner.  The roof, which is clad in asphalt, has low small eaves that 
are underscored with exposed wood rafter tails.   

 
Figure 83:  Nursery Office and Locker Room Building, 1927.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007 
 
The above-described nursery office and locker room building is affixed to an 
extended structure, which is a long, single-story, side-gabled rectangular-plan 
structure clad in false bevel wood siding (Figure 84).  This building appears to be 
used as a garage, office, and storage facility.  Across its front elevation is a series 
of window and entry bays that appear to be organized into various groupings.  At 
the far western portion of this building are six bays, five of which are 8/1 
woodframe double hung windows and one of which is a pedestrian entry.  All 
windows and entries across the front elevation of this building are framed in 
wood plank.  Due east of these bays is a series of three bays featuring wood 
frame windows in sets of three where the upper corners of each set are beveled.  
The eastern half of the front elevation of this building features four window bays 
with 8/8 woodframe double hung glazing, two paired single panel entry doors, a 
large, inset beveled corner opening, and a pair of 4/4 woodframe double hung 
windows.  Aside from the Feliz Adobe located in Crystal Springs, this building, 
along with those comprising the Wilson-Harding Turf maintenance facility, is 
among the earliest in Griffith Park, and dates from 1927.   
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Figure 84: Nursery Garage and Maintenance Facility Building, 1927.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007 
 
The middle section of the Commonwealth Nursery consists of numerous terraced 
garden plots that are made of concrete, and are acclimated roughly east-west.  
Running parallel at the upper portion of these plots and running perpendicular 
east of them are four greenhouse structures that date from circa 1938 (Figure 85).  
Each of these woodframe structures is of a single story with a gabled roof.  
Continuous, woodframe, large panel frosted glass glazing is present across all 
elevations.  The two easterly nurseries contain glazing across the roof itself, 
whereas the two northerly nurseries feature an exposed woodframe roof.  All 
elevations are underscored with three courses of channeled wood siding.  The 
lengthwise side elevations of each greenhouse consist of multiple glazed bays of    
vertically acclimated frosted and clear glazing units.  Each nursery is front gabled 
at its breadth-ends that contain a centered entry.  The glazing around and above 
the entry is vertically acclimated, and consists of custom cut single panels 
running up the height of the elevation.  The lower portion of the nursery facility 
consists primarily of recent buildings and structures including a recent filling 
station, numerous metal storage containers and sheds, and a metal clad trailer.  
The trailer is located at the upper portion of a blacktopped area and is fronted by 
mature bougainvilleas and a tall metal flagpole.  The filling station is located in 
the middle of the nursery’s lower portion.  Numerous recent rectangular plan 
metal storage containers are lined along the eastern edge of the property.  Park 
style rock barriers, from the 1930s, with irregular course boulders are present at 
the below southwest corner of this area.  Park-style irregular course boulders 
placed in concrete surround the blacktopped area itself.   
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Figure 85:  Nursery Greenhouse, c. 1938.  View S.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, 
October 2007.  

Vermont Canyon Road Ctd.  
Continuing northward on Vermont Canyon Road is the Greek Theatre, which is a 
two-story performance venue, rectangular in plan with a concrete foundation 
(Figure 86).  It was designed in a Second Greek Revival style, emphasizing 
fluted pilasters, elaborate entablature with triglyphs, metopes, and dental molding 
on the north, south, and east elevations.  There is a pitched roof with composition 
shingles and a large pediment on the east and west elevations.  The west 
elevation has stadium seating with metal chairs that are built into the natural 
landscape, as well as the stage.  The north, south, and east elevations also have a 
series of twelve pane metal casement windows with metal grills and metal double 
doors.   

 
Figure 86: Greek Theatre, 1913, 1929-1930.  View NW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, 

October 2007.  
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The Theatre building is a two-story structure north of the Greek Theatre.  It has 
horizontal wood siding on the top story and concrete and glass on the second 
story.  The Greek Theatre Box Office is located northeast of the Greek Theatre, 
next to Vermont Canyon Drive, and is a one-story building rectangular in plan 
and contains a flat roof.  It is located northeast of the Greek Theatre.  The 
building is composed of concrete with horizontal wood siding veneer.  The 
southern elevation has a series of windows used for the box office.  Bathrooms 
are located north on Vermont Avenue and the Greek Theatre, directly north of 
the parking lot used for venues.  It is a one-story building rectangular in plan.  It 
has a concrete foundation and is composed of stucco.  There is a pitched roof 
with Spanish tiles.  There is a series of three wood windows that are inset with 
screens on all elevations.  There is a transom that contains a banister above the 
wood doors on the east and west elevations, as well as a wood eave.  There are 
vents located beneath the pitch of the gable ends.   

The Griffith Park Bird Sanctuary is off of Vermont Canyon Road just before it 
curves west toward the Griffith Park Observatory (Figure 87).  The Bird 
Sanctuary was designed by the Los Angeles Chapter of the Audubon Society and 
constructed by Boy Scouts in 1922 under the direction of the Audubon Society 
and the City Parks Department.  The Bird Sanctuary is an open area bordered by 
a wood post and beam fence.  Within it are various low, park-style walls and 
culverts of irregular course tumbled river rock in mortar, and these walls appear 
relatively recent.  The bathroom building within the Bird Sanctuary is a one-story 
building rectangular in plan with a concrete foundation, concrete elevations and 
elevations with a wood shiplap water table.  There is a series of clerestory 
windows on the north and south elevations within a wood frame.  The building 
has a hipped roof with composition shingles and overhang.  This bathroom 
appears to have been constructed within the last 10 years.  The Bird Sanctuary 
also features a pylon-shaped drinking fountain of ashlar cut stone, and an 
irregular course flagstone sink basin.   

 
Figure 87: Bird Sanctuary Area, 1922.  View NE. 
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007.  
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Vermont Canyon Road → East Observatory Road 
East Observatory Road is located south off of Vermont Canyon Road and leads 
to the Griffith Observatory.  East Observatory Road is lined with 1920s-era City 
of Los Angeles light standards with fluted, classically detailed granite poles with 
an acorn-shaped glass bowl.  The Griffith Observatory (City of Los Angeles 
HCM # 168) is a large concrete building defined by three domes and the PWA 
Moderne style (Figure 88).  Built in 1935, it has a concrete foundation, Greek 
frets within a frieze and around the front door that faces north, as well as copper 
windows, door, and roof decoration.  The southern elevation reveals the buildings 
placement on the sloped landscape, revealing two additional basement stories.  
Stairs lead from the first floor onto a roof balcony and access to the flanking 
domes.  The main entrance, facing north, has a manicured lawn and concrete 
walkway, as well as centrally placed figurative concrete sculpture called the 
“Astronomers Monument.”  This sculpture depicts various legends of astronomy 
and was created by six separate sculptors as a WPA Artists Project.    

 

 
Figure 88: Griffith Observatory, and “Astronomer’s Monument,” 1935.   
View SE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007.  
 

Vermont Canyon Road → Mt. Hollywood Drive (Mt. 
Hollywood Tunnel)  

After crossing East Observatory Road, Vermont Canyon Road ends at the Mt. 
Hollywood Tunnel (Figure 89), which itself is a brief segment of Mt. Hollywood 
Drive.  The Mt. Hollywood Tunnel runs east-west and has a square-shaped, 
smooth concrete face at each entrance side.  The tunnel itself is a barrel vault of 
béton brut poured in placed concrete.  
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Figure 89: Mt. Hollywood Tunnel.  View E.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, 
October 2007 

Mt. Hollywood Tunnel → Western Canyon Road 

A junction point with the upper end of Western Canyon Road is present shortly 
after exiting the Mt. Hollywood Tunnel due west.  Western Canyon Road is a 
two-lane, paved road with switchback turns that run along the south face of Mt. 
Hollywood.  Adjacent Western Canyon Road just after the above-mentioned 
junction are park style walls with multi-colored geometrically cut masonry 
infilled with gallets in an irregular course dry mortar.  Turn offs and picnic area 
with park style irregular course borders are present along Western Canyon Road 
(Figure 90).  Driving West and south on Western canyon road, expansive vistas 
of the Los Angeles basin are readily visible. At its lower end, Western Canyon 
Road becomes Fern Dell Drive.  

 

 
Figure 90: Picnic Area off of Western Canyon Road, c.1935.  
View NW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.   
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Fern Dell Drive and Fern Dell 
The second of three primary entrances into the south portion of Griffith Park is 
Fern Dell Drive, which is near Western Avenue in Los Feliz.  As Fern Dell Drive 
moves northward, the street changes name to become Western Canyon Road, 
which as it ascends in elevation ultimately winds eastbound toward the Griffith 
Observatory.  

Fern Dell Overview 

The Fern Dell section of Griffith Park is a series of trails and rock encrusted 
water features that are bilaterally intersected by Fern Dell Drive: a paved, two-
lane automobile road that traverses north-south.  The Focal Point of Fern Dell is 
a secluded grouping of pedestrian trails and streams that is largely below grade, 
bordered by park style rock walls and numerous fern specimens of various types. 
This section of trails and features, which is Fern Dell proper, jogs beneath Fern 
Dell Drive at its rear portion before it opens onto a multiplicity of pedestrian 
trails, dry ponds and creek beds, and picnic areas all bordered by various courses 
of irregular and ashlar cut concrete and rock boulder wall and barrier features 
done in the Park Style, oftentimes in dry course masonry.  This rear portion of 
Fern Dell features a minimal traditional-styled building that is today used as a 
snack bar, inset into an area that appears to have been an early camp gathering 
area based upon three parallel rows of sitting level rockwork in concrete, the 
westerly of which has a flagpole in the center.  Various movable, cut tree stumps 
that serve as stools if necessary are also present adjacent the snack bar.  South of 
the snack bar area along Fern Dell Drive is a Spanish Revival style watchman’s 
house that long served as a nature exhibit.  The integrity of this resource, along 
with Fern Dell as a whole, is very good.  The Fern Dell site was formerly a 
Gabrielino Indian site for which it is recognized as City of Los Angeles Historic 
Cultural Monument #112 (Figure 91).    

 
Figure 91: CITY HCM #112 Plaque for Gabrielino Indian Site at Fern Dell.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008 
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Entrance Features off Fern Dell Drive 

At either side of Fern Dell Drive at the entrance to Fern Dell is a lawn-covered 
hilly area with mature tree (canary pine) specimens.  On the easterly hill is 
“Griffith Park” signage of welded, textured metal letters painted on pipe railing 
set in a planter with a recent boulders-in-mortar surround.  At this section due 
easterly of the entrance, a paved pathway cuts diagonally from southwest to 
northeast.  A stream is present running along the far eastern edge of the Fern Dell 
area.  Set within this easterly section of the entrance is a roughly 5-foot-tall 
bronze statue of an upright bear known as the Berlin Bear statue which dates 
from the 1980s (Figure 92).   

 
Figure 92: Fern Dell: Berlin Bear Statue, 1981.   
View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007 
 
The westerly side of the Fern Dell area entrance features rolling grass hills and 
two monuments: a ground level bronze plaque set into a boulder and dedicated to 
Mrs. Rollin B. Lane, December 17, 1937 and a bronze bust portrait of Lief 
Erickson, which is placed upon a black granite obelisk.  At either side of Fern 
Dell Drive is a sidewalk.  A park-style retaining wall feature with 4-course 
square-cut concrete aggregate block is present along the western sidewalk.  This 
wall continues along the length of sidewalk before the entrance to Fern Dell 
proper, which is located at the corner of Fern Dell Drive and Black Oak Drive.  
This wall features a periodical pattern of a centrally placed, flat-faced slab 
concrete.  The grassy area above this wall features mature redwood trees.  
Moving northward at the easterly portion of the Fern Dell area adjacent Fern Dell 
Drive, the stream at the far eastern edge is fed by a small aqueduct from beneath 
Fern Dell Drive.  This stream is bordered with square cut concrete aggregate 
rock.  A blacktopped, straight, ascending trail runs along the eastern edge of the 
east portion, parallel to the stream, and this trail is lined with trees at its east side.  
The middle portion of the easterly, at-grade portion of the Fern Dell area is a 
hilly, grass covered area with mature sycamore specimens with the occasional 
decorative large boulder.  Continuing northward at the at-grade easterly portion 
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of the Fern Dell area the blacktopped trail gradually ascends and descends, 
redwood trees are present, and the single family residences visible upon an 
embankment above the trail begin to recede, with additional park property 
opening up at the middle portion of the easterly side.  The terraced “Soroptimist” 
picnic area is present in this area and features boundary walls of irregular course 
boulders in a dry mortar style (Figure 93).  A bed of bulbous flowers is present, 
with ground cover primarily of earth.  The Soroptimist Picnic area is of three 
terraced levels with a barrier wall entrance of irregular course square cut red 
sandstone containing a symmetrical arrangement of two stairways; inset with two 
drinking fountains and centered plaque that reads “Minnie M. Barton Memorial, 
Soroptimists Club of Los Angeles, July 1947.”   

 
Figure 93: Fern Dell: Soroptimist Picnic Area, 1947.  
View SE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007.  
 
Below each drinking fountain is a metal catch basin that reads “Scofield Big Boy 
Basin.”  The upper terraces of the Soroptimist Picnic Area have low walls of 
square cut recycled concrete aggregate in dry mortar.  The upper terrace is topped 
with faux concrete wood branch railing.  Terraces two and three have one 
centered stairway each, which are both axially aligned above the previously 
mentioned Soroptimist plaque.  At the north portion of the uppermost terrace is a 
canopied food prep area with a counter that appears to have had a former sink or 
stove that has since been removed.  A concrete table is present within this prep 
area.  At the very rear of this picnic area, inset into the upper terrace wall is a 
second Soroptimist metal rectangular plaque dated July 1955 and reading 
“Soroptimist International of Los Angeles.”  Looking west from this picnic area 
are two bridges that serve as the center point of the Fern Dell area, and 
underneath which Fern Dell proper jogs from west to east.  One of these bridges 
is an auto bridge for Fern Dell drive, and it appears to date from the 1930s.  This 
bridge, which appears to be in a WPA style, features thick concrete railing with a 
repeating motif of rectangular vertical openings each underscored and capped 
with a semi-circular opening.  A pedestrian bridge is parallel the auto bridge.  In 
a concrete curbed area off of Fern Dell Drive just north of the bridge on the east 
side are leaf patterns set into the concrete itself and are dated 1998.  Looking 
south on Fern Dell Drive toward the front entrance to the area, there are 1920s 
era light standards, and a chain link fence with an occasional opening into Fern 
Dell runs along the western side of the road.  
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Fern Dell Proper 

The entrance to Fern Dell proper is located at the northwest corner of Fern Dell 
Drive and Black Oak Drive.  This entrance is protected by a recent metal bar 
security gate and is fronted by a plaque honoring City of Los Angeles Historic 
Cultural Monument #112 for the Gabrielino Indian Site that is present at the Fern 
Dell property.  Once inside Fern Dell proper, a culvert is present that runs 
eastward beneath the adjacent road.  The openings of this culvert are in a pointed, 
Moorish style arch shape.  Upon entering Fern Dell, a stream is present, as are 
various pedestrian trails: two trails to the west of the stream and one running 
parallel to the east of the stream.  A recent truss bridge connects the trails over 
the stream.  The trails west of the stream are connected by the occasional faux 
flagstone concrete walkway.  Walking northward, a rock alcove is present built 
into the western wall, and it appears to have originally contained a water feature 
(Figure 94).   

 
Figure 94: Fern Dell detail.  View NW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

 This alcove features two symmetrical square openings in its catch basin.  
Between the two westerly pedestrian trails are various concrete islands bordered 
in park style rockwork that feature numerous mature tree and fern specimens.  
The westerly edge of Fern Dell proper features a roughly 4-foot-tall Park style 
wall that is terraced and dotted with a lush, enclosing treatment of numerous 
plants, including many fern specimens.  The trails wind and the stream undulates 
in width as one moves northward.  The walkways are multi-tiered and elevated 
sitting areas are present along the western end of the walk.  Continuing 
northward, the three trails become two, and additional concrete islands covered 
with vegetation are present within the stream.  These islands are composed of 
square cut aggregate in mortar topped with irregular fragments of upright 
concrete slab and boulders.  One island within the stream is an irregular, 
triangulated shape.  The side walls of the streambed are made of square cut 
recycled aggregate set in a dry mortar multi-course.  A hand rail and post system 
of faux wood branches made of concrete runs along the eastern edge of the trail 
that parallels the western side of the stream.  
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Continuing northward on Fern Dell proper, the stream and the rest of the program 
descends in grade beneath the street level, featuring a five-level terrace with 
plants at the east side, and a three-level terrace at the west side—each terrace 
made of multi-course dry mortar coursework and topped with tall trees and ferns 
in a “hanging gardens of Babylon” effect, where the recessing run of each 
ascending terrace contains additional plants (Figures 95 and 96).   

 
Figure 95: Fern Dell, c.1916-1931.  View N.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

 
Figure 96: Fern Dell, 1916- 1931.  View NW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Walking northward, a roughly 20-foot-tall waterfall made of flat concrete scored 
faux boulder patterned risers with symmetrically placed circular capping of 
rounded boulders is present at either side of the multi-terraced waterfall.  
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Continuing northward, the now single trail adjacent the stream jogs eastward 
beneath two bridges.  Beneath these bridges are rock walls at either side of the 
trail and stream.  Open ducts are present within these walls and out of them 
spouts water, much of which is collected in a concrete gutter that runs parallel to 
the foot trail for much of its duration due south.  The sound of dripping and 
moving water is present along much of Fern Dell proper.  The underside of the 
auto bridge features a low-pitched concrete spanning arch.  As the trail moves 
beneath the pedestrian bridge, the bridge supports are visible and they consist of 
concrete piers with Moorish style pointed arch openings: one at each side.  The 
pedestrian bridge is underscored with log supports that appear to have been 
telephone poles.  After traversing beneath the two bridges, Fern Dell proper is 
now located due east of the bridges, and continues at a subterranean grade.  Rock 
features of periodic flat slab concrete set between boulders, and multicourse dry 
mortar horizontal concrete topped with reused upright, rough edged concrete slab 
are present.  The pedestrian trails are lined with boulders at either side and inset 
concrete benches are part of the design.  

Fern Dell area: rear eastern portion  

Continuing northward upon Fern Dell proper, its trail ascends back to grade, and 
it is at this point, due slightly northeast of the two bridges, that Fern Dell proper 
ends.  Where its conjoins to street grade, nearby an open picnic area is present 
with a relatively unique early light fixture of a tapered steel pole, metal final, 
exposed bulb (which may or may not have been the original design intention) and 
a double-S filigree pattern between the catheti of the pole and the arm.  Due east 
of this open picnic area is a second picnic area that is elevated into the hillside 
due east of the easterly trail.  This picnic area, with barrier walls of an iron ore 
type boulder, features a similar light fixture. Due north of these picnic areas is 
what appears to be a shallow, dry pond with a concrete island containing banana 
trees.  The siding of this pond, as well as the siding of the three pedestrian trails 
that wind along either side of it, feature rock and concrete inset into mortar in 
multiple variations of the Park style.  Continuing northward, various man-made 
creeks, dry at present, feature side walls of multi-colored aggregate.  The various 
walkways are terraced at different levels and are connected. 

Where the walkways are elevated horizontal course, square cut dry mortar 
aggregate is often present beneath them.  The boundaries of these walkways, as 
well as sections of the dry streambeds themselves are often capped with boulders.  
Pipe railing, concrete benches inset into the rock work, and numerous mature tree 
specimens are all part of the design.  Other railings are present between these 
walkways and streams that are of a faux wood branch style done in concrete.  
Between the trails and the various streams in this rear, eastern portion are pockets 
of plants with mature fern, shrub and tree specimens.  A mid-century era 
restroom facility is set within the eastern edge of this portion of the Fern Dell 
area.  It is of single-story and rectangular plan with single-rank horizontal-course 
square windows, pedestrian openings at either end, and T-111 siding.  The roof is 
gabled and is clad in corrugated metal.  

Moving northward, the rear, eastern portion the Fern Dell area splits into two 
sections.  At this split is a single-story, rectangular plan Spanish Revival 



 
Griffith Park Description  

84 
January 2008

 

restroom facility with triplicate narrow vertical windows; Spanish tile roofs 
underscored with scrolled wood beams; an attic vent of four squares in a 
diamond pattern, and engaged piers (Figure 97).   

 
Figure 97: Restroom facility at the upper portions of the Fern Dell area, c.1927.  
View NW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.   

The facility features a gabled roof and stucco cladding.  The eastern portion north 
of this split is characterized by canyons and affords a view of the Griffith 
Observatory.  Continuing northward, this very rear-easterly corner of the Fern 
Dell area features multi-graded trails, mature tree specimens, a man-made creek, 
and 1960s-era wood and metal picnic benches.  The rear-most reaches of this 
area dissolve into a gully, and multiple stoppage dams of béton brut concrete or 
rough cut concrete block set in mortar are present.  The western portion behind 
this split contains various trails of concrete with a faux flagstone scoring pattern 
in addition to flat slab concrete walks.  These walkways are at various levels in 
relation to one another, and are slightly below grade from Fern Dell drive, which 
is present due immediately west (Figure 98). 
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Figure 98: Fern Dell.  View SE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Fern Dell area: western portion 

Much of the western portion of the Fern Dell area is occupied by Fern Dell 
proper, which is below grade and not entirely visible from Fern Dell drive.  The 
rear section of the western portion features various amenities including “The 
Trails” Café, a ranger’s station, and restroom buildings.  The Trails Café is a 
square-plan, single-story building that reads as a Minimal traditional residence in 
its design (Figure 99).  Its cladding is of thick stucco and the roof is pyramidal, 
clad in asphalt shingles and underscored with wood rafter tails. The east facing 
front elevation features a ribbon of wood frame service windows, set behind a 
full length open porch topped with a stained wood lintel.  Concrete stairs lead to 
the café from Fern Dell drive, and they contain railing of faux-wood branches 
made of concrete as seen at other portions of Fern Dell.  

 
Figure 99: The “Trails” Café, c.1948.  View SW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  
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Immediately north of the Trails Café is a man-made stream of irregular course 
rock placed in mortar that traverses the upper edge of this amenities area.  
Immediately south of the Trails Café are recent picnic tables, wood stumps, and 
three low, parallel rows of rockwork in concrete, possibly used for seating.  A 
lightpole is centered in the westernmost of these rows.  This area appears to have 
been originally used as a gathering place, possibly for camp “powwows” (Figure 
100).  A restroom building is located behind the Trails Café.  This circa 1951 
building is single-story and rectangular plan with entries at either end, a gabled 
roof clad in corrugated metal, and T-111 siding upon all elevations.  Single 
ranked horizontal course square windows are part of the design.  

 
Figure 100: Gathering area southwest of the Trails Café within Fern Dell.  
View SW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Below the amenities area, due south along Fern Dell Drive at the western portion 
of the Fern Dell area, at the northwest corner of Red Oak Drive is the former 
Watchman’s house and Fern Dell Nature Museum (Figure 101).  This residential 
building is single-story, rectangular plan with a gabled central salient.  The 
building is Spanish Revival in design, and features triplicate sets of paired, six-
unit glazing, a large, round headed multi-glazed picture window; two chimneys, 
cross gabled roofs, and a three-part open duct terra cotta attic vent.  The entry is 
inset at the side of the central salient.  The residence, which faces south, is set 
back in front of a lawn covered front yard.  The integrity of this resource is very 
good.  
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Figure 101:  Fern Dell: Watchman’s House and  
former Fern Dell Nature Museum, c.1927.  View N. 
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007 

Canyon Drive 
Canyon Drive is located near the southwest corner of Griffith Park.  Where 
Canyon Drive enters into Griffith Park, the Park is set back behind a 
neighborhood of Hollywood Hills called The Oaks.  This section of Griffith Park 
is not readily visible from Franklin Avenue, which is the primary east-west 
thoroughfare that crosses Canyon Drive itself.  The area of Griffith Park entered 
into by Canyon Drive is rugged, dry chaparral, and appears as unimproved and 
semi-isolated.  As the name indicates, Canyon Drive traverses the base of a steep 
canyon.  Moving northward past a 1970s era entry gate into Griffith Park, 
Canyon drive terminates at Camp Hollywoodland.  Between the entrance and 
Hollywoodland, due east off of the road and accessed by an unpaved trail are the 
Bronson Caves (Figure 102).  The “Bronson Caves” are actually a man-made 
tunnel through a hill as the result of rock quarrying activity at the beginning of 
the 1900s which ceased by the 1920s.  The tunnel is acclimated east-west with 
one large opening on the west side and three smaller openings upon the east side. 
The tunnel is roughly 50 feet long and roughly 8 feet tall.   
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Figure 102: Bronson Caves, c.1900-1920.  View W.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007. 

Camp Hollywoodland (Girls’ Camp)  

Camp Hollywoodland, also known as the “Girls’ Camp,” is a series of one-story 
contemporary-style Modern buildings built into the natural landscape of small 
canyons off of Canyon Drive (Figure 103).  Leading to the Camp is a flat park to 
the east that contains concrete picnic tables and is bordered by a creek, and to the 
west is a small playground near the entrance.  The main building within the camp 
was built in 1992 after a 1990 fire.  It is a two-story building composed of 
horizontal wood siding and detailed with stonework.  There are aluminum and 
vinyl windows and a cross gabled roof with shingles.  A building at the entrance 
of the camp is one-story and rectangular in plan.  It is composed of vertical wood 
siding and resides on a concrete foundation.  It has a flat roof, wood doors, and 
aluminum sliding windows.  The camp has a series of buildings used for camp 
residences that were built in 1952.  They are known as Hollywoodland Acres.  
They are composed of horizontal wood siding, water table of brick stretcher 
course, large glass panes, and a slanted metal roof.  Small structures are also 
placed around the cabins as bathrooms.  They are one-story buildings composed 
of wood paneling with flat roofs, in a rectangular plan.  In addition, there are 
outdoor structures supported by metal poles that contain an arched roof of 
corrugated metal.   
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Figure 103: Camp Hollywoodland (Girls’ Camp) Recreational Building.  
Jones, Contini, and Smith, 1952.  View SW.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007.  

Beachwood Drive 
Beachwood Drive is not a major entrance into Griffith Park, but instead enters 
the park at its southwest portion behind the hilly, Hollywoodland neighborhood.  
At the end of Beachwood Drive are the Sunset Ranch Stables.  Though these 
Western-style, barn-themed buildings appear to be within Griffith Park, 
technically the Park surrounds this property with chaparral covered hills.  

Beachwood Drive → Ledgewood Drive → Mulholland 
Highway → Canyon Lake Drive 

Lake Hollywood Park and the Hollywood Sign 

A spur road off of Beachwood Drive called Ledgewood Drive is present within 
the Hollywoodland neighborhood.  Taken west, Ledgewood Drive merged onto a 
brief stretch of Mulholland Highway which borders Griffith Park.  Due west, 
where Mulholland Drive becomes Canyon Lake Drive is Lake Hollywood Park 
(Figure 104).  Lake Hollywood Park is a small, flat area that consists of grass 
where the terrain slightly slants downward to the north.  On the southern side is a 
small playground with recent equipment that is enclosed within a metal fence 
around the perimeter and contains sand.  The park also consists of a few scattered 
small tree specimens and picnic benches.  In clear view due northeast from Lake 
Hollywood Park is the “Hollywood” sign (HCM #111) (Figure 105), which 
consists of white painted, flat, metal frame block lettering with each letter against 
a steel armature set in a poured concrete foundation.  The letters are set upon a 
hillside ridge upon the side of Mt. Lee, in a manner that slightly undulates to the 
ridge’s terrain. 
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Figure 104: Lake Hollywood Park.  View S. 
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007.  
 
 

  
Figure 105: Hollywood Sign, 1923, reconstructed 1976.  View NW. 
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007.  

Park-wide objects: retaining walls, barriers, drainage 
ditches culverts, and drinking fountains. 

A consistently built feature throughout the entirety of Griffith Park is a series of 
retaining walls, drainage ditches, stoppage dams, culverts, barriers, and later 
drinking fountains built by various federally assisted workforce organizations 
beginning in the 1930s in a Park style later copied by the Recreation and Parks 
department through the 1950s.  Most of the barrier walls are no more than 3 feet 
tall and are generally located adjacent to roads and/or trails.  Of all of the built 
elements of any type throughout the park, these structures have the strongest and 
most intimate relationship with the natural landscape itself.  The design system of 
these elements consists of numerous variations on the theme of rubble rock or 
ashlar of various patterns often set in mortar, which often features scoring or line 
work.  Many of these elements, though often finely done, have intriguing patterns 
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combined and an unpolished quality often seen in the work of self-taught artists.  
Often, barriers, channels, culverts, and occasionally dams are found together to 
facilitate drainage near the side of a given road, or near a public gathering area 
such as a picnic area, or even upon a golf course.  The barriers are often found 
not just near roads, but also along landscaped areas such as picnic areas.  Below 
are examples of each of these features.  

Barriers and Boundaries  

Park Style barriers and boundary elements, are primarily located adjacent the 
various automobile roads throughout Griffith Park.  Their height ranges from one 
rock course tall to roughly 5 feet.  One example is adjacent Western Canyon 
Road west of the Griffith Observatory.  This barrier is 4.5 feet tall and composed 
of various sharply angled irregular course sandstone, concrete, and granite rubble 
rock and gallets fitted together through cyclopean dry masonry in three stacked 
horizontal levels each separated by an unfinished masonry course (Figure 106). 
Along the unpaved road to the Bronson Caves, recycled pieces of sidewalk are 
used to create a low boundary. The barriers and boundaries throughout Griffith 
park range greatly in size, and often, like this boundary, consist of a couple of 
low coursed atop the ground (Figure 107). 

 
Figure 106: Barrier wall along Western Canyon Road due west of the  
Griffith Observatory. View N. Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007.  
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Figure 107: Recycled concrete boundary leading to Bronson Caves.  
View S.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Stoppage Dams 

Griffith Park features numerous stoppage dams found within gullies and adjacent 
various steep hills throughout the Park.  At present time many of these dams are 
covered over by brush and over growth.  The stoppage dams of Griffith Park 
generally feature a row of repeating walls along a hillside, usually no more than 
20 feet long, infilling a small arroyo.  Usually above these series of walls, at the 
top of a given hill, is a centered, narrow drainage canal embedded into the 
ground.  Presumably these stoppage dams were built in areas that saw a high 
degree of flooding and water-down fall during the rainy season.  Often these 
stoppage dams are combined with drainage canals, usually centered, that are 
inserted into the ground.  These canals range in width from 2 to 4 feet.   

As one example, off of the Fern canyon Trail there is a 4-part stoppage dam and 
canal program facing north and running downhill. The most visible upper 
component of it is a centered drainage canal with concrete side walls embedded 
with boulders.  These side walls are roughly 3 feet tall and run a length of about 
10 feet downhill.  Below this channel is a stretcher course, squared rubble-in-
masonry wall that runs the length of the gully that is roughly 20 feet wide.  The 
upper edge of this wall is slightly concave.  Within this wall are three small 
circular holes in a triangular formation, presumably for drainage.  Centered about 
20 feet below this stoppage wall is a low-slung, concave concrete stoppage with 
embedded rubble rock that stands about 1.5 feet above grade.  Water presumably 
passes above this feature.  Affixed directly below it are the sides of a canal, inset 
into the ground that is 10 feet wide at its upper portion, and reduced to about 2 
feet wide at its lower portion.  The sides of this canal feature random rubble inset 
into concrete sides about two feet tall. The alignment of the culvert itself has a 
slight has a slight arc.  The bottom side-edges of this canal are of thick, solid 
poured concrete and have the appearance of walls of their own on either side of 
the centered opening.  The side-ends of this canal rest on a random rubble-in-
mortar base (Figure 108).  
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Figure 108: Fern Canyon Stoppage Dam Series.  
View S.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, July 2007.  

A second example of a Griffith Park stoppage dam/culvert program is also found 
along Fern Canyon trail, in this case facing east, and running both above and 
below the trail proper.  Roughly 70 feet due west of and slightly elevated above 
the trail is a poured concrete stoppage dam with irregular course boulder work 
that fills a section of gully roughly 20 feet wide.  This stoppage dam is no taller 
than 5 feet.  In front of it is a centered flat-sided drainage culvert roughly 5 feet 
wide with 3 feet tall side walls of irregular course rubble placed in concrete.  This 
culvert has a slight curve toward the north in its alignment, and runs for roughly 
30 feet.  At the last section of this length, the drainage descends under the fern 
canyon trail proper via a metal pipe roughly 1 foot in diameter.  The pipe 
discharges directly below the trail, through a 9-foot-tall culvert made of large 
scale (2–3-foot-long) pieces of squared rubble placed in unfinished masonry 
bond.  This wall features 4-foot-long spurs facing east that also serve as sides to a 
drainage area.  In front of these spurs are affixed additional side walls, of similar 
construction each terracing down below the prior which themselves continue the 
sides of the drainage area, until it finally discharges in a small gully well below 
the Fern Canyon trail, and away from other circulation areas (Figure 109).   
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Figure 109: Stoppage Dam series in Fern canyon. View W.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, July 2007.  

The various series of stoppage dams (in addition to all other similar features) 
appear to have been made by various individuals, with varying degrees of 
artistry.  Off of Vista Del Valle Drive above the nursery and below Vista View 
Point is a stoppage dam, revealed by the fire, that features mandala like-
patterning made of small boulders inset into scored concrete intended to look like 
rusticated brick (Figure110).  

 
Figure 110: Stoppage Dam detail located off of Vista Del Valle Drive east of the 
Roosevelt Golf Course.  View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, June 2007.  

Drainage Canals 

Throughout Griffith Park are numerous drainage channels that exist 
independently of stoppage dams.  These drainage channels are often located 
beginning at the position of roads or trails, and descend toward steep, long 
declines down a given hill in the park.  Most of these drainage canals feature 
Park Style random rubble masonry, of various compositions set into concrete.  
These drainage canals tend to be embedded into the earth with angled or straight 
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siding and are anywhere from 2 to 4 feet wide.  The functionality of these 
drainage ditches often required that they descend down long stretches of hillside.  
A drainage canal seen off of Vista Del Valle Drive, facing north above Spring 
canyon, descends and winds in a curving fashion a length of roughly 150 feet.  
The canal is embedded roughly 2 feet into the earth with side walls of rusticated 
rubble rock placed in mortar.  Its floor, which is roughly 1.5 feet wide, is clad in 
concrete (Figure 111).  

 
Figure 111: Drainage Canal off of Vista Del valle Drive.  
View SE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, June, 2007.   

A second example of a drainage canal is located near the intersection of Griffith 
Park Drive and Camp Road, at the entrance to the Boys’ Camp.  This is a 
drainage canal with concrete squared aggregate rubble placed in a stacked course 
pattern.  The side-walls of this drainage, which parallels Camp Road, are roughly 
4 feet tall.  The lower half of this drainage is beveled inward and is of flat-faced 
flagstone set against a thick, smooth concrete masonry.  A small, arched concrete 
bridge, roughly 3 feet wide and with no railing, traverses the channel, which is 
about 8 feet wide.  Either run-side of the bridge features a faux-wood log made of 
concrete.  Beneath the bridge against the southern of the two walls of the channel 
is a faux wood log support (Figure 112).  
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Figure 112: Drainage area with concrete bridge at junction of Camp Road  
and Griffith Park Drive, c.1935.  View E.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007.  

Adjacent a picnic area near the Greek Theatre is a catch basin embedded roughly 
4 feet into the ground.  Its walls are of square cut rubble rock of both rusticated 
and smooth surfaces embedded in cement in four stacked courses.  This concrete 
below these surfaces features hand scoring into the surface creating the effect of 
stacked roman bricks.  The concrete atop these stacked courses has a simple, 
square scoring motif.  Set above this opening, near the top of the construction, 
and within the rock course work is a centered, flower shaped modillion (Figure 
113). 

 
Figure 113: Drainage element with modillion, c.1935.  View E.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

The side walls of this element are of a similar construction.  The majority of this 
basin is subterranean to the hillside road immediately adjacent it.  Within the 
roughly 2 feet that rise above the road level is a metal cross bar adjacent the road 
and between the sidewalls.  At the base of this construction is a semi-circular 
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drainage opening.  This opening leads to a steep, concrete sided drainage 
channel, which leads through a culvert that is topped by a triangular-shaped 
planter with walls of irregular course rubble placed in mortar, with a smooth 
concrete cap.  The drainage runs beneath this planter and into a concrete lined 
channel that features small, round boulders at either shoulder.  The alignment of 
this drainage curves in a winding fashion for its roughly 30-foot length (Figure 
114).  

 
Figure 114: Drainage element near Greek Theatre picnic area, c.1935.  
View W.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

Drinking Fountains 

Many of the drinking fountains throughout Griffith Park are done in a “park 
style” akin to the above mentioned infrastructure elements.  Most of the drinking 
fountains throughout the park are square plan, pylon shaped with a rough-edged 
concrete capworks incised with a shallow basin.  Most of these drinking 
fountains are roughly 4 feet tall.  The cladding upon various examples is highly 
divergent.  Near the pony rides are three separate examples of such fountains 
including one with textured, rough edged irregular course boulders of various 
types inset into an unfinished masonry bond, a second with broken range ashlar 
stone cladding with concave joint masonry finish, and a third of a highly porous 
volcanic type rock done in an irregular course formation with unfinished 
masonry bond (Figures 115, 116, and 117).  These fountains were likely built by 
Los Angeles Recreation and Parks employees roughly 10-15 years later than the 
previously mentioned infrastructure elements, though they mirror the same park 
style.   
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Figure 115: Flagstone drinking fountain near Pony Rides, c.1948. View SE.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

 

 
Figure 116: Ashlar cut drinking fountain near Pony Rides, c.1948.  
View SE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  
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Figure 117: Drinking fountain near Pony Rides, c.1948.  View SE.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  

 

 SECTION 2:  Griffith Park Wilderness Area 
Introduction 

Located within a biome called the California Floristic Provence, Griffith Park is 
present upon the far eastern edge of the Santa Monica Mountains. 3  The majority 
of the 4,218 acres that comprise Griffith Park is a wilderness area, which serves 
as the primary character-defining feature of the park itself.  Though the 
wilderness area is pervasive throughout the park’s entirety, its primary 
concentration is within the park’s central portion.  As originally stipulated in the 
1938 Ralph Cornell Master Plan, the central, interior portion of Griffith Park was 
to remain a wilderness, with built amenities and recreation present along the 
flatlands areas at various perimeters.  The Cornell Master Plan was never ratified, 
yet through time this principle has largely been followed.   
 
The wilderness area of Griffith Park sustains hundreds of different types of plant 
and animal life.  Please see appendices 3,4,5 and 6 for detailed surveys of various 
plants, large mammals/reptiles, birds, and butterflies throughout Griffith Park.  
The Griffith Park wilderness area contains a variety of plant communities, both 
native and introduced.  Among these plant communities, mixed chaparral and 
mixed dcrub are the most widespread; oak-walnut woodland communities are 
found upon slopes and elevations above high use areas; oak-sycamore riparian 
communities are present along creeks and moist areas in lower elevations; pine 

                                                      
3 “The park lies within the California Floristic Province, a biome considered one of 34 biodiversity hotspots for conservation 
worldwide due to its high levels of diversity, endemism,  and the degree to which it is threatened (Myers et al. 2000).” Paul 
Mathewson, Stephanie Spehar, et al. A Preliminary Large Mammal and Herptile Survey of Griffith Park, Los Angeles, 
California. technical report (Glendale, CA: not published, 15 Aug 2007) 2.  
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communities are located near certain built amenities; oak woodland communities 
are found on north-facing slopes, and ruderal communities are found in patches 
throughout the park, often bordering areas of ornamental landscape.4  Introduced 
vegetation includes pine, eucalyptus, silk oak, numerous ornamentals, and 
landscaping areas around built amenities, which often include lawn.  The 
wilderness area contains numerous natural springs and seeps, in addition to three 
dependable seasonal streams near Royce’s Canyon, Bronson Canyon, and the 
area near Cadman Trail.  Taken together, the north and south slopes of the peaks 
through Griffith Park feature 20 watersheds and the majority of these are 
unaltered by human activity.  According to the County of Los Angeles Draft 
General Plan, Griffith Park as a whole   is a proposed Significant Ecological Area 
(SEA) by the University of California, Los Angeles.5 
 
The Griffith Park wilderness area contains foot and bridle trails, landscaped 
gardens and groves, sheet metal water towers, decommissioned auto roads, and 
numerous examples of 1930s-era infrastructure construction.  The majority of the 
foot trails are covered in earth, and are roughly 15 to 25 feet wide.  The wider of 
these trails double as equestrian trails, as do the decommissioned auto roads 
through Griffith Park, which include Mt. Hollywood Drive and Vista Del Valle 
Road.   
 
Though the wilderness area does contain some buildings, by and large it is a 
natural landscape of rugged rocky canyons between various peaks traversing 
from northwest to southeast, of elevations ranging from 384 to 1,625 feet.6  
Because they are the most readily visible components of the wilderness area and 
the park itself, these peaks—in addition to their adjacent canyons—are the 
organizing device by which the wilderness area description proceeds.  The 
wilderness description proceeds from the southeast corner below the main 
entrance moving westward along the southern portion of the inner component.  
Wrapping back around, the middle portion of the wilderness, which consists of a 
series of peaks, is described from west to east.  Wrapping around once more, the 
inner components of the park due north of these mountains are described east to 
west.  Finally, the northern portion of the wilderness is addressed, with a brief 
word about equestrian and bicycle trails near or north of the Los Angeles River.  

Beacon Hill and Fern Canyon 

Near the main entrance to Griffith Park off of its southeast portion, Beacon Hill, 
elevation 1,001 feet, is present and named after the former location of a light 
beacon originally used for the Grand Central Air Field.  The beacon was 
decommissioned in 1934 and eventually removed, but an empty earth-covered 
site remains in its former location.  Trails surrounding Beacon Hill include Upper 
Beacon Trail, Lower Beacon Trail, and Coolidge Trail, which runs southeast 

                                                      
4   Meléndrez Landscape Architecture, Planning and Urban Design (Prepared for The City of Los Angeles). Master 
Plan for Griffith Park (2nd Draft). Los Angeles: City of Los Angeles Department of Recreation and Parks, Oct. 2004: 
4-2 – 4-4.  
5  Los Angeles County Department of Regional Planning, County of Los Angeles General Plan Draft. 
http://gifi.stat.ucla.edu/projects/gpd/09pdf_SEA_policy.pdf 
6 Melendrez Draft: 4-2 – 4-4.  
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behind the Marty Tregnan Golf Academy.  Cadman Trail connects Coolidge 
Trail to Griffith Park Drive at a point south of the Tregnan Golf academy.  Near 
the Cadman Trail is one of three seasonal streams present within the wilderness 
area.  Upper Beacon Trail, Coolidge Trail, two small unnamed trails, and Fern 
Canyon Trail all meet at one spot called “5 points,” which is located on the 
western slope of Beacon Hill.  Both the Coolidge and Fern Canyon trails are also 
equestrian trails, wider than the footpaths and containing occasional hitching 
posts.  
 
Southwest of 5 points, two of these unnamed trails connect onto Vista Del Valle 
Drive, a two lane blacktopped automobile road that ranges in width from 35 to 40 
feet.  Vista del Valle Drive was closed to the public in 1989, and the blacktop is 
in poor condition as this road is now used as another trail.  Vista Del Valle Drive 
traverses a large portion of the southern section of Griffith Park, containing many 
curves and switchbacks.  One endpoint of Vista Del Valle Drive is at 
Commonwealth Avenue, and the other endpoint is roughly 1.44 miles (as the 
crow flies) where it meets Mt. Hollywood Drive between Mt. Chapel and Mt. 
Bell at the central-western portion of the park.    
 
At its east face, oak walnut woodland plant communities are present upon 
Beacon Hill, and mixed scrub is present at the center portion of the north face of 
Beacon Hill. The rest of the hill is covered primarily with mixed chaparral.  
Southwest of Beacon Hill is Cedar Grove:  an oblong shaped, 225 feet x 240 feet 
grove of cedar trees containing narrow foot trails and benches (Figure 118).  The 
density of the tall trees fosters complete enclosure and generous shading, for the 
effect of being removed from one’s surroundings just outside of the grove.  Cedar 
Grove is located off of Vista Del Valle Drive.   
 

 
Figure 118: Cedar Grove.  View W.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, 
August 2007.  
 
Across the street from Cedar Grove is an early water tank made of sheet metal 
studded together and topped by a sheet metal roof (Figure 119).  Exposed wood 
rafter tails are present beneath this roof, and this water tank is inset into its 
hillside.   
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Figure 119.  Early water tank off Vista Del Valle Drive  
due N of Cedar Grove.  View N.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007.  
 
Directly above it is a larger scale, recent water tank with a diorama mural across 
it of a painted forest-scape topped by a sky.  Due roughly 1/3 mile southwest of 
Beacon Hill is Vista View Point, a triangular, paved turn off of Vista del Valle 
Drive at an elevation of 1,073 feet.  Vista View Point provides panoramic views 
of downtown Los Angeles and the greater Los Angeles basin due south to the 
Pacific Ocean. 
 
Due north of Vista View Point is Fern Canyon, which is acclimated north-south 
between Beacon Hill and Glendale Peak.  The mouth of Fern Canyon is located 
directly south of the merry-go-round.  The canyon above the center of Fern 
Canyon is the Fern Canyon Nature Trail, which is often used to educate 
schoolchildren about plant and animal life in Griffith Park.  The plant life within 
Fern Canyon is primarily mixed chaparral.  Trails originating at the mouth of 
Fern Canyon include the Lower Beacon Trail, the Fern Canyon Nature Trail, and 
Fern Canyon Trail.  The Old Zoo Trail ends at the mouth of Fern Canyon as well.  
The area below Old Zoo trail between the Old Zoo and the merry-go-round 
contains an Oak-Sycamore Riparian community.  

Glendale Peak, Aberdeen Canyon, Vermont Canyon, 
Western Canyon 

Framing Fern Canyon and due slightly southeast of it is Glendale Peak, elevation 
1,184 feet.  Trails within the vicinity of Glendale Peak include Riverside Trail, 
Aberdeen Trail, and the East Ridge Trail, also known as Hogback Trail.  The vast 
majority of all faces of Glendale Peak are covered in mixed chaparral.  
Immediately south of Glendale Peak is the Griffith Park Nursery and 
Horticultural Center in addition to the Roosevelt Municipal Golf Course.  Upon 
Glendale Peak directly north of the Nursery, and in a portion of the park that laps 
in front of the nursery due south of it, the primary ground cover is mixed scrub.7  
Immediately west of Glendale Peak is Aberdeen Canyon: a north-south 
acclimated canyon running roughly 1/3 mile.  Aberdeen Canyon is largely of 
mixed chaparral.  Aberdeen Canyon is located just north of the Roosevelt 

                                                      
7 Ibid.  
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Municipal Golf Course, and just northeast of the Vermont Tennis Courts.  Trails 
within and around Aberdeen Canyon include the Riverside Trail and Aberdeen 
Trail.  
 
Due west of Aberdeen Canyon is Vermont Canyon, through which runs Vermont 
Canyon Road.  Amenities within the Vermont Canyon vicinity include the Greek 
Theatre and the Roosevelt Municipal Golf Course, both of which are located near 
its mouth; Riverside Trail which ends at Vermont Canyon Road; and the Bird 
Sanctuary.  West of Vermont Canyon is Western Canyon, which is acclimated 
north-south, and through which runs Western Canyon Road.  Western Canyon is 
located directly north of Fern Dell.  Western Canyon is largely covered with 
mixed scrub, with mixed chaparral at its eastern portions.  Just east of Western 
Canyon the vegetation is of the oak, sycamore riparian woodland plant 
community.  Mixed scrub is also present in a section between Western Canyon 
and the Observatory.  Within Western Canyon is the West Trail, located in the 
gully of Western Canyon and roughly paralleling Western Canyon Drive (Figure 
120). 
 

 
Figure 120: Western Canyon.  View NE.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  
 
Stemming off of Western Canyon Road near the mouth of the canyon are West 
Observatory Trail and East Observatory Trail.  Both of these trails meet and then 
ultimately end as one trail to the Griffith Observatory, which is located upon a 
bluff between Vermont Canyon and Western Canyon.  Boy Scout Trail originates 
at a point due southeast of the Observatory, continuing eastward to Vermont 
Canyon Road.  This trail, in addition to the merged West and East Observatory 
Trail, meet at a point directly below the Observatory with one trail leading up to 
the Observatory itself.  At the point where these trails meet and due east toward 
the Greek Theatre off of Vermont Canyon, much of the ground cover is not 
chaparral, but is pine.8  Directly behind and above the Observatory is an area 
called the “Berlin Forest.”  The Berlin Forest is named for the numerous trees 
planted by visiting German mayors.  The Berlin Forest is at an elevation of 1,100 
feet and framed by Vermont Canyon Road and Western Canyon Road.  The 

                                                      
8 Melendrez, 4-2. 
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Vermont Tunnel cuts beneath at its northern portion.  The West Trail joins the 
Charlie Turner Trail north of the Berlin Forest. 

Mt. Hollywood 

Directly behind due north of the Berlin Forest is Mt. Hollywood, which at 1,625 
feet is the second tallest peak in Griffith Park, and is the highest point in Griffith 
Park open to the public.  The majority of Mt. Hollywood is mixed chaparral.  
However, sections of it, including around the peak and a small section above the 
Berlin Forest, are covered in mixed scrub.  The peak is an earth-covered graded 
and cleared portion measuring roughly 150 feet x 300 feet.  A set of four picnic 
benches enclosed in a fence is present at the southern portion of this clearing.  
Within the center of this area, set in a concrete slab is a survey marker from the 
Los Angeles Department of Public Works and dated 1952 (Figure 121).   
 

 
Figure 121: Mt. Hollywood peak: City Of Los Angeles  
Engineering Monument Marker.  View S.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, August 2007.  
 
Mt. Hollywood is the only vista in all of Griffith Park that presents 360 degree 
panoramic views of the surrounding region.  Named trails with an end point atop 
Mount Hollywood include the Charlie Turner Trail which runs south of the peak, 
and 3-Mile Trail, which runs down the northwest face of Mt. Hollywood and 
ends at “3-Mile Tree.”  Two unnamed trails: one originating at the Bird 
Sanctuary and the other a spur off of East Ridge/Hogback Trail, are also present 
within the vicinity of Mt. Hollywood.  
 
Immediately west of Mt. Hollywood peak on the west facing slope of the 
mountain is Captain’s Roost with views of the west side to the Pacific Ocean.  
Captain’s Roost is a folk garden with numerous plantings imported into the park 
by an unknown person, known only as “The Captain,” who created the garden 
sometime in the 1940s.  The Garden had been added to over time and has burned 
twice: in 1961 and again in May, 2007.  A second folk garden called Dante’s 
View is located due east of the Mt. Hollywood Peak (Figure 122).  Dante’s View 
was the work of one individual, Dante Orgolini, who constructed the site circa 
1964.  Dante’s View consists of terraced walkways with rock retaining walls, 
rock planters, and metal picnic benches.  A bronze plaque honoring Orgolini is 
present and set in a thick mortar slab base.  Small palm and succulent specimens 



 
Griffith Park Description  

105 
January 2008

 

are present within the garden.  The original plant specimens imported into 
Dante’s View were largely destroyed in a 1990 fire.  The May 2007 fire burned 
the post-1990 replantings.  
 

 
Figure 122: Dante’s View, post-May 2007 Fire.  View E.   
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007.  
 
Mt. Hollywood Drive, a two-lane paved automobile road, runs in a curving and 
switchback manner due west of Mt Hollywood.  One endpoint of this road is at 
Western Canyon just west of the Vermont Tunnel.  Mt. Hollywood Drive 
continues well north of Mt. Hollywood, and ends at Griffith Park Drive.  Griffith 
Park Drive traverses through Oak Canyon due south of and above Los Angeles 
Live Steamers.  Like Vista Del Valle Road, Mt. Hollywood Drive is a former 
automobile road that has since been decommissioned and is used today as a trail.  
The hill-covered portion of Griffith Park between Western Canyon and Brush 
Canyon due west of it is covered in mixed scrub.  

Brush Canyon 

Brush Canyon is a large canyon due southwest of Mt. Hollywood and it runs 
southwest to northeast for roughly ½ mile.  Canyon Drive, which leads to Camp 
Hollywoodland (Girls’ camp), enters Griffith Park at the south edge of Brush 
Canyon.  Though either side of Canyon Drive through Brush Canyon is 
landscaped, running parallel just east of the street is Oak, Sycamore and Riparian 
woodland ground cover.  At the southern portion of Brush Canyon are the 
Bronson Caves.  The Bronson Caves are actually a set of tunnels with one 
opening at the west edge of an unnamed hill and three openings at the east edge.  
The three openings at the east side converge into one opening within the hill, and 
the total length of the tunnel is roughly 137 feet.  At the east side, two smaller 
openings frame one larger opening.  The Bronson Caves are the result of rock 
quarrying activity present at the site from roughly 1900 to 1920.  The height of 
the tunnels is roughly 8 feet, and jagged ore is present at all sides and above 
within the tunnels.  The Bronson Caves are accessed by the Bronson Trail, which 
ends at the caves and originates off of a parking area at the end of Canyon Drive, 
in front of Camp Hollywoodland.  Beyond Camp Hollywoodland, Canyon Drive 
becomes a hiking trail which continues north-east through Brush Canyon for 0.70 
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miles as the crow flies until it curves west at its higher elevation before ending at 
Mulholland Trail.    
 
Due northwest of Brush Canyon and its amenities are the Sunset Ranch stables, 
located within Griffith Park at the end of Beachwood Drive.  Where Beachwood 
Drive enters into Griffith park, a gate is present, as is the beginning of Hollyridge 
Trail, which runs parallel to the road due east of it and continues beyond Sunset 
Ranch Stables due north until it ends at Mulholland Trail.  The hilly area between 
Brush Canyon and the Sunset Stables is covered in mixed scrub, with the rest of 
the surrounding area covered with mixed chaparral. 

Mt. Lee and the Southwest Corner of Griffith Park  

Roughly 2/5 miles northwest of the Sunset Ranch Stables is the apex of Mt. 
Lee;the highest peak in Griffith Park with an elevation of 1,680 feet.   Atop Mt. 
Lee is a grouping of multi-story radio antennae of metal frame construction 
(Figure 123), in addition to two single-story gabled buildings in an L-formation.   
 

 
Figure 123: Mt. Lee Radio Towers, Hollywood Sign.  View N.  
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007. 
 
Just below the peak of Mt. Lee at its south facing slope is the “Hollywood” sign, 
which is of metal frame construction with white-painted metal cladding, each 
letter set upon its own concrete foundation in a manner that corresponds to the 
ridge curvature of the side of the hill.  The apex of Mt. Lee is accessed by Mt. 
Lee Drive, a private road.  Mt. Lee Drive ends at the apex of Mt. Lee and begins 
at the intersection of Mulholland Highway and Deronda Drive above the 
Hollywoodland neighborhood.  A water tower is located to the north above the 
entrance gate.   
 
At the southwest portion of the base of Mt. Lee, in what is the southwest corner 
of Griffith Park, is Lake Hollywood Park, which is located at a point where 
Canyon Lake Drive meets Mulholland Highway.  Above Mount Hollywood Park 
is an unnamed trail at the south face of Mt. Lee that connects Canyon Lake Drive 
to Mulholland Highway.  Just above this trail and downward through a canyon 
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below Mt. Lee and to Lake Hollywood Park, the ground cover is of mixed scrub.  
Northwest of Mt. Lee is Cahuenga Peak, elevation 1,820 feet, which is 
technically outside of Griffith Park proper.  North of Cahuenga Peak is an 
extension of the park that encompasses the rear portion of the Forest Lawn and 
Mount Sinai Memorial Parks.  Just north of this extension is Sennet Canyon, 
which is also immediately outside of Griffith Park and serves as the rear portion 
of Mount Sinai Memorial Park.  

Mt. Chapel and Mt. Bell 

Within Griffith Park, just east of this extension and southeast of Sennet Canyon 
is Mount Chapel, elevation 1,614 feet.  Along the south face of Mount Chapel is 
the Mulholland Trail, which features numerous repeating curves and was 
originally intended to be an extension of Mulholland Highway.  The Mulholland 
Trail begins off of Mt. Lee Drive and continues eastward beneath the peak of Mt. 
Chapel until ending at Mt. Hollywood Drive, which traverses the eastern portion 
of Mt. Chapel in a series of curves, switchbacks and hairpin turns.  An unnamed 
trail begins off of Mt. Hollywood Drive and ends at the apex of Mt. Chapel.  
Additionally, one end of Vista Del Valle Drive begins off of Mount Hollywood 
Drive in a canyon between Mt. Chapel and Mt. Bell, which is due east of it.  
Mount Bell has an elevation of 1,582 feet near the center of Griffith Park.  
Hiking trails around and near the apex of Mt. Bell include: East Ridge/Hogback 
Trail; Mulholland Trail; Mt. Hollywood Trail, and Bill Eckert/East Trail, which 
originates northeast of Mt. Bell at the base of Bee Rock.  Vista Del Valle Drive 
traverses the north and then east faces of Mt. Bell before winding eastward 
toward Bee Rock.  The majority of the ground cover of Mt. Chapel and Mt. Bell 
is mixed chaparral, particularly at their south faces.  However, the north face of 
both mountains features generous portions of oak vegetation, in addition to small 
sections of mixed scrub just west of the Mt. Bell apex. 

Bee Rock, Spring Canyon, Points North of Bee Rock 

Bee Rock has an elevation of 1,056 feet and is located roughly 0.6 miles 
east/southeast of Mt. Bell.  The distinguishing feature of Bee Rock is its large 
exposed sandstone face which faces north (Figure 124). 
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Figure 124: Bee Rock.  View W.  Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, March 2008.  
 
The majority of the vegetation on all faces of Bee Rock is mixed scrub.  Vista 
Del Valle Drive winds just west and then south of the apex off Bee Rock before 
it enters into Spring Canyon, a chaparral-covered canyon which is acclimated 
east-west just south of Bee Rock.  The Bee Rock Trail, one of the first trails 
cleared in Griffith Park, begins due east of Bee Rock in front of the Old Zoo 
Picnic Area, which is located east of Bee Rock and presents a clear view of the 
exposed rock face itself.  Bill Eckert/East Trail runs north of Bee Rock, itself 
originating just northwest of the Old Zoo picnic area.  The Old Zoo Picnic Area 
is located adjacent the Old Zoo (previously described) just east and below Bee 
Rock.  The Old Zoo Trail, originates at the Old Zoo and runs southwest below 
Bee Rock through Spring Canyon and ultimately ends at the Fen Canyon Trail.  
Due north of the Old Zoo Picnic Area and ending just north of it is the Mineral 
Wells Trail, which runs along behind the three “Neighborhood Youth Council” 
(NYC) Picnic areas off of Griffith Park Drive, continuing parallel to Griffith Park 
Drive due northwest until the end of Mineral Wells Canyon and the picnic area 
named for it.  

Points North between Bee Rock and Mt. Bell 

Due north of the point where Mineral Wells Trail traverses the NYC picnic areas, 
Camp Road, a paved automobile road, is present and it lines westward into the 
Griffith Park Boys’ Camp, which is nestled in a canyon between and just north of 
Mt. Bell and Bee Rock.  The unnamed canyon in which the Boys’ Camp resides 
contains plants of the oak and walnut woodland community.  Along a ridgeline of 
hills due north of Camp Road is North Trail, which originates near the Mineral 
Wells picnic area and ends due west just south of the Toyon Canyon Landfill.  
Four metal clad water towers are present along the North Trail.  Off of a 
switchback of the North Trail atop a peak due south of the Mineral Wells Picnic 
area is Amir’s Garden (Figure 125), which overlooks the eastern edge of the 
park.  Like Dante’s View and Captain’s Roost, Amir’s garden is a folk landscape 
spearheaded by one individual, Iranian immigrant Amir Dialameh.  Amir’s 
garden features numerous imported plant specimens and trees, often 
accompanied by planters of pebbles placed in rough mortar.  These are placed 
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upon an east-facing vista with mixed scrub as its native vegetation.  Metal and 
fiberglass picnic benches are present as is a wood sign at the entrance, which 
reads “Amir’s Garden: Since 1971.”   
 

 
Figure 125: Amir’s Garden, 1971.  Entrance.  View S. 
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, October 2007.  

Toyon Canyon and Landfill Natural Restoration Project 
and Royce’s Canyon 

To the west of Amir’s Garden and northwest of the Boys’ Camp is the Toyon 
Canyon landfill, a graded, earth-covered landfill that is currently a landscape 
restoration project.  This project, overseen by the City Bureau of Sanitation, will 
restore the landfill to a passive-use meadow.  The Toyon Canyon landfill is 1/3 x 
1/2 mile in dimension, and is covered with packed earth.  The northeast portion 
of the area is stepped and terraced down the side of a hill that ends near the base 
of Mineral Wells Canyon.  Toyon Trail is present along the northwest portion of 
the landfill, and an unnamed spur of it continues southwest parallel to Mount 
Hollywood Drive.  Mount Hollywood Drive, which originates north of Toyon 
Canyon off of Griffith Park Drive, winds westward of Toyon Canyon.  A 
winding, unnamed trail spurs off of Mt. Hollywood Drive just before it passes 
along the eastern edge of Royce’s Canyon.  Royce’s Canyon is a deep, east-west 
acclimated canyon due south of Toyon Canyon and north of Mt. Chapel.  No 
named trails are present within Royce’s Canyon, which is largely a mixed scrub 
environment with oak and sycamore riparian communities at its west end.  
Immediately west of the Toyon Landfill are hills with a presence of pine 
specimens.  At the western edge of Griffith Park northwest of Toyon Canyon just 
above Oak Canyon, the vegetation is largely oak and walnut woodland 
community.  Directly between Toyon Landfill and Oak Canyon are numerous 
vegetation communities including, from west to east:  oak walnut woodland, 
mixed scrub, pine, oak, and mixed chaparral. 
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Oak Canyon, Composting Educational Facility, and 
Points East 

Due north of Toyon Canyon is Oak Canyon, which acclimated in a general east-
west direction.  A segment of Griffith Park Drive runs through the middle of Oak 
Canyon.  Parallel south of Griffith Park Drive is the Oak Canyon Trail, which 
originates just west of Travel Town and terminates at Mount Hollywood Drive.  
Other named trails within the Oak Canyon vicinity include Migdal Trail and the 
western portion of Skyline Trail, both along the northern ridge of Oak Canyon.  
Though the majority of Oak Canyon is mixed chaparral, the canyon also features 
oak, sycamore riparian woodland plant communities.  The Travel Town 
Transportation Museum, previously described, is located due north of Oak 
Canyon.  Between it and the Los Angeles Live Steamers complex located to the 
east of it is Rattlesnake Trail, which originates off of Zoo Drive and winds 
southward until it meets Griffith Park Drive.  Two metal water towers are present 
due east of Rattlesnake Trail in an area behind Los Angeles Live Steamers.  To 
the east of Oak Canyon is a Composting Educational Facility.  Skyline Trail runs 
along the ridge due north of the Composting Facility.  Skyline Trail continues 
eastward atop a ridgeline that is roughly parallel to Zoo Drive below it, and this 
trail ends at the northern boundary of the Los Angeles Zoo.  In the general 
vicinity of where Skyline Trail passes above Pecan Grove Picnic Area, a metal 
clad water tank is present.  Just east of the Composting facility is Condor Trail, 
which originates off of Skyline Trail and moves southward, ending at a bend in 
Griffith Park Drive near the Mineral Wells picnic area.  The land vegetation 
between the composting educational facility and the Los Angeles Zoo is 
primarily mixed chaparral, with an oak community adjacent a northwest portion 
of the Los Angeles Zoo.  

Equestrian and Bike Paths in the Los Angeles River 
Vicinity 

In addition to trails present within the wilderness portion of Griffith Park, 
additional equestrian trails are present that run along the perimeter of the Park 
where it meets the State Route 134 and Interstate 5 freeways.  Additional 
equestrian trails are located along the perimeter of the Los Angeles Equestrian 
Center, between the center and the Bette Davis Picnic Area, along the Los 
Angeles River near the Equestrian center, and through the Martinez Area just 
west of Travel Town.  Additionally, the LA River Bike Path runs parallel the 
river through Griffith Park from the Pecan Grove Picnic Area due east and then 
bending south with the river and ultimately beyond the southern boundary of 
Griffith Park itself.  The Baum Bicycle Bridge, previously described, is part of 
the LA River Bike Path and crosses over Los Feliz Boulevard within Griffith 
Park.  According to the 2007 Griffith Park Master Plan, there is no pre-existing, 
original vegetation in any of the Park due north and east of the Los Angeles 
River. 
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The May 2007 Fire 

On May 8, 2007, a windswept fire burned 817 acres within the central, 
wilderness portion of Griffith Park.  Named features that were either destroyed or 
seriously damaged include Captain’s Roost, Dante’s View, and non-built land 
within the Bird Sanctuary.  The few buildings, structures objects present within 
these resources survived intact, though the majority of plant life was burned.  
Originating as an accidental, human-caused fire off of Commonwealth Canyon 
Drive above the Roosevelt Golf Course, the fire charred the east portion of the 
wilderness area, including the areas of and around Beacon Hill, Fern Canyon, 
Glendale Peak, Aberdeen Canyon, Mt. Hollywood, Spring Canyon, and Bee 
Rock.  Lost in the burn area was the majority of the naturally occurring ground 
cover, most of which was chaparral and trees.  As of March 2008 new plant life, 
much of which is ruderal, is beginning to reappear and efforts are underway by a 
variety of municipal, non-profit and private entities to restore the lost habitat.  
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ATTACHMENT D:  Griffith Park Significance  

Summary  
The result of a remarkable act of generosity, Griffith Park is the largest 
interurban wilderness park in the United States, and is now surrounded by the 
vast metropolis once predicted by Colonel Griffith J. Griffith.  At 4,218 acres, 
Griffith Park comprises one-fourth the total acreage of Los Angeles City 
parkland.  Aside from natural wilderness, Griffith Park consists of numerous 
educational, recreational, and other built amenities, some of which are already 
vested with historic significance as icons for the City.  Griffith Park represents 
the largest private land gift Los Angeles has ever received and is unique, even at 
a national level, for possessing a large-scale, mostly untouched landscape in the 
center of an urban metropolis.  Large portions of this landscape appear to retain 
integrity dating back to the period of the Gabrielino Indians who were the earliest 
known inhabitants of the region. 

Griffith Park meets the first Criterion for City of Los Angeles Historic 
Cultural Monument (HCM) eligibility, “...in which the broad cultural, 
political, economic, or social history of the nation, state, or community is 
reflected or exemplified:”   

Colonel Griffith specifically mandated that the property forever be 
available as a park to people of “modest means.”  The gift of Griffith 
Park to the City and its people in 1896 by Colonel Griffith and his wife 
Mary Agnes Christina Mesmer (Tina Griffith) is a historically significant 
gesture completed within the turn-of-the-century context of large-scale 
philanthropy from the wealthy to the many, in addition to the context of 
the City Beautiful Movement.  Griffith Park is also significant in the 
City’s historic pursuit of a reliable year-round supply of water for its 
rapidly increasing population at the end of the 19th century.  
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Griffith Park meets the second City of Los Angeles HCM Criterion, “...which 
are identified with historic personages or with events in the main currents of 
national, state, or local history:”   

Griffith Park is historically associated with Colonel Griffith J. Griffith 
and his wife Tina Griffith who deeded 3,015 acres of their property to 
the City of Los Angeles.  Prior to this act, Colonel Griffith’s consistent 
and substantial deeds of philanthropy to the City in the late 19th century 
made him one of the “wheel horses,” as he was called by contemporaries, 
of the City’s early development.  Aside from donating the park land 
itself, Colonel Griffith underwrote the Greek Theatre and the Griffith 
Observatory, both completed after his death in 1919.    

 
Griffith Park is historically associated with Van Griffith, Colonel 
Griffith’s son, who as park developer and commissioner in the years 
following his father’s death implemented and defended his father’s 
wishes for Griffith Park.  Griffith Park is historically associated with 
Park Superintendent Frank Shearer who oversaw the first recreational 
and irrigation developments in the park.  Griffith Park is also historically 
associated to later Recreation and Parks Superintendent George Hjelte, a 
noted national authority on recreation who oversaw the expansion of 
various recreational activities in Griffith Park during the World War II 
era.  Many of these recreational amenities are primary reasons why the 
Los Angeles citizenry and their children make Griffith Park a destination 
today.   
 
The history of Griffith Park presents passing associations with other 
important Angelinos, including Corporal Jose Vicente Feliz, the first 
Comisionado (Manager) of the Los Angeles Pueblo and original owner 
of the Feliz Rancho—the majority of which is today Griffith Park; Don 
Coronel, a Californio and early Los Angeles mayor who later owned and 
lived on the rancho; and Walt Disney, who was a frequent park visitor 
and whose model railroad workshop was moved to the Los Angeles Live 
Steamers Railroad Museum.  The diversity of these individuals points to 
Griffith Park’s significance as an early testament of a transforming Los 
Angeles—from open rancho to Anglo settlement, and its later association 
to people intimately identified with the City and its image across the 
world.    

 
Griffith Park is eligible for City HCM listing under the third City monuments 
Criterion: “…which embody the distinguishing characteristics of an 
architectural-type specimen, inherently valuable for a study of a period, 
style, or method of construction:”   

Within Griffith Park are numerous structures and buildings that are intact 
and expressive examples of the Spanish Revival, Moderne, and Second 
Greek Revival design systems.  The vast majority of these resources 
were completed within the Park’s period of significance: 1896-1958.  
Additionally, throughout Griffith Park are many excellent examples of 
retaining walls, culverts, drainage channels, barriers, pedestrian bridges, 
and drinking fountains primarily completed by various federally assisted 
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work groups of the 1930s including the Reconstruction Finance 
Corporation (RFC) and the Civilian Conservation Corps (CCC).  These 
objects are built in the rustic, “Park Style” of design as seen within 
National Parks of the same era. 

The National Park Service defines a Cultural Landscape as “a geographic 
area, including both cultural and natural resources and the wildlife or 
domestic animals therein, associated with a historic event, activity, or 
person or exhibiting other cultural or aesthetic values.”1  Taken as a 
whole, Griffith Park’s eligibility under the above mentioned criteria 
render it a historically significant cultural landscape for the City of Los 
Angeles.  

Griffith Park is significant under the fourth City Monuments Criterion, 
“…which are a notable work of a master builder, designer, or architect 
whose individual genius influenced his or her age:”   

Griffith Park contains the Griffith Observatory, completed by the firm of 
John C. Austin & Frederic M. Ashley who were architects of Los 
Angeles City Hall.  Their work was done in consultation with the unsung 
architect Russell W. Porter, a noted expert in the field of telescope 
design who contributed greatly to the final design of the Griffith Park 
Observatory.  Other locally significant architects with buildings in 
Griffith Park include Peter K. Schabarum, architect of the Greek 
Theatre; William L. Pereira & Associates: architects of the former 
Children’s Theater Costume Workshop—today called “LA Shares”—and 
the Modernist firm of Jones, Emmons & Contini, architects of the 
Griffith Park Girls’ Camp. 

 
 

                                                      
1 National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior (Charles A. Birnbaum, ASLA), “Preservation Briefs 36: 
Protecting Cultural Landscapes.” online version. Washington D.C.: National Park Service, 1994. 
http://www.nps.gov/history/hps/tps/briefs/brief36.htm   viewed 24 April 2008. 
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Colonel Griffith J. Griffith                                            Mary Agnes Christina “Tina” Griffith (Mesmer) 
Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection         Courtesy: UCLA Special Collections 
 

Colonel Griffith J. Griffith and his wife Tina Griffith together donated Griffith Park to the City of Los Angeles.   

 
 

Early History 
The land that would become Griffith Park was originally a portion of the 6,647-
acre Rancho Los Feliz.  Jose Vicente Feliz, originally from Sonora, Mexico, had 
trekked through Griffith Park as a soldier with the party of Juan Bautista de 
Anza, a Spanish settler who colonized what became the first Pueblo in Alta 
California, and is today San Jose.2  The De Anza party had camped within a 
portion of the park located near the bend in the Los Angeles River.  In June 1781, 
Jose Vicente Feliz, now a corporal, was one of the soldiers who escorted the 
original 11 families from Sonora to the settlement that would become the Pueblo 
of Los Angeles in September of that year.  Feliz later became the Pueblo’s first 
Commisionado—a role akin to a supervisor—and as such he had the highest 
authority of any single individual within the original Pueblo. 

Sometime between 1795 and 1800, near the time of Feliz’s retirement from 
public service, the Spanish Crown granted Feliz the 6,647 acre rancho as a gift 
for his loyalty.  The earliest extant building in Griffith Park, a thick, walled 
adobe residence off of Crystal Springs Drive, was built in the 1830s by one of 
Jose Vicente Feliz’s children: Jose Paco Feliz.  Dona Maria Ygnacia Feliz, a 
daughter-in-law to Jose Vicente Feliz, assumed ownership of the property upon 
her husband’s death and early on secured the water rights to the Rancho.  These 
water rights later became a significant factor in the City’s acceptance of the park 

                                                      
2 Mike Eberts, Griffith Park: A Centennial History (Los Angeles: The Historical Society of Southern California, 
1996) 11-12.    
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as a gift from Colonel Griffith.  The land that now comprises Griffith Park was 
later acquired by Dona Maria’s brother in law, Antonio Feliz, who in turned 
willed it to Don Antonio Coronel.  This transaction took place against the wishes 
of Feliz’s niece Petranilla, who had lived with him on the property, and who 
stood to be its sole heir.  Upon finding that she was not to receive the property, 
according to popular legend, she is believed to have cursed it.  

Don Antonio Coronel was the lawyer for the Feliz family.3  Additionally, 
Coronel was an early Justice of the Peace, and was later a captain in the Mexican 
army during the Mexican-American War.  Once California fell under United 
States’ rule, Coronel took an active role in local politics, becoming the first 
County Assessor and later mayor of the City of Los Angeles.  Coronel 
established the City’s first Department of Public Works and later became State 
Treasurer.  Helen Hunt Jackson developed the initial idea for the romantic novel 
that would become Ramona while staying with Don Antonio and his wife, Dona 
Mariana.  In 1883 Don Antonio helped create the Historical Society of Southern 
California, and his collection of various Spanish, Mexican, and native artifacts is 
housed at the Los Angeles County Museum of Natural History.4  The Rancho 
was later sold to John Baldwin, who had intended to make the Rancho profitable, 
but failed, and supposedly sold the Rancho to pay off his mortgage.5 

 

 

Don Antonio Coronel, early Californio and 
former owner of the Griffith Park property.    
Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo 
Collection 
 
 

                                                      
3   Mike Eberts, Griffith Park, 20.    
4 John R. Kielbasa, Historic Adobes of Los Angeles County (Pittsburgh: Dorrance Publishing Company, 1997) 96. 
5 Eberts, “Griffith Park,” 18. 
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 From 1873 to 1882, Griffith had lived in San Francisco  , where his journalism 
education yielded him a job as the business manager for the Herald Publishing 
Company.6  By 1878, Griffith became the mining correspondent for the Daily 
Alta California, a San Francisco newspaper that was at the time the region’s 
largest.7  During this period, with his knowledge of the mining industry 
expanding, Griffith became acquainted with various mining companies of the 
United States along with their leaders.  Griffith himself become a mining 
consultant through their acquaintance, and began investing in various mining 
activities across California, Arizona, Nevada, and New Mexico.8  These were the 
activities that netted Griffith a small fortune. 

Griffith visited Los Angeles twice between c.1873 and 1882.  In 1882, he sold 
part of his Mexico mining interests for $50,000.00, toured the world—an event 
that Griffith claimed  influenced his donation of Griffith Park—and moved onto 
the Rancho, 4,071 acres of which he had purchased from Thomas Bell on 
December 8, 1882, for an unknown price ranging anywhere from $8,000 to 
$50,000.9 

In his first years in Los Angeles, Griffith focused his energies on developing his 
ranch and stocked it with the highest quality cattle available.10  During this time, 
Griffith Park was still located 3 miles outside of city limits, in an area perceived 
as the outskirts.  During the Los Angeles housing boom of the 1880s, Griffith 
profited handsomely by selling large portions of his Los Feliz, Kenilworth, and 
Ivanhoe sections of the Rancho for housing development.11  The rugged, rocky 
portions of the Rancho remained unsold during this time.  However, the section 
of Griffith Park that today features the merry-go-round was originally home to an 
ostrich farm and amusement facility during the mid and late 1880s.12  This 
ostrich facility, run by Dr. Charles J. Sketchley of South Africa, was the first 
recreational attraction in what would later become Griffith Park.  The ostrich 
farm was instrumental in bringing the public to the park for the first time.  Dr. 
Sketchley and Colonel Griffith even constructed a narrow gauge railroad to bring 
people to the ostrich farm from a point beginning at the present day Sunset and 
Beaudry Avenues.  Similar to lion and alligator farms, which were also common 
during that time, ostriches were a popular, “exotic” amusement.  Their plumage 
was fashionable in women’s clothing during this period, particularly hats.  Other 
ostrich farms in the region were present in South Pasadena, Eastlake Park, and in 
Anaheim.  Colonel Griffith saw the ostrich farm and the railroad leading up to it 
as highly advantageous.  At that time Griffith had subdivided much of the 
Rancho, and the train trip to the ostrich farm served as free advertising for the 
land traversed by the line.  Though Griffith succeeded in selling much of his 

                                                      
6 “Death Claims G.J. Griffith,” Los Angeles Times, 7 Jul 1919: II1. 
7 “Copied from notes lent me by Miss M. Morgan,” Van Griffith family papers, 1845-1973, UCLA special 
collections. 
8 “Griffith’s Generous Gift,” Los Angeles Times, Dec 17 1896: 9. 
9 Griffith’s brother in law Joseph Mesmer stated Griffith paid $8,000 for the property (Mesmer felt the property was 
worth less than that), and the $50,000 estimated price is quoted from son Van Griffith. Eberts, Griffith Park,35,  38-
39;  “Chronological,” single sheet, Van Griffith family papers, 1845-1973, UCLA. Special Collections. 
10 Ibid, 37. 
11 Today, Ivanhoe and Kenilworth are portions of Silverlake. 
12 Eberts, Griffith Park, 21.  
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property for residential subdivision, by the time that the housing boom ceased in 
the late 1880s, the inner, hilly portion of the Rancho remained unsold.  Griffith 
offered 100 acres to the City for a park at $750/acre: an offer that the city 
declined.  The ostrich farm was closed by the end of the 1880s.  

By 1885, Griffith was spending less time at his Ranch and more in the City 
proper.  During his city-dwelling years, Griffith began to evolve the big and 
expressive personality by which many would later identify him.  During this 
time, Griffith exhibited the first tendencies of a charitable streak toward the City 
of Los Angeles.  According to his half-sister, Margaret Morgan, Griffith donated:   

East Adams street 82-1/2 feet in width from San Pedro to Hooper, and a mile of Central 
Ave. from Washington Street south…. Later he donated $3,000 for the first car line built 
south on that boulevard.  In order to make Washington Street straight and uniform he 
moved his fence back and donated 48 feet of that 80-foot street the entire distance from 
San Pedro St. to Central Ave. 

The curve, corner of Vermont and Hollywood Blvd., he gave to the city, also half of the 
Blvd. for a block west, and served for two years with Hollywood people in opening and 
widening Sunset Blvd. to 100 feet, and offered to furnish enough gravel free to 
macadamize it from city to the sea.13 

According to George Rice in the 1912 pamphlet, “His Reward:” 

Col Griffith was one of the “Wheel Horses” for every great movement for the upbuilding of 
this community.  The greatest event in our history was the commencement of work on the 
San Pedro breakwater, which was celebrated for two days.  It was on his motion in the 
Chamber of Commerce that the event was christened “Free Harbor Jubilee.”  It required 
$22,000 to make that celebration a success, and Col Griffith was one of the largest 
contributors to that fund, as well as to many other enterprises I might mention.14 

Perhaps the most significant of these early charitable gifts came in 1884 and 
1885 when Griffith sold to the City the right to access water from the section of 
the Los Angeles River that flowed through his Feliz Rancho.  Griffith sold these 
rights for $50,000, although they were believed to be worth much more at the 
time, another demonstration of his charity. 

Water was a particularly valuable resource in the 1880s at the time of the sale, 
because it was during this time that Los Angeles experienced its first significant 
boom in population and growth.  The boom period, which lasted from 1885 to 
1888, was fed by the completion of the Southern Pacific and Santa Fe 
transcontinental rail lines into the City, which in turn initiated a price war and a 
tremendous influx of new residents.  The population of Los Angeles jumped 
from 11,183 people in 1880 to 50,395 people in 1890.15 

                                                      
13 Ibid. 
14 George Rice, “His Reward,” pamphlet, 1912. Transcribed page. Van Griffith family papers, 1845-1973.  UCLA 
Special Collections. 
15 Phillip J. Ethington, “The Growth of Los Angeles,” in Hylda L. Rudd, Ed., et.al, The Development of Los 
Angeles City Government: An Institutional History, 1850-2000, Volume 2 (Los Angeles: Los Angeles Historical 
Society, 2007) 658. 
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In 1887, during the peak of this boom, Griffith married Christina Mesmer, a 
descendant of the Verdugo family (who themselves were briefly associated to the 
Feliz Rancho), and the daughter of the owners of the United States Hotel, one of 
the more lavish hotels in the City.  Though Griffith had already earned a 
significant amount of money in his lifetime, through this marriage his wealth 
increased considerably.  Officially, it was together with his wife that Griffith 
would present to the City his grandest charitable gift yet:  the large section of the 
Feliz Rancho that became Griffith Park. 

 

The “Christmas Present” 
On December 16, 1896, Colonel Griffith J. Griffith, extravagantly dressed and 
leading an entourage of four dozen prominent citizens, strode into a special 
meeting of City Council whose purpose had been kept secret from the public.  In 
this meeting, Mayor Frank Rader, who had been in on the meeting’s secret intent, 
introduced Colonel Griffith, who presented the mayor a roll of paper tied in a 
blue ribbon.  This roll included the property deed, its stipulations, and a 
memorandum letter stating Griffith’s intention to donate 3,015 acres of his Los 
Feliz Rancho to the City of Los Angeles to be made available to the public as a 
city park.  This was, in Griffith’s words, a “Christmas Present,” to the City of 
Los Angeles. 

 

Griffith Park illustration from 1896 Los Angeles Times 
article announcing the donation.16  

 
                                                      
16 “Griffith’s Generous Gift,” Los Angeles Times Dec 17, 1896: 9, courtesy ProQuest Historical Newspapers Los 
Angeles Times (1881 - 1986).  
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For the City of Los Angeles, the occasion was momentous not just for the 
acquisition of a new park, but primarily for the free and clear water rights that 
came with it.  The mayor stated as much on receiving the gift from Griffith 
during this presentation.17  Water acquisition was both reason for and necessity 
of the City’s significant growth of this period.  Providing water for irrigation and 
domestic consumption has always been one of Los Angeles’ most important 
services.  The City’s efforts to secure water are a character-defining feature of its 
early history, and its early water system relied heavily on the flow of the Los 
Angeles River.  Wells tapped pockets of groundwater, and a system of irrigation 
ditches, or zanjas, conveyed water to various sections of the city.18  Until 1902, 
Los Angeles did not possess its own water utility but rather relied on private 
interests to provide water for the City, notably “The Los Angeles City Water 
Company,” which was chiefly responsible for the distribution of water 
throughout the City. 

 

 

Zanja in Griffith Park connecting to Los Angeles River.  
Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection 

 

With the gift Griffith specifically stipulated that his water rights were to be 
owned by the City, and the Griffiths donated large provisions to make sure of 
this.  For the park, Griffith and his wife originally intended to donate “only” 
2,000 acres, but after speaking with Mayor Rader in private prior to the donation, 
Griffith added to the gift an additional 1,000 acres of property that ran along 4.5 
miles of the Los Angeles River.  Though Griffith had already sold the City the 
use of his water in the mid-1880s, water laws of the time were highly 
complicated and still left the City vulnerable to possible litigation by Griffith or 

                                                      
17 “Griffith’s Generous Gift,” Los Angeles Times ,  Dec 17, 1896. 
18 Hetzel, Christopher (Historic Resources Group), Echo Park. City of Los Angeles Historic Cultural Monument 
Nomination. Los Angeles, CA, 2005: continuation sheet 7. 
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other owners of riverside property.  The expanded donation of land not only 
made for a significantly larger park, but provided the City security that it now 
had clear access to enough water that it need not hassle with other river-adjacent 
property owners over water rights and ownership.  Griffith’s water gift occurred 
17 years before the opening of the Owens Valley Aqueduct. 

By early 1898 the necessary property survey was complete and the formal deed 
transfer was conducted in a ceremony on March 5.  As part of the ceremony, 
prominent politicians including Mayor M. F. Snyder, Senator Stephen D. White, 
and Judge J.W. McKinley all gave speeches commending the remarkable 
generosity of Colonel Griffith, and Griffith was designated a life honorary 
member of the City Chamber of Commerce, the first time such a title had been 
conferred upon an individual in the City. 

The donation of the land included a couple of basic stipulations.  If they were 
broken, the park was to revert to Griffith, his family, or his heirs.  In giving the 
land, Griffith stated that the land was to be used as a park, “for the purposes of 
recreation, health and pleasure, for the use and benefit of the inhabitants of the 
said City of Los Angeles forever.”  Aside from mandating that the land always be 
used as a park, and always be made available to individuals of modest means, 
Griffith mandated that the property always be known as Griffith Park.19  In 
stipulating the land as a park available to everyone, Griffith answered to broader 
concerns of the time that cities were incapable of fostering healthy populations. 

The City Beautiful Movement  
Development of Los Angeles’ parks facilities was part of the “City Beautiful” 
movement, a progressive, nationwide social movement aimed at city 
beautification and urban revitalization. 20  A reaction against the perceived ills of 
the Industrial Revolution as inflicted on cities, the City Beautiful movement 
promoted the philosophy that the problems of urban poverty, slums, and 
industrial growth could be eradicated or controlled by the creation of parks, green 
space, and other forms of recreation. 

In the mid-nineteenth century, this movement began with the creation of large, 
municipal parks in many eastern and midwestern cities.  The creation of New 
York City’s Central Park in 1858, for example, inaugurated this movement as a 
conscious effort to control urban growth.  The park caused the value of adjacent 
land to increase and significantly affected the physical and cultural development 
of New York City.21 

                                                      
19 In addition to these stipulations, Griffith clearly stated allowances for the City to have ownership of all water 
rights upon the property and also stated that transportation uses through or within the park would also be 
permissible. 
20 The primary ideas and writing of this section are authored by Christoper Hetzel, Jones & Stokes. November, 
2007. 
21 For more information on New York’s Central Park see Roy Rosenzweig and Elizabeth Blackmar, The Park and 
the People: A History of Central Park (Ithaca, NY: Cornell University Press, 1992. 
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Such planning later turned to preserving the natural environment.  The United 
States Congress established Yellowstone National Park in 1875, and New York 
state formed the New York State Reservation at Niagara Falls in 1885.  Industrial 
development threatened the natural character of these two areas, and many 
people adamantly supported their protection.  Meanwhile, the desire to escape 
from the ills of urbanization and industrialization in American cities manifested 
itself in the creation of the first theme parks and pleasure resorts at Coney Island 
and Atlantic City and the many zoos and menageries.  In architecture, the City 
Beautiful movement manifested itself through Beaux-Arts design and principles 
as promulgated at the 1893 Columbian World Exposition in Chicago. 

Los Angeles developed somewhat slower than the rest of the country in this 
regard, primarily due to its small size and a vast supply of readily available space 
in the late nineteenth century.  The area remained semi-agricultural through the 
1880s and 1890s, and an imagery of an urban arcadia prevailed.  Matters of 
public recreational space were further complicated by the City’s inheritance of 
conflicting land surveys, a result of early survey methods, and a resistance to 
government restrictions on land speculation.  People supported this movement 
for various reasons.  Some promoters were genuinely concerned for cities and 
their residents, while others supported the movement because it furthered their 
own interests.  Proponents generally offered three major reasons for “city 
beautification,” each with corollary benefits and advantages. 

First, the creation of landscaped parks effectively increased, or at least stabilized, 
the value of surrounding property.  City planners hoped to make areas of the City 
more attractive and desirable to residents in order to improve land values.  
Closely associated with land speculation, the strongest park promoters were 
frequently those living adjacent to public land and those who would most benefit 
from its use. 

A second argument was the belief that such developments affected the social 
behavior of city residents.  Supporters believed that nature had positive 
psychological effects on social behavior and argued that parks provided working 
class populations with an escape from the toils of everyday living.  Nature was 
thought to make workers happier and more productive, and park advocates 
maintained that city beautification and the establishment of public recreation 
facilities created a sense of civic pride by increasing a citizen’s emotional 
attachment to the community.  For politicians, these benefits meant their 
constituency would be happier, more unified, and easier to control.  People 
viewed parks and recreation centers as public places where members of all 
income levels could associate, thus serving as instruments of class reconciliation 
and democratization.  Easily accessible through the use of public transit, such as 
the Los Angeles’ Red Car lines, many public parks were frequented by rich and 
poor alike. 

Proponents offered health benefits as yet another reason for the establishment of 
parks and recreation facilities.  Many people believed that qualities of the natural 
environment reduced the prevalence of disease and improved public health.  
Ocean breezes and sea water, for example, were thought to have remedial 
properties and that public beaches provided escape from the crowded and filthy 
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conditions of urban living.  In the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, 
people knew little about the cause of disease.  They only knew that patients were 
cured, or their conditions improved, when exposed to natural surroundings. 

In keeping with the zeitgeist of the times, city leaders during the turn of the 
century spoke highly of the need for public parks, and how the local climate 
would be advantageous to their development.  In 1889, the City established the 
country’s first Department of Parks to administer the City’s parks, which 
included the Plaza (1781), Pershing Square (1870), Westlake Park (1887), 
Eastlake Park (1889), and Elysian Park (1886). 

The City Beautiful Movement and Griffith Park 
Among the symptoms of the industrial movement that City Beautiful aimed to 
combat were pollution, unchecked urban growth, tenements, and grueling labor, 
particularly for children and the poor.  Perhaps having viewed this in the 
Pennsylvania and New York of his modest youth, Griffith saw one possible 
future for fast-growing Los Angeles.  Griffith correctly predicted that one day 
Los Angeles would be a vast metropolis, and therefore parks, including his own 
massive donation, were vital to the future health of people and the City. 

Griffith himself articulated this need in various statements, which included the 
writing of a 1910 self-published book entitled Parks, Boulevards, and 
Playgrounds:  

That there must be an outlet for the population that chokes in the streets and alleys of our cities; 
that fresh air, communion with nature and amusements other than those afforded by the cheap 
theatre, moving picture show or saloon, are requisites of public health, and is worth spending 
money on—all this has become a settled conviction among those who think at all.22   

Sunlight and air are the first requisites of sanity and health….Public parks are a safety valve of 
great cities and should be made accessible and attractive, where neither race nor creed nor color 
should be excluded….Give nature a chance to do her good work and nature will give every person 
a greater strength in health, strength and mental power.23  

                                                      
22 Griffith, Griffith J, Parks, Boulevards, and Playgrounds (Los Angeles: Prison reform League Publishing Co., 
1910). Excerpted from Eberts, Mike, Griffith Park: A Centennial History (Los Angeles: The Historical Society of 
Southern California, 1996). 
23 Eberts, “Griffith Park,” 5, 399 (Griffith J. Griffith, “The Autobiography of Colonel Griffith Jenkins Griffith,” 
p.30, manuscript, Van Griffith Papers, Collection 2060, UCLA Special Collections.) 
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Griffith Park, 1912. Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection 

Aside from the Plaza, which was the City’s first park, early City parks were 
either funded in part by private citizens and became genteel and exclusive spaces 
for repose, or often were built on bona fide unimprovable land.  Through 
donating the land to the City as a park, Griffith was no longer responsible to pay 
taxes on land that was virtually unimprovable, and he joked about this on the day 
of the donation.24  Though he was successful in subdividing portions of the 
Rancho into communities that today are portions of Los Feliz and Silverlake, the 
large, hilly portion of the Rancho that is today within Griffith Park was seen as 
too full of canyons, too craggy, and too rocky for subdivision, and too arid for 
animal grazing or crops.  In 1890, Griffith had offered some of the property to 
the City for $750.00/acre, an offer they declined. 

Nonetheless, the gift appears to have been very much a generous donation, one 
that the Griffiths wanted to give free and clear, on terms that would satisfy the 
City.  Along with the property itself, Griffith covered an $80,000 mortgage, and 
included $10,000 worth of water-related improvements to accompany the water 
rights themselves.25  The total valuation of the gift was estimated at more than 
$300,000.26  Griffith and Mesmer’s gift of a park space that instantly became the 
largest city park in the country falls within a category of big and benevolent 
philanthropy that was a feature of the late nineteenth century and brought with it 
the presence of “standing” within a community. 

Turn of the Century Philanthropy 
As previously mentioned, Griffith’s charitable giving predated the donation of 
the Griffith Park land, and Griffith was considered one of the early “wheel 
horses” for the upbuilding of the City.  Colonel Griffith was wealthy at a time in 
the history of the United States when excess wealth from individual efforts and 

                                                      
24 Boyle Workman, Boyle Workman’s The City That Grew (Los Angeles: Southland Pub. Co, 1936) 229. 
25 Gift of the Rancho. Transcribed page. Van Griffith family papers, 1845-1973.  UCLA Special Collections. 
26 Eberts, “Griffith Park,” 3, 399 (Henry Winfred Splinter, “Los Angeles Recreation, 1846-1900,” Southern 
California Quarterly, XVIII (June 1961): 192) and “Griffith’s Generous Gift: Three Thousand Acres Presented to be 
a City Park Forever,” Los Angeles Times, Dec 17 1896: 9. 
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accomplishments through industry, rather than through pre-inherited land or 
monarchy, was a new phenomenon. 

Griffith’s philanthropy falls in line with a common trend among industrialists at 
the turn of the century of making charitable contributions that they felt would 
benefit and improve a wide swath of the populace.  In the United States, for 
example, this trend was best exemplified in the giving of two of Griffith’s 
contemporaries:  J.D. Rockefeller, Sr., and Andrew Carnegie.  In the process of 
becoming innovators within their respective industries (oil and steel), J.D. 
Rockefeller and Andrew Carnegie are the best-known examples of capitalist 
philanthropists from the first generation of Americans to profit abundantly from 
the Industrial Revolution. 

J.D. Rockefeller, Sr., widely credited as the richest American in history, made 
tens of millions of dollars through the company he founded, Standard Oil.  
Rockefeller subsequently donated millions of dollars to the fields of medical 
research and education.  His son J.D. Rockefeller, Jr. continued this trend of 
giving throughout the first half of the twentieth century, continuing to establish 
charitable organizations, donating thousands of acres to national parks, and even 
donating the land on which the United Nations headquarters was later built.  
Similarly, Andrew Carnegie made a fortune in steel and the ability to produce it 
efficiently.  The U.S. rail industry used his steel to build thousands of miles of 
rail across the country.  In 1901, Carnegie Steel was sold to J.P. Morgan and was 
merged into U.S. Steel.  With the earnings from this transaction, Andrew 
Carnegie donated tens of millions of dollars for numerous projects related to 
education and social advancement, including the construction of hundreds of 
public libraries, popularly called “Carnegie Libraries,” across the United States, 
Canada, Northern Europe and Australia.  All three of these individuals were seen 
as “Captains of Industry,” and implicitly perceived as among the most successful 
capitalists, and therefore most powerful individuals in the United States. 

For Los Angeles, Griffith’s gestures and giving are a regional manifestation of 
this trend.  Through his extravagant dress, robustness of presence, and through 
the giving itself, it appears that Griffith may have consciously intended such an 
association.  Though Griffith certainly succeeded in making a bold statement 
through the gift, Griffith himself—like Andrew Carnegie—was an immigrant 
born of the “plain people.”  He stipulated the park always be made available for 
such people.  Griffith’s half-sister, Margaret Morgan, stated that “He was 
sympathetic with the poor because he had been a poor boy.”27 

Born in Glamorganshire, Wales, on January 4, 1850, Griffith J. Griffith arrived in 
the United States at age 16 with an uncle who had already been living in the 
country.  Griffith settled in Ashland, Pennsylvania, where he attended school and 
was virtually adopted for a period of five years by Benjamin and Jane Mowry of 
Danville, Pennsylvania.  The Mowrys were a religiously devout couple who lost 
their son in the Civil War.  Once Griffith became wealthy, the first individuals of 
“modest means” to whom he reached out were not the future patrons of Griffith 

                                                      
27 “Visited Miss Margaret Morgan April 8.” type-written single sheet note, Van Griffith family papers, 1845-1973, 
UCLA special collections. 
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Park but his own family members, including those who reared him.  Griffith 
moved his by-then-separated parents to the United States, settling his father’s 
family with him at the Feliz Rancho and settling his mother’s family in 
Pennsylvania.  Griffith also financially took care of the Mowrys the rest of their 
lives once he had heard of their later destitution. 

At the time of the Colonel and Tina Griffith’s donation, Griffith Park, at 3,015 
acres, became the largest interurban park with wilderness in the Western world.  
This is in comparison to similar parks of the time, including the Bois de 
Bolougne in Paris, France, at 2,090 acres; Lincoln Park in Chicago at 1,200 
acres; Balboa Park in San Diego also at 1,200 acres; Golden Gate Park in San 
Francisco at 1,017 acres; Central Park in New York City at 843 acres; and Hyde 
Park in London combined with the adjacent Kensington Gardens at 625 acres.  
Fairmount Park in Philadelphia is a 4,000-acre park space, but has historically 
been divided into three separate, affixed parks. 

Griffith Park in the First Part of the Twentieth 
Century 

Following Griffith’s 1896 donation to the City, wealthy individuals began 
making donations to improve the park.  Some donations came in the form of 
money, while others were in the form of direct goods, such as trees.  An early 
vision to turn the chaparral-covered hillsides of the park into an Olmstead-like 
park of manicured grounds failed because of the expense and impracticality such 
a plan required.  Early efforts by Colonel Griffith to pass a bond measure to pay 
for park improvements such as roads were unsuccessful.  Colonel Griffith was, 
however, named to the Board of Park Commissioners in 1903. 

In spite of the City’s early, rapid growth, the growth and development of parks in 
Los Angeles usually took place at the behest of private individuals and 
corporations.  Events in Colonel Griffith’s life during this period hindered 
political support for his requests to the City for bettering the park.  On September 
3, 1903, while vacationing with his wife and 15-year-old son Van Griffith, at the 
Arcadia Hotel in Santa Monica, Griffith accused his wife of infidelity in an 
alcoholic rage and proceeded to shoot her, thereby permanently disfiguring her 
right eye.  The trial for attempted murder became a public referendum on his 
alcoholism and an abrasive, outspoken personality that had long rubbed certain 
people the wrong way.  Colonel Griffith was sentenced to two years in San 
Quentin Federal Penitentiary.  The incident and trial destroyed his reputation, and 
hindered the City’s willingness to fully invest in Griffith’s vision and requests for 
the park.  Griffith served his full two-year sentence and on his release became 
passionate about prison reform.  While this new passion took much of his energy, 
it dovetailed with his earlier belief in the value of public parks.  Griffith viewed 
public parks as a key component of cities to foster wholesome, crime-free lives in 
their citizens.  

Despite problems with funding and the slow pace of road development, Griffith 
Park was a site for recreation from the park’s founding.  People rode horses both 
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as a means of transportation and as a recreational pursuit throughout the park.  In 
1909 the City authorized 10 workers to clear a foot-trail up to Mt. Hollywood, 
which at 1,626 feet is the highest peak in Griffith Park.28 By this time, hiking in 
Griffith Park was already a popular activity.  These activities and others reflected 
shifting concepts of recreation that were popularized throughout the United 
States during the early twentieth century. 

An outgrowth of the larger City Beautiful Movement, progressive era reformers 
began promoting the social role that parks played in society in the late 1890s and 
called for the creation of new active recreational facilities in public parks across 
the country.  Formalized as the Parks and Playgrounds Movement, reformers 
urged municipal governments to construct playgrounds and promote physical 
activities in locations physically separated from the perceived dangers of the 
urban environment.  Organized recreation was seen as having positive benefits on 
an individual’s mental, moral, and physical well being, and aided them in 
becoming responsible, well-adjusted citizens.  Contemporaries believed that the 
psychological benefits of disciplined health and exercise led to greater happiness 
among workers and, especially among immigrants, provided a means to more 
quickly enter mainstream American culture.  Improved production in the 
workplace, increased buying power, and a stronger local economy all were 
perceived benefits; as demonstrated in an oft quoted motto at the time, “The test 
of whether a civilization will live or die is the way it spends its leisure.”29 
 
In the 1910s, 1920s, and 1930s, many new forms of recreation were introduced to 
Griffith Park. Such activities marked a new manner of experiencing the park; 
away from simply being-in the rustic landscapes of the City Beautiful movement 
and toward pro-active physical activities. Among these new leisure activities was 
golf, which has a long history in Griffith Park as one of its first recreational 
activities.  Prior to 1884, General John M. Baldwin, a Spanish-American War 
veteran who occupied part of the former Feliz Rancho, built a golf course near 
the site of the current clubhouse.  What remained of this course after heavy 
flooding damage was refashioned in 1900 into the park’s first municipal golf 
course, known as the Riverside Course.  In 1914, the course was improved, and 
although it consisted mostly of dirt and sand links, it was free and popular with 
the public.  In 1923, grass-seeded Wilson Golf Course opened.  The Park 
Department then turned its attention to seeding Riverside Golf Course with grass, 
and renamed it Warren G. Harding Golf Course.  In keeping with Colonel 
Griffith’s stipulation that the park serve those of modest means and not charge an 
admission fee, the golf courses in Griffith Park served the public for nominal 
cost.  Although they maintained a clubhouse and various other support buildings, 
as municipal courses, the early courses at Griffith Park were simple, rather than 
elaborate. 

                                                      
28 Eberts, Griffith Park, 76. 
29 For more information on the Parks & Playgrounds Movement, see: Dominick Cavallo, Muscles and 
Morals: Organized Playgrounds and Urban Reform, 1880–1920 (Philadelphia, University of Pennsylvania Press, 
1981); and Galen Cranz, "Changing Roles of Urban Parks: From Pleasure Garden to Open Space," San Francisco 
Planning and Urban Research Association Newsletter (http://www.spur.org/documents/000601_article_01.shtm), 
June 2000. 
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Griffith Park became a contiguous part of the City of Los Angeles in 1910, 
together with the surrounding land of East Hollywood and Ivanhoe.  Annexation 
to the City was a popular move for many neighborhoods in the Los Angeles basin 
because it gave them access to the City’s water rights, and thus an avenue for 
growth.  The park, while already owned by the City, was surrounded for the first 
time by City lands, which quickly began filling up with roads, residences, and 
other commercial buildings.   

The Trails and the Wilderness30 
 

“Here are groves of live oak beneath which many a grizzly has 
dozed away the summer noon, and deep jungles of chaparral in 
which cattle as wild as the bear escaped for life the branding 
iron.  The eagle yet nests in the ancient sycamores, and the deer 
still drinks at the spring of his fathers.  Leagues of winding 
drives will show but the half of it, while several varieties of 
climate will puzzle the stranger still more.  On the north side he 
can find dense shades in the summer and on the south the cool 
breezes of the sea; or in winter he may find the warmer sun on 
the south with the softer land-breath on the north.  Around its 
feet will be many acres of cultivated garden and lawns, but art 
will suddenly stop and California assert itself.”31 

 
The largely untamed hilly core of Griffith Park has charmed hikers, equestrians, 
and assorted naturalists for more than 100 years.  Made accessible by a 53-mile 
network of trails, the park’s rugged, hilly core is the largest, and perhaps most 
fragile, historic feature of the park. 

Col. Griffith J. Griffith enjoyed exploring the hilly portion of his ranch “enjoying 
the life of a country gentleman,” often hunting jack rabbits with his pack of 
hounds32, even before he gave it over to the City.  Col. Griffith viewed the 
natural areas of the park as among its most important attributes.  He held the 
Victorian view that city life was potentially harmful to a person's health and 
spirituality.  In his 1910 book, Parks, Boulevards and Playgrounds, he said that 
America's cities “are vast reservoirs of wealth, with all the luxury that wealth 
begets,” but “they are also hotbeds of disease, poverty, vice and indescribable 
misery.”  

                                                      
30 This section was written in March, 2007 by Dr. Mike Eberts, the preeminent of Griffith Park and a Professor of 
Mass Communications at Glendale Community College in Glendale, CA.  
31 T.S. Van Dyke, “The Parks of Los Angeles,” Land of Sunshine, 8 (December 1897): 99. 
32 John C. Scherer, History of Glendale and Vicinity (Glendale, CA: Glendale History Publishing Co., 1921), p. 59. 
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Bee Rock, seen in the background, was one of the 
earliest hiking destinations in Griffith Park. Griffith 
himself had the still extant Bee Rock Trail cleared, and 
the landmark is also known as “Griffith’s Altar.” An 
aviary formerly of the Old Los Angeles Zoo is seen in 
the foreground. Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo 
Collection. 

 

Open space—rustic and available to all—was the cure.  The Colonel wrote: 
“Give nature a chance to do her good work and nature will give every person a 
greater opportunity in health, strength and mental power.”33 One of the earliest 
hiker destinations in the park is the rock outcropping briefly known as Griffith’s 
Altar, but known today as Bee Rock.  When showing off the City’s newest and 
largest park to newspaper reporters and dignitaries Colonel Griffith would often 
take them to that spot. By the 1920s, growing numbers of hikers were exploring 
the park's rugged interior.  In 1926 the Los Angeles Times predicted “people of 
all ages will be flocking every day to the miles of trails winding through the 
Griffith Park woods.”34  Vincent Jones wrote in 1928 that beauty “like a blessed 
benediction” lies around every bend in Griffith Park's trails.  “Did we not lift our 
gaze to the south we would not know there was a city near.”35  Wrote Dana 
Tyson in 1929:  

 

                                                      
33 Griffith J. Griffith, "The Autobiography of Colonel Griffith Jenkins Griffith,"  p. 30, manuscript, Van M. Griffith 
Papers, Collection 2060, UCLA Special Collections. 
34  Harold M. Finley, “Irrigation Invoked to Create Wilderness,” Los Angeles Sunday Times Farm and Orchard 
Magazine, 16 May 1926. 
35 Vincent Jones, “On the Trails of Griffith Park,” Los Angeles Saturday Night ,8 (10 March 1928): 4. 
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Griffith Park is the place where ... native wild life may be seen, 
for here on an early morning hike, if we are quiet and keep our 
eyes peeled, a small band of deer may be seen wandering about 
the hills.36 

  
In the 1920s, even the mayor was out on the park's trails.  Los Angeles Mayor 
George Cryer would hike up Vermont Canyon, climb over the top of Mt. 
Hollywood, and have his chauffeur pick him up on the east side of the park, near 
Crystal Springs.  “That was his regular exercise one afternoon a week,” recalled 
Van Griffith, Col. Griffith’s son.  “He loved to hike.”37  Children and teenagers 
also began to hike the trails in the 1920s.  Cross country teams ran there and at 
least one local high school formed a hiking club that often used the trails.  
Younger hikers discovered the trails when boys and girls camps were established 
in the park in 1926.  The girls camp was so remote that provisions had to be 
carried up park trails by burro. 

 

 

Girl’s Camp Pool, constructed 1926,  with view of 
Glendale/ Eagle Rock. Though abandoned, this pool 
is still extant. Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo 
Collection 
 
 
Among the various built objects within the wilderness component of Griffith 
Park is one that is highly iconic the world over: the Hollywood Sign.  The 
Hollywood Sign exists on a portion of the park annexed in 1945 by the City of 
Los Angeles, and is placed along the south face of Mt. Lee.  Aside from the radio 
towers atop the mountain, the historic viewshed and backdrop around the 
Hollywood Sign have been the Griffith Park wilderness itself.  Prior to the City 
acquiring the Mt. Lee portion of Griffith Park, the flat hilltop at Mt. Lee was to 
be the site of an estate for movie mogul Mack Sennett of Keystone Cop fame; the 
house was never built. 38  Near the Hollywood Sign, this western portion of the 

                                                      
36  Dana R. Tyson, “Birds and Animals in Parks,” L.A. City Employee, 3 (November 1929): 19-20. 
37 Oral History Interview of Van Griffith, p. 155. 
38 Robinson, C.E., Torrence, and Bruce T. The Hollywood Sign. First Federal Savings and Loan Association of 
Hollywood, 1976.  
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wilderness has one anomaly.  A rectangular portion of the property due west of 
the Hollywood sign and also facing south upon Mt. Lee was never acquired by 
the Recreation and Parks Department.  This property was originally owned by 
Howard Hughes, who had planned to build a residence upon the property.  For 
the time being, this property reads as continuous with the rest of the Griffith Park 
wilderness component.  Aside from natural cycles, the slight intrusion of Mt. Lee 
Drive at its western end, and an unnamed hiking trail, this property is unchanged 
from the Rancho period, and is covered with the same chaparral as seen upon the 
rest of Mt. Lee.  Aside from residences built for caretakers and other park 
employees, no residences have been constructed in the wilderness component 
since the park, in various phases, was annexed by the City of Los Angeles.   

The western portion of the park began to open up to hikers around the World 
War I era.  As development began in Fern Dell around 1916, trails appeared in 
Western Canyon, connecting with the rest of the park.  To the west of that, trails 
were built in Brush Canyon, with a spur to the nearby former rock quarry at 
Bronson Canyon.  Bronson Canyon has cultural significance as a movie location 
site, with the cave becoming famous in the 1950s science fiction film “Invasion 
of the Body Snatchers” and a decade later as the Bat Cave in the 1960s “Batman” 
television series.  The extension of Mulholland Scenic Highway, originally 
planned as a thoroughfare for automobiles, eventually became a graded fire 
road—known today as Mulholland Trail—for the enjoyment of hikers and 
equestrians.  Among other things, this fire road traverses Mt. Lee, site of the 
world famous Hollywood Sign. 

 

Women Hikers in Griffith Park,1928. “Most of us 
dressed up because you never knew who you’d 
meet.” --- Barbara Larsen (in bow tie at right). 
Courtesy: Barbara Larsen 

 

Also by the 1920s, Mt. Hollywood was gaining in popularity as a destination of 
Griffith Park hikers.  Col. Griffith originally envisioned putting his dream 
observatory on the peak, with the public coming and going by funicular railway.  
Said one prominent local astronomer about the peak, “It occupies almost 
precisely the center of what is to become the largest and by far the most splendid 
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city in the Western hemisphere.”39  Mt. Hollywood is one of several peaks in the 
park where, in the same vista, one can see the downtown skyline, the southern 
portion of the city to San Pedro, the Westside to the beach, and much of the San 
Fernando Valley. 

Work crews of unemployed men added more trails to the park during the Great 
Depression.  Early efforts of this type were locally funded, but eventually federal 
dollars were added.  Among other places in the park, the trails around Beacon 
Hill (then known as Shale Hill) on the east end of the park were constructed by 
the unemployed.  Eventually, young men of the Civilian Conservation Corps 
built and maintained trails in the park.  By the post-war period, the first of the 
park’s volunteer-tended gardens, Captain’s Roost, was established on the west-
facing slope of Mt. Hollywood.  It has a fine view of Los Angeles’ west side, the 
Pacific Ocean, and Catalina Island.  Its beginnings, its founder, and the identities 
of some subsequent tenders are a mystery.  The Captain, whose identity is not 
known, didn't rule the Roost for very long.  Several hikers remember meeting 
him in the mid-1940s at his small garden where he had fashioned a hand-carved 
table and bench.  By 1949, he was gone, according to long-time Griffith Park 
Ranger Bill Eckert.  An elderly woman Eckert knew only as Rae succeeded the 
Captain.  Under Rae the garden bloomed. “It was beautiful,” he recalled.  Rae 
took care of the Roost for perhaps 10 years.40  Two other important volunteer-
tended gardens—Dante’s View and Amir’s Garden—would be added in the years 
after the period of historic significance. 

Frank Shearer 
Frank Shearer was hired by the Park Department as a landscape engineer and 
draftsman in January 1910 and by May of that year was the acting 
superintendant.  Most irrigation projects didn’t get off the ground until the Works 
Progress Administration (WPA) involvement in the 1930s; Shearer, however, 
had been an early advocate of large-scale irrigation in Griffith Park.  Shearer was 
the mastermind behind Fern Dell, a garden of ferns, bridges and terraced pools.  
Located at 5375 Red Oak Avenue near the Western Avenue entrance to the park, 
Fern Dell’s dams and pools were constructed using boulders from other areas of 
the park.   

                                                      
39  Edgar Lucien Larkin, Los Angeles Christmas Present, pamphlet, 1912, ibid. 
40 Interview of Bill Eckert, 20 May 1994. 
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Women walking through Fern Dell, c.1930. 
Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection 

Concrete was used not only in the pool construction but formed and scored to 
resemble tree logs and branches.  Imported and native ferns were brought in to 
populate the grounds.  As with many park attractions, it was improved on slowly 
over the years.  It was immediately popular when the first stage was completed in 
1914, and often photographed.  The lush, landscaped grounds fit within the 
context of the City Beautiful movement and the desire of planners to improve 
upon nature and make it accessible to the common person. 

Located near the residential areas of Los Feliz and the Hollywood Hills—even at 
that time, home to many people in the film industry—Griffith Park was 
directlyaffected by the film industry early on.  Now located within Griffith Park, 
the “HOLLYWOODLAND” sign was erected in 1923 as an advertisement for 
the Hollywoodland residential tract, located near the southwest corner of the 
park.  Portions of the tract too hilly to be sold for houses, including the land 
containing the sign, were donated to the City for the park, continuing the trend 
that initially gave birth to Griffith Park.  Later, the “LAND” portion of the sign 
was removed, and the Hollywood Sign has become a globally recognized icon of 
the City of Los Angeles. 
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Hollywoodland Sign, Circa 1920.  
Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection 
 

 

Van Griffith 
In 1920, one year after Colonel Griffith’s passing, Griffith’s only son, Van 
Griffith, became a park developer.  Prior to this, in 1914, Van had served as 
Commissioner for a small bus line into Griffith Park, which at that time was the 
most feasible access into the park for those who did not have automobiles.  By 
1925,when a new City charter was implemented that guaranteed more funding 
for the park system, Van Griffith became a Park Commissioner.  Throughout his 
years of involvement in the Park’s affairs—virtually his whole life—Van Griffith 
was a champion of his father’s original will, seeking new ways to expand the 
park’s offerings to the public while preserving open space.  A primary early idea 
of Van Griffith’s was reforestation of the park.  Griffith saw reforestation not just 
as beautification, but as fire prevention, as it would have included a massive 
irrigation system.  In the late 1920s, largely through the efforts of Van Griffith, a 
massive irrigation system was installed, including sheet metal water tanks.  With 
this, Van Griffith spearheaded the construction of the Municipal Nursery in 
Commonwealth Canyon, which opened in 1927.  Joe Kladler, whose father was 
the chief groundskeeper to Emperor Franz Joseph of Austria, oversaw the 
nursery, which in its first 18 months had overseen the development and raising of 
approximately two million plants.41 

                                                      
41 Eberts, Griffith Park, 82. 
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Van Griffith with Ocelots  
Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection 
 

Immediately after his father’s death in 1919, Van Griffith was a catalyst to 
securing additional property for Griffith Park.  This additional property was 
originally the 351-acre Griffith reservation located at the northwest portion of the 
park.  Because the property was located upon flat lands, it was prime for 
redevelopment, and the Griffith Trust at the advice of Security National Bank, 
had actually advocated its redevelopment.  Realizing that the trust had enough 
money to fulfill its original aims, Van Griffith went against this proposal, and 
worked the deal for the land from both sides of the table, as Park Commissioner 
and Griffith’s only son.  Though redevelopment would have netted Van Griffith 
and other members of the Trust at that time a handsome sum of money, Griffith 
opted instead to fulfill his father’s wishes for the property, and in 1921 sold it to 
the City, on behalf of the Griffith Family Trust, at 40% below market value.42  A 
chart documenting other land acquisitions that have expanded Griffith Park is 
included in Appendix A. 

Present upon the former reservation land was the Griffith Aviation Park, which 
had opened in 1912 largely as a result of Van Griffith’s primary hobby: flying.  
The airfield, which is today in the general vicinity of the Los Angeles Zoo 
Parking lot to the John Ferraro Soccer Fields, was one of the first of its kind in 
Los Angeles.  Among early flight entrepreneurs to establish businesses at the 
airfield was aviation pioneer Glenn Martin, who at this time founded a company 
that he would oversee for the better part of the following 40 years.  The Glenn L. 
Martin Aircraft Company would become one of the most significant producers of 
war aircraft in the country.  While at Griffith Aviation Park, Martin would 
become teacher and supervisor to others who would go on to became significant 
leaders in aviation:  William Boeing was one of Martin’s students, and Donald 
Douglas was an engineer that Martin had hired.  The only remnant of aviation 
activity still present at Griffith Park today is a clearing where a former beacon 
once stood on “Beacon Hill,” which overlooks the Golden State Freeway.43  

                                                      
42 Ibid, 86. 
43 Eberts, Griffith Park, 119. 
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The Griffith Aviation Park closed by 1916.  In 1925 the field reopened as a 
temporary home to the California National Guard: 115th Observation Squadron, 
40th Division Air Service.  The “115th” conducted various operations in 
California and Mexico, including searching for enemy submarine bases off of 
Mexico, and the photo documentation of all federal projects along the West 
Coast.44  During this time the 115th was headed by Major C.C. Moseley, an 
aviation pioneer who later became one of the founders of Western Airlines.  Van 
Griffith resigned as Parks Commissioner in 1929.  Even after this time, Van was 
steadfast in defending his father’s vision for the park.  It was Van Griffith who 
adamantly stated in 1932 that the National Guard’s stay was to be temporary.  
The 115th would eventually relocate to Paso Robles in 1941, reform at Van Nuys 
airport after World War II, and later relocate to Point Magu in 1987. 

By 1933, Frank Shaw, the newly elected Mayor of Los Angeles, was proposing 
an airport at Griffith Park to replace Mines Field, which is today the site of Los 
Angeles International Airport.  Once again, it was Van Griffith who rallied 
various entities including the California Taxpayers Association, the Municipal 
League, and numerous Women’s organizations to defend the park from this 
proposal.  The idea was ultimately abandoned in March 1934.45  During this 
effort to stave off an airport, a quote of Van Griffith’s succinctly summarizes his 
position, and echoes the will of his father, “Every foot of Griffith Park should be 
preserved for the recreation of people, and no part of it should be commercialized 
in any way whatsoever.”46 

The 1925 City Charter 
The year 1925 is significant to Griffith Park’s development due to the enactment 
of a new City charter.  The charter ensured the City’s right to invest in its 
infrastructure and increase that investment over time to keep pace with growth.  
In a number of key areas, the charter was decades ahead of its time when 
compared to the rest of the country.  For example, the charter abolished at-large 
elections for city council, effectively prohibiting racial gerrymandering by 
requiring that voting districts be composed of contiguous and compact territory.  
As it relates to Griffith Park, the charter required a fixed percentage of property 
tax revenue be given to the park system.  Prior to this arrangement, the Park 
Department relied on appropriations from the City Council granted on a case-by-
case basis.  Guaranteed funding allowed both large-scale and deferred 
maintenance at Griffith Park to commence in earnest.  “Reforestation” of Griffith 
Park was a longtime dream of Van Griffith’s, and the funding promised by the 
1925 City Charter made it a possibility.  Griffith’s vision included forests on the 
hillsides and water running down the hillsides to create streams that could be 
stocked with trout.  More than $100,000 was spent by 1929 on the irrigation 
system alone.  The project never reached the scale that Griffith hoped for, but 
nevertheless was a massive undertaking.  Portions of the irrigation system (and 
also lines installed by the WPA in the 1930s) were exposed during the 2007 fire.  
A Municipal Nursery complex was opened in 1927 adjacent to Commonwealth 

                                                      
44 Ibid., 118. 
45 Eberts, Griffith Park, 118. 
46 Ibid., 118. 
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Canyon and supported Van Griffith’s reforestation efforts, in addition to 
functioning as regular nursery with hothouse plants.  Many of the wood-framed, 
single-story buildings in the complex today were constructed when the nursery 
was founded or soon after.   

 

 

Municipal Nursery Buildings, 1927. Photo: 1928. The 
wood hothouse to the right is now removed. The office and 
garage buildings to the left are still present.  
Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection 
 

Together, the complex comprises an intact example of early Los Angeles 
infrastructure that retains its integrity from the original period of development, 
and is still used for its original purpose.  By 1930, the nursery had produced tens 
of thousands of native plants and trees for the park.  In 1929, Mayor of Los 
Angeles John C. Mayor objected to the reforestation project, and the pace of 
plantings slowed.  This led directly to Van Griffith’s resignation from the Parks 
Commission. 

The Municipal Plunge facility, which opened in summer 1927, was a direct result 
of the 1925 City Charter that increased the budget of the Playground and 
Recreation Department.  By 1927, the complex included tennis, basketball and 
volleyball courts, baseball and other fields, horseshoe pits, a playground, and the 
pool.  A two-story bathhouse and boys’ and girls’ field houses were built around 
three sides of the pool.  Pergolas are located on either side of the pool house 
building.  Although the eastern field house and at least one other building in the 
pool complex were demolished for construction of the Interstate 5 (I-5) freeway, 
the two remaining buildings (the pool house and western field house) are 
significant examples of the Spanish Colonial Revival style adapted for municipal 
use.  In addition to recreation, the pool was used for canoe paddling and 
pageants, reflecting the role of Griffith Park and especially the Playground 
Department in the 1920s and 1930s as a playground and entertainment venue for 
the masses. 
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“Enchanted Pool” pageant participant at Municipal 
Plunge and Poolhouse, constructed 1927. The pool 
itself, the largest municipal pool in the City, and the 
Poolhouse are still present and retain excellent 
integrity. Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo 
Collection 
 

Two camps available to children of modest means were built after the charter 
was passed, broadening the park’s efforts to provide recreational and outdoor 
activities to all Angelenos.  The Boys’ Camp was located on land that was once 
the Municipal Prison Farm from roughly 1918 to 1924.  The Boys’ Camp opened 
in 1926, north of today’s Travel Town.  Facilities included a swimming pool, 
tennis courts, baseball diamonds, football field, and gymnasium recycled from an 
old barn.  In keeping with the spirit of Griffith’s gift, the camp was affordable 
and accessible to boys of modest means.  The site was abandoned when the Los 
Angeles River was lined and its course altered.  Part of the site was later used for 
transient boys and a Civilian Conservation Corps (CCC) camp; the I-5 Freeway 
was also built over part of the original site.  The Girls’ Camp also opened in 
1926, in Dam Canyon.  Facilities included cabins, a lodge, dining hall, and 
outdoor sports area.  The character-defining feature of the Girls’ Camp was the 
pool, situated on a ledge with views of the surrounding valleys.  In 1992, arson 
fires destroyed the main dining hall and director’s cabin.  They have since been 
rebuilt, and renovations to the site using modern materials have been completed.  
Both the boys’ and girls’ camps operated full-time in the summer and on the 
weekends during the rest of the year.  Two major road projects in the 1920s were 
the construction of Riverside Drive and Mulholland Scenic Highway.  Riverside 
Drive served commuter traffic from the San Fernando Valley to downtown Los 
Angeles.  Mulholland Highway was imagined as a “parkway, bridle path, and 
spacious drive” that would follow the crest of the Santa Monica Mountains from 
Griffith Park to the Pacific Ocean.  The road was graded but never became a 
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thoroughfare in the park; throughout its history it has been accessible only for 
hiking and horseback riding. 

Griffith Park in the 1930s 
Though the 1930s was one of the most economically trying times for Los 
Angeles and the United States, Griffith Park prospered and transformed during 
the Depression years more so than in any other decade of its existence.  This is 
ironic, if not fitting, since Colonel Griffith mandated the park to be free and 
available to people of modest means.  During the 1930s, that group turned out to 
include almost everybody.  In regard to its built environment, Griffith Park 
became the recipient of thousands of hours of labor by these people sponsored 
through various programs such as the WPA (Works Progress Administration), 
the PWA (Public Works Administration), the CCC, and the Reconstruction 
Finance Corporation (RFC).  Additionally, numerous activities, also funded by 
local and federal government organizations, served as a means to keep the 
unemployed occupied, if they were not working through the above-mentioned 
organizations.  During this time, the Los Angeles Associated City Employees 
voluntarily contributed 1% of their salary to keep men employed, and this 
included clearing fire breaks in Griffith Park.47 

 

 

Civil Works Administration work crew in Griffith Park, 
1933. Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection 

In 1931, early in the Depression and prior to the swearing-in of President 
Franklin Delano Roosevelt in 1933, the City of Los Angeles passed a $5 million 
unemployment relief bond measure.  Of this money, $1 million was devoted to 
the parks, which employed 25,000 for part-time work for four months.  This 
resulted in the creation of 13 miles of bridle trails, the creation and improvement 

                                                      
47 Feldman, Frances Lomas, “Human Services,” in Hylda L. Rudd, Ed., et.al, The Development of Los Angeles City 
Government: An Institutional History, 1850-2000, Volume 2 (Los Angeles: Los Angeles Historical Society, 2007) 
535. 
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of picnic areas, expanded parking areas, and the improvements at the bird 
sanctuary and Fern Dell.  Men were hired part-time and paid $4.00/day.48 

By 1933 this City bond money was exhausted and Griffith Park began to be the 
recipient of monies and assistance by the RFC.  Among the projects by the RFC 
were the lining of curbs along Western and Vermont Canyon roads, the surfacing 
and widening of roads, new bridle trails, the clearing of weeds, various planting 
projects, the construction of horseshoe courts, installation of streetlamps to the 
soon-to be completed observatory, plus the building of tennis courts, cricket and 
hockey fields.  It was Reconstruction Finance Agency workers who were, on 
October 3, 1933, victims in Griffith Park’s worst tragedy, and the deadliest fire in 
the history of Los Angeles.  On that hot day 29 laborers employed by the County 
through RFC money were killed fighting an out-of-control brush fire in Mineral 
Wells Canyon.  It was a fire originally seen as minor when it first broke out, and 
could have been promptly handled by professional firefighters.  However, the 
RFC crews were not trained in such matters, and because the fire was in a windy 
canyon, it acted erratically and rapidly grew.  A plaque commemorating their 
sacrifice was placed at the entrance to Vermont Canyon but went missing many 
years ago. 

From 1933 through the end of the Great Depression, Public Works Agency 
support allocated to Los Angeles, including the large amount invested in Griffith 
Park, was largely due to the efforts, experience, and political abilities of City 
Engineer Lloyd Aldrich.  Aldrich, who served in this position from 1933 to 1955, 
was invited to Washington by WPA Administrator Harry Hopkins to draft 
national regulations for governing the WPA, including regulations for hundreds 
of construction projects.49  Beginning in 1935, the WPA—a Federal Assistance 
Organization comprised of skilled workers and artisans—constructed the 
Roosevelt Golf course, flood control along the river, and expanded the 1913 Los 
Angeles Zoo (today called the “Old Zoo”), creating elk and deer paddocks, new 
lion and bear grottos, and other zoo buildings.  The old zoo buildings are unique 
in the park for their artistic translation of a “primitive” aesthetic of oversized 
boulders made from concrete nestled into the hillside landscape above Park 
Center.  Artistically, the Old Zoo is of a programmatic aesthetic unique to many 
other structures in the park.  During the 1930s the Old Zoo was one of the United 
States’ few free admission zoos.   

In 1937 the WPA constructed a new golf clubhouse in a sprawling, expressive 
version of the Spanish Colonial Revival style, and a plaque is present at the entry 
stating the project as a WPA project.  The WPA also improved the three golf 
courses at Griffith Park: the 18-hole Wilson-Harding golf courses in addition to 
the 9-hole Roosevelt Golf Course (which was relocated to the southeast portion 
of the park to make room for the new Los Angeles Zoo in the 1960s).  Prior to 
this time, these golf courses featured not grass but sand.  Irrigation systems were 
installed, and the Wilson Harding Golf courses were considered so well-designed 

                                                      
48 Ibid., 536. 
49 Roth, Matthew W. “Los Angeles Transportation,” in Hylda L. Rudd, Ed., et.al, The Development of Los Angeles 
City Government: An Institutional History, 1850-2000, Volume 1 (Los Angeles: Los Angeles Historical Society, 
2007) 464. 
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that they were used for national golf tournaments.  Other WPA projects in 
Griffith Park included the astronomers monument at the Observatory (November, 
1934. Sculptors: Archibald Garner, George Stanley, Roger Noble Burnham, 
Arnold Foerester, Gordon Newell, and Djey el Djey) and the original science 
exhibits within the observatory.   

 

Women at the Astronomer’s Monument, C.1934. 
Hollywoodland Sign is in background. Courtesy Los 
Angeles Public Library Photo Collection 

An inevitable outgrowth of the WPA was the Civilian Conservation Corps 
(CCC), which consisted not of skilled workers but of young men willing to 
commit to physical labor of various kinds.  Three camps were located at various 
points along the northern portion of the park.  The most prominent of these 
became the Crystal Springs picnic grounds after it was dismantled in 1936.  This 
camp, one of the few in the country established for World War I veterans, was 
visited by President Roosevelt, and featured the statue “Iron Mike” by the artist 
Palo-Kangas.  A re-creation of this statue is present in Travel Town.  The CCC 
cleared firebreaks, drainage channels, upgraded pools and cascades in Fern dell, 
created hiking and riding trails, access roads, picnic areas, and campgrounds 
(including bathrooms, tables, water systems, etc.).50 

                                                      
50 Thomas Breckner, a former Los Angeles Recreation and Parks employee provided an abundance of information 
regarding the 1930s era federal assistance organizations in Griffith Park, in addition to information regarding 
infrastructure objects throughout Griffith Park.  Breckner provided this information through a round of e.mails with 
the author exchanged between September 11 and October 1, 2007 (e.mail stream titled, “Griffith Park historic 
project”). Thomas Breckner, along with Mike Eberts, are primary authorities regarding Griffith Park and its history.   
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Throughout Griffith Park there are an abundance of infrastructure elements that 
are physically integrated into the surrounding landscape.  Taken individually, 
many of these features could be easy to miss.  Yet as a grouping these features, 
which include drainage channels, culverts, barrier walls, stoppage dams, bridges, 
and drinking fountains, appear where the natural environment appears and are its 
most intimately associated built resources. Taken together, the design of these 
features and the history behind the 1930s era examples both contribute to Griffith 
Park’s significance as an important Cultural Landscape.  

Though many of these resources are believed to have been completed by the 
CCC, it is uncertain just which organization created which object, of which there 
are at least a hundred throughout the park.  What is known is that the vast 
majority of these objects was created in the 1930s, and were improved or 
repaired in a similar style through the 1950s by City workers who often 
incorporated recycled pieces of city infrastructure into designs.  The style in 
which these features were built is called the “Park Style,” which is summarized 
in the 1938 book Park and Recreation Structures by Albert Good, who was 
Superintendent of the National Park Service.  Park and Recreation Structures 
documents 1930s era examples of various park infrastructure elements.  Chapter 
titles include: “Barriers, Walls and Fences,” “Drinking Fountains and Water 
Supply,” “Trail Steps,” “Crossings and Culverts,” and “Bridges,” among others.  
There is a high degree of similarity between these features as built in Griffith 
Park and as they appear in Good’s book.  

Albert Good advocated the use of materials that were integral with the 
surrounding physical context, and made from natural, regionally contextual 
materials that could be found nearby.  For many of the features throughout 
Griffith Park, river rock from the adjacent Los Angeles River appears to have 
been employed.  A degree of “protective coloration” was encouraged that would 
further integrate these commonplace but necessary features into the surrounding 
landscape.51  Additionally, and seen frequently throughout Griffith Park, Good 
advocated “variety within reason.”  The designs of the majority of these features 
are subtly different from one another in details such as composition, pattern, 
color, coursework, stones used, and the cut or lack thereof of each given stone.  
Throughout Griffith Park, such variety provides numerous design variations to 
objects that are commonplace but necessary.  The resourcefulness of the 
materials is expressive of both the economic context of the Great Depression and 
a specific aesthetic codified by the National Park Service that called for a 
regional and natural integration of various objects into the landscape.  The 
variegation present among these features expresses the idea that these objects are 
the result of numerous workers, many of which had creative inclinations 
expressed through a handmade, if not folk quality, to the design of the given 
object. 

To a degree, Good’s book also discussed architecture, specifically the 
construction of Superintendents’ residences within given National Parks.  Good 
advocated the construction of such resources in styles that were specific to a 

                                                      
51 Good, Albert H, Park and Recreation Structures (Washington DC: US Government Printing Office, 1938) 3Ibid., 
175 
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given region of the United States.  For Los Angeles and within Griffith Park, the 
response to this idea was to design various on-site residences for Park workers in 
a Spanish Revival design system.  Houses in Griffith Park possessing these 
design features include the Ranger’s House above Fern Dell and the [altered] 
arborist house adjacent west of the Nursery.  Other buildings completed in the 
1930s in Griffith Park in this style include the 1927 Plunge and its associated 
buildings, plus the previously mentioned Golf Lodge.  Aside from the 
infrastructure and recreational amenities mentioned above, these various service 
organizations completed various landscape projects, including the planting of the 
various redwood trees present in Cedar Grove and within the Wilson Harding 
Golf course. As a result, Griffith Park features more redwood trees than any other 
landscape in Southern California.   

The Greek Theatre and the Griffith Observatory 
The decade of the 1930s in Griffith Park also saw the completion of two 
buildings that were, like the park itself, the result of donations by Griffith J. 
Griffith.  The early development of the Greek Theatre began as the idea of Elmer 
S. Todd, a local minister who had longed for an open-air theatre in Vermont 
Canyon.  Invited to speak by Dr. Todd on January 21, 1913, Colonel Griffith 
declared that he would fund the cost of such a theatre to be constructed, and his 
contribution totaled $127,000.  Colonel Griffith himself was involved in the site 
selection process, which included hiring the singer Ellen Baech Yaw to yodel 
into various areas in and around Vermont Canyon.  Griffith died in 1919, and by 
the time construction began on the theatre in 1929, his son Van Griffith would be 
tasked with overseeing the Parks Commission and the construction of the Greek 
Theatre itself.  The Greek Theatre was completed in 1930.  The architect of 
record was City architect Peter K. Scabarum, who had also completed Van Nuys 
City Hall (Art Deco 1932), the Hollywood Police Station—(Renaissance 
Revival, 1930), and the Los Angeles Police Academy/Gymnasium 
Administration Building (PWA Moderne/Spanish Colonial, 1936, Elysian Park).  
The theatre is a notable example of the Second Greek Revival style, featuring a 
proscenium with extended Greek porticos, which had been hidden from public 
view for over 40 years before being re-exposed in a recent restoration.  The two-
story Greek Theatre is made of 1-foot-thick poured in place concrete walls that 
feature a decorative engaged pilaster colonnade.  Though various additions were 
added to the primary building between 1959 and 1984, because of the durability 
of the reinforced concrete original building, these features are considered 
reversible.  
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Greek Theater, 1930. Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection 

 

During the 1930s in Griffith Park, the Federal Theatre Project (FTP) was also 
highly active in the park and provided opportunities for various actors and other 
entertainers.  The Greek Theatre during the mid-1930s was monopolized by the 
FTP, and during this period nearly 100,000 children viewed free marionette 
shows at the Greek Theatre.  Additionally, the FTP created “living newspaper” 
productions of various current issues.  The related Federal Music Project would 
occupy the Greek Theater from 1938 to 1940. 

 

Griffith Observatory, Opening Day, 1935.  
Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection 
 
The $100,000 seed money for the Griffith Observatory was provided by Colonel 
Griffith, as the second “Christmas Gift” to the City, announced as such by 
Griffith on December 12, 1912, in a grandiose ceremony to the Mayor and City 
Council.  Originally designated for Mt. Hollywood—the highest elevation in the 
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park, the Observatory was eventually built above Vermont Canyon.  
Groundbreaking for the Observatory would not take place until June of 1933: 14 
years after Colonel Griffith’s passing.  This groundbreaking occurred just three 
months after the 6.3 magnitude Long Beach earthquake, and the Observatory, 
made of concrete as per Colonel Griffith’s wishes, was further designed to 
withstand strong lateral thrusts.  The Griffith Observatory was opened to the 
public on May 15, 1935.  The Los Angeles architectural firm of Austin and 
Ashley, architects of Los Angeles City Hall, designed the observatory with 
considerable input from the Astronomer Russell Porter.  The Observatory is 
completed in the classically inspired PWA Moderne style, and is highly viewable 
from numerous points within the eastern portion of the City.  The Griffith 
Observatory is City Historic Cultural Monument number 168, and is considered 
an iconic building for the City of Los Angeles.  

The Ralph Cornell Master Plan 
By the end of the 1930s, the National Park Service required that a Master Plan be 
completed for Griffith Park before it would qualify for any further CCC projects.  
To fulfill this request, the City Parks department hired Ralph Cornell, who had 
been the consulting landscape architect at UCLA during this period.  Cornell 
proposed grouping together the recreational amenities of the park upon the 
flatland areas that surrounded the untouched, upper park portions comprising the 
middle of Griffith Park.  Cornell was an admirer of the open, upper park portion, 
and saw it as highly unique among city parks anywhere in the United States for 
being essentially a wilderness in the city.  Cornell’s Master Plan was originally 
envisioned to be the first of many successive plans of greater detail.  
Nonetheless, Griffith Park today has followed many of Cornell’s ideas.  These 
include: the grouping of various recreational amenities, including the Wilson-
Harding Golf Courses, along the lower portions of the park; the placement of the 
new zoo; an equestrian trail paralleling Crystal Springs Drive in addition to an 
equestrian entrance at the west end of the park; and the relative openness of the 
Upper Park, including the maintenance of its indigenous chaparral landscape and 
lack of numerous automobile roads.  

The Merry-Go-Round 
During the 1930s, one other resource that came to Griffith Park through a context 
of relative randomness was the Merry-Go-Round.52  A nickel a ride, or six rides 
for a quarter, the Merry-Go-Round provided further amusement for children at a 
reasonable cost for Depression-era parents.  The original Merry-Go-Round, a 
three-abreast Spillman with various animals, was installed in 1935 as a City 
franchise.  The franchisee, Ross Davis, chose to place the Merry-Go-Round near 
the location of the Old Zoo—where many children would be present.  The red 
and white canopy and enclosure structure was built around the Merry-Go-Round 
in 1936.  The present Merry-Go-Round, a four abreast all-horse Spillman, was 
installed in 1937 and was relocated from Mission Beach Park in San Diego.  This 
carousel, which is believed to feature Looff carved horses from the 1880s, was 

                                                      
52 Information regarding the Merry-Go-Round is found in: Eberts, Griffith Park, 192-195. 
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visited often by Walt Disney and his children, and is documented as being 
influential upon Disney in his creation of Disneyland.53  

 

 

Merry-Go-Round, 1937. Courtesy Bill Eckert   

 

 

Griffith Park in the 1940s and 1950s 
As the 1930s came to a close and the next decade began, Griffith Park would 
become the repository for numerous designations, plaques, and commemorative 
objects.  The earliest known of these was a bronze plaque, now missing, that was 
located at the entrance to Vermont canyon that honored those who lost their lives 
in the 1933 fire.  Similarly lost is the original “Spirit of the CCC” statue that was 
originally located at an early CCC camp that had been visited by Franklin Delano 
Roosevelt.  A reproduction of this statue is today located in Travel Town.  
Various social service organizations, including the Women’s League and the 
Soroptimists International of Los Angeles, placed plaques in Griffith Park.  Often 
it was these organizations that donated trees, or constructed picnic areas that 
further enhanced the park, and carried on a long and consistent pattern, still the 
norm at this time, of private donation, much in the line of Griffith himself, as a 
means to enhance the park.   Beginning in the 1930s and continuing on through 
the War years, organized recreational activities were common in Griffith Park as 
an inexpensive means to keep people occupied and active.  Many of these 
activities were geared toward specific groups, including housewives, children or 

                                                      
53 Pete Martin, An Interview of Walt Disney, Walt Disney Archives, n.d., p.17. (footnote in Eberts, Griffith Park, 
415). 
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newly arrived immigrants. Folk dancing shows were presented in the park, 
children’s doll shows, and “Housewife Play Days,” where women could dress 
down and participate in various fun and physical activities.  

 

Housewives dance to Latin Tempos and form a conga line in 
the front row at a Pan-American themes Griffith park 
“Housewife Playday.” Photo: June, 1941.  
Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection  
 

World War II 
Just as it had during the Great Depression, with the advent of World War II 
Griffith Park once again was a prime destination for residents of Los Angeles and 
the surrounding vicinity.  Because of gas rationing, long trips to both area 
mountains and beaches were out of question for many Angelinos.  By this time 
development had long connected Griffith Park to the rest of Los Angeles, and the 
park was seen as the close-by recreational alternative.  Because of its massive 
size, Griffith Park more than any other City park during World War II found 
various ways to serve the country and the cause.  Just prior to and during the war, 
the park was the site of strength training exercises for boys and men called 
“toughening up” sessions, an idea first proposed by Parks Supervisor George 
Hjelte.  The pool, which was staffed with female lifeguards for the first time in 
1943, was used to train servicemen to swim.  The pool-adjacent playground area 
was occupied by the 125th infantry for five months during the war.  The former 
CCC camp on the site where Travel Town now stands became a POW camp for 
Japanese, German and Italian prisoners at various times.  The Greek Theatre and 
the Griffith Observatory were offered to the Red Cross as convalescent hospitals.  
Furthermore, at the Observatory lived a small group of the 121st artillery who 
were to operate a searchlight in case of aerial attack.  The Planetarium was used 
to teach pilots celestial navigation, and Dr. Dinsmore Alter of the Observatory 
invented a device to allow artillery to be oriented by the stars.  A hydraulic model 
yard was created at the present-day site of the Live Steamers, and nearby was a 
camouflage experimental laboratory of which very little is known.  In this 
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vicinity of the park, the Western Signal Corps photo center produced army 
training films, with as many as 200 assigned to the facility by 1944. 

After World War II, the former site of the Griffith Aviation Park and later 
California National Guard base would become Rodger Young Village: a 
temporary, Quonset hut neighborhood of 1,500 dwellings and 6,000 people.  The 
purpose of Rodger Young Village was to alleviate a housing shortage for 
returning World War II GIs.   

 

 

Children at play in Rodger Young Village. Photo: 1951. 
Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection  

Though this remedy was readily supported by Mayor Fletcher Bowron, the City 
Council, and Recreation and Parks, Van Griffith alone opposed it as not 
concurring with the intended recreational use of the park.  Though Van proposed 
an alternate option involving the use of 30,000 parcels acquired by the City 
during the Great Depression, his option was quickly disregarded, and Rodger 
Young Village proceeded to be built.  The largest veteran’s housing project in the 
region, a fully furnished unit went for $40.00 a month, utilities included.  By the 
early 1950s, as the GI housing crunch eased, support for Rodger Young Village, 
by both the City and the public, began to wane, and the village was shut down in 
1954.  Van Griffith’s dream of this former Griffith Reservation property being 
fully assimilated into the park was short-lived.  During this same period, plans 
were being initiated in Sacramento to place the Ventura freeway upon a portion 
of the former reservation property, and into a multi-mile stretch of Griffith Park.  

Post-War Recreational Developments 
At the turn of the twentieth century and before, parks were seen as places of 
contemplation, rejuvenation, and restful repose, with recreational activities more 
associated to “Playgrounds” during that time.  Just as Colonel Griffith’s original 
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intention for the park was to give the Los Angeles citizenry a place to be close to 
nature, it appears that he accepted that restful repose alone was not the only way 
to experience nature, but that it could be enjoyed through various recreational 
activities taking place within it.  After World War II, the idea that proximity to 
nature alone was sufficient was subsumed by an invigorated energy informed by 
the Allied victory.  It was an energy whose aspiration, ambition, and optimism 
affected much of the built environment of Los Angeles, and informed changes at 
Griffith Park.  At that time the City Recreation and Parks departments merged, 
and Griffith Park developed numerous recreation-focused amenities that are now 
part of its historic identity.  Griffith Park had long contained recreational 
amenities aside from nature itself, beginning with the first municipal links in the 
1910s, and later through the addition of the pool/tennis/playground complex of 
the late 1920s.  However, the post-World War II era saw great expansion at the 
park in this regard.  A 9-hole pitch and putt called the Coolidge Golf Course was 
added west of and above the Pony Rides with an additional nine steep holes. 
Today this course is three holes and was rechristened the Marty Tregnan Golf 
Academy in 2000.  In the late 1940s Tommy Wright began the pony ride 
concession off of Crystal Springs Drive which had originated in Lincoln Park.  
The original fenced path for the Pony Rides, its waiting canopy and ticket kiosk 
are all still present and unaltered.  

                                           

                                           Griffith Park Pony Rides, 1947.                Griffith Park & Southern Railroad, 1947, 1963. 
                                                Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library              Photo: 1963. The above pictured canopy and 
                                           Photo Collection                                          decorative water tower are still present.   

                                                                 Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection                               
  

Adjacent and behind the Pony Rides in 1947 Samuel Borenstein received 
permission to construct a 1/3 scale railroad surrounded by 5/8 scale buildings 
called the Griffith Park and Southern Railroad.  Originally Charles and Ray 
Eames were design consultants on this project, though it appears that their 
contribution is no longer present, save for a couple of structures.54  The Griffith 
Park and Southern Railroad is surrounded by various buildings including a car 
garage, a Victorian-styled ticket kiosk, an open, woodshed canopy, a truss bridge, 
and a water tower.  The right-of-way has been altered as the railroad was affected 
by the addition of the I-5 freeway running through the park in 1957.  Much of 
this focus upon recreation was influenced by George Hjelte, who served as 

                                                      
54 The ticket kiosk, the truss bridge, the engine storage, and the water tower appear to be part of the original Eames 
scheme, but further research is necessary to validate this assertion.   
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Recreation and Parks Director during this time, and who was a published, 
national expert on regarding recreational activities within parks.  During the 
1950s the Ranger program was first developed, and rangers were expected to be 
educators for and protectors of the park.  On April 20, 1952, the Fern Dell 
watchman’s house became a nature museum, and various exhibits regarding 
nature in Griffith Park were presented there. 

Travel Town and Live Steamers 
After the end of World War II, as Americans found that they had more time and 
money, the concept of “hobbies” became more popular, and Griffith Park became 
a hobbyists park for the city.  As Griffith Park became a hobbyist destination in 
the mid-1950s, railroading became a particularly focal hobby associated with the 
park.  Not only had the Griffith Park and Southern Railroad developed in the 
park, but by 1952, Griffith Park saw the development of the Travel Town 
Transportation Museum.   

Similar in development to various recreational amenities in the park, where one 
individual oversees the franchise, development, or operation of a given resource, 
the genesis of Travel Town was largely the result of the efforts of one individual: 
Charlie Atkins.  Beginning in the late 1940s, Mr. Atkins, who was a Recreation 
and Parks employee and rail fan, began to ask railroad companies for various 
steam locomotives that he knew were being phased out as train companies 
converted to diesel engines, and as the automobile gained prevalence in Los 
Angeles and the western world.  Assisting Atkins in this process was D.J. 
Russell, the president of the Southern Pacific Railway at that time who facilitated 
reception of a 1904 ALCO Atlantic 4-4-2 locomotive and its tender.  The site in 
Griffith Park where this and later locomotives would be placed was called 
“Travel Town,” and would be located at the former site of a CCC and later POW 
camp.  The amassed collection of locomotives and later other forms of 
transportation is not of exceptionally rare examples of its type, but rather is 
significant as a sizeable accumulation of common locomotives and other methods 
of transportation.   

The collection was largely completed through the singlehanded efforts of Charlie 
Atkins. Once he passed away on August 8, 1958, the rate of accumulation of 
engines at Travel Town radically declined, though also there were simply less of 
these to be had over time.  Travel town still contains auxiliary buildings that date 
from its 1952 opening:  a restroom facility and an office facility.  An early 
Southern Pacific depot in a Folk Victorian style has been moved upon the 
property and is itself a contributing resource to the Griffith Park property.  
However, much of the grounds has been redone and improved after the period of 
significance. In the early 1960s the Travel Town site had to be consolidated to 
make room for the 134 freeway.  The collection itself, which is the largest of its 
type west of St. Louis, is itself significant.  
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Travel Town Transportation Museum.  Photo: 1955.  
Courtesy Los Angeles Public Library Photo Collection  

 
Adjacent to Travel Town, in the tradition of hobbyist context, is the Griffith Park 
Live Steamers.  The Live Steamers is a collection of various small-scale railways 
that are rideable.  Atkins, along with fellow Recreation and Parks employee Dick 
Bagley (and supported by Hjelte), encouraged and facilitated the conditional use 
permit that would lead to the presence of the Live Steamers adjacent Travel 
Town.  Live Steamers opened on May 5, 1957.  With a passenger car given by 
Atkins as their headquarters, the group initially created three separate scales upon 
decomposed granite that was also made possible by Atkins.  In 1965 Walt Disney 
donated the track from a rail that had been in his backyard, and is today a right of 
way in Live Steamers called the “Disney Loop.” Much of the original track of the 
Disney Loop has been replaced in-kind due to wear and tear. For Walt Disney, 
miniature railroading had been a hobby since the late 1940s, when he established 
a 1/8 scale track on his Holmby Hills property called the Carolwood Pacific 
Railroad, named after the street of his childhood home. A testament to Disney’s 
love of railroading, Disney’s Carolwood line predates the railroad which 
encircles Disneyland, and Disneyland itself.  In 1999, the workshop in which 
Disney created his miniature railroad and its components was relocated to the 
Live Steamers property. Known as “Walt’s Barn,” the resource, which was built 
by Disney Studio Architect John Kowles Jr. in 1950, is based upon an early barn 
that was located upon the Disney’s childhood family farm in Marceline, 
Missouri. As a young boy, it was within this earlier barn that Walt Disney both 
played and entertained.  
     
After the 1997 passing of Walt’s wife Lily Disney, Diane Disney Miller, Walt’s 
eldest daughter, arranged to have the Barn moved to Live Steamers, where Walt 
had been an honorary member.  Bill Evans, who had originally landscaped 
Walt’s Holmby Hills property, recreated the landscape around the newly 
relocated barn, which was opened to the public at Live Steamers in July of 1999. 
Though the roof of the Barn was reconstructed, the reast of the fabric is historic. 
The resource retains very good integrity.  Walt’s Barn serves as a museum 
focused upon the love of railroading by Walt Disney, and features numerous 
model railroading items that once belonged to Disney. The Carolwood Pacific 
track switchboard and workbenches, all built by Disney himself, are also present 
within Walt’s Barn. 
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“Walt’s Barn,”1950. Built by Disney Studio Architect John Kowles Jr. 
Los Angeles Live Steamers Railroad Museum. 
Photo: ICF Jones & Stokes, January, 2008 
 
 

End of the Period of Significance 
In 1938 the City Bureau of Engineering initiated what would be the last 
WPA/CCC project relating to Griffith Park, the concreting of the Los Angeles 
River.  This would be the first of three large-scale impacts that would alter the 
setting of the park.  However, the Los Angeles River had been prone to serious 
flooding, including two large floods in the late 1930s that damaged many of the 
flatlands areas of Griffith Park.  In 1957, the park would be severed from the 
river by the construction of the I-5 freeways through its flatlands. The 
construction of the 134 freeway along the upper portion of Griffith Park against 
the Los Angeles River occurred during the early 1960s.  The advent of these 
freeways undid the park’s historically pre-existing physical relationship to the 
Los Angeles River, a significant component of Griffith Park history as it relates 
to Los Angeles.  In 1958, Toyon Canyon in Griffith Park would become a landfill 
handling much of the trash for the City.  Both events were the effects of rapid 
post-war growth in Los Angeles.  As the City’s population spanned outward 
away from the City center during this time, Griffith Park was rendered more 
vulnerable to such developments.  The period of significance for Griffith Park 
begins in 1896 and ends in 1958.  

Conclusion 
Given to the City of Los Angeles by Colonel Griffith J. Griffith and his wife Tina 
Griffith, Griffith Park has fulfilled its donor’s stated vision for the property.  One 
of the largest municipal parks not just in the country but in the Western world, 
Griffith Park is free and accessible to all, and its visitors have made the park a 
popular destination.  For almost all of Griffith Park’s long history and as of now, 
picnicking, horseback riding, and hiking have been key to experiencing Griffith 
Park as intended.  Additionally, the Los Angeles citizenry has embraced the 
various built amenities upon the property, including resources made possible by 
the additional generosity of Colonel Griffith.  The Griffith Observatory has 
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recently undergone a multi-million-dollar renovation and the Greek Theater is a 
popular concert destination.  As a historically significant cultural landscape, 
Griffith Park expresses its various layers and decades of history through an 
abundance of buildings, structures, and objects that together have made the park 
a cornerstone of the City’s identity.  These resources are set within the massive 
open wilderness that is Griffith Park’s physical core and primary identifier; an 
open space which Colonel Griffith saw as vital for the Los Angeles that was to 
come, and has long since arrived. 
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5581016900 00013 236000 2007 000000000
5581011901 00013 236000 2007 000000000
5581014900 00013 236000 2007 000000000
5581001904 00013 236000 2007 000001914
5587025900 00013 236000 2007 000095293
5593002911 00013 236000 2007 008243960
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IMPROVE_CURR_ROLL_YR IMPROVE_CURR_VAL SA_HOUSE_NBR SA_FRACTION SA_DIRECTION
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 03210     
2007 000000000 03201     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 02715    N
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 03401     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 05333     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
2007 000000000 00000     
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SA_STREET SA_UNIT SA_CITY_STATE SA_ZIP MA_HOUSE_NBR
                                                                000000000 06312
                                                                000000000 00000
RIVERSIDE DR                            LOS ANGELES CA          900270000 03210
RIVERSIDE DR                            LOS ANGELES CA          900270000 03201
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00111
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
VERMONT AVE                             LOS ANGELES CA          900270000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
RIVERSIDE DR                            LOS ANGELES CA          900270000 03401
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
ZOO DR                                  LOS ANGELES CA          900270000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00500
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000
                                                                000000000 00000



SBF_GRIFFITH

Page 4Page 4

MA_FRACTION MA_DIRECTION MA_STREET MA_UNIT MA_CITY_STATE
    ELGIN ST                                LOS ANGELES CA          
                                                                    
    RIVERSIDE DR                            LOS ANGELES CA          
    RIVERSIDE DR                            LOS ANGELES CA          
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES CA          
                                                                    
   E 1ST ST                          RM 201  LOS ANGELES CA          
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES  CA         
                                                                    
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES  CA         
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES CA          
                                                                    
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES  CA         
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES  CA         
                                                                    
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES  CA         
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES  CA         
                                                                    
                                                                    
    RIVERSIDE DR                            LOS ANGELES CA          
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES CA          
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES  CA         
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES  CA         
   W TEMPLE ST                       RM 754  LOS ANGELES CA          
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
    P O BOX 51111                           LOS ANGELES  CA         
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MA_ZIP FIRST_OWNER_NAME FIRST_OWNER_NAME_OVFW
900420000 CORRAL,ISABEL                                                   
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
900270000 L A CITY                                                        
900270000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
900510000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
900120000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
900510000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
900510000 L A CITY                                                        
900510000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
900510000 L A CITY                                                        
900510000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
900510000 L A CITY DEPT OF WATER AND POWER                                 
900510000 L A CITY DEPT OF WATER AND POWER                                 
000000000 L A CITY PARK                                                   
000000000 L A CITY PARK                                                   
900270000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
900510000 L A CITY                                                        
900510000 L A CITY                                                        
900510000 L A CITY                                                        
900120000 L A CO FLOOD CONTROL DIST                                       
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
000000000 L A CITY                                                        
900510000 L A CITY                                                        
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SPECIAL_NAME_LEGEND SPECIAL_NAME_ASSEE SECND_OWNER_ASSEE_NAME
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP-JUNE                                         
                                                                     
C/O  ROBERT C. HOLLOWAY                                              
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP - JUNE                                       
                                                                     
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP - JUNE                                       
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP - JUNE                                       
                                                                     
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP - JUNE                                       
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP - JUNE                                       
                                                                     
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP - JUNE                                       
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP - JUNE                                       
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP - JUNE                                       
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP - JUNE                                       
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP - JUNE                                       
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                     
C/O  REAL EST BUS GROUP - JUNE                                       
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RECORDING_DATE TAX_STAT_KEY TAX_STAT_YR_SOLD_STATE HA_CITY_KEY HA_INFO
19640225 0 0000  0000000000
19780000 3 0000  0000000000
19590824 3 0000  0000000000
19590820 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000 1 0000000000
19790405 3 0000  0000000000
19790405 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000 1 0000000000
19670245 3 0000 1 0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19740418 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19880301 3 0000  0000000000
20030604 3 0000  0000000000
19880301 3 0000  0000000000
19590828 3 0000  0000000000
19660000 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19590406 3 0000  0000000000
19590629 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670000 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19590529 3 0000  0000000000
19710624 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19580912 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19570820 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000 1 0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19740418 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
19670245 3 0000  0000000000
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ZONING_CODE USE_CODE PARTIAL_INT DOC_REASON_CODE OWNERSHIP_CODE
LAR1-1         010V 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAR1           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           880V 000 K X
LAOS           880V 000 K X
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAA1           8846 000   
LARE40         770V 000 Z 3
LARE40         770V 000 Z 3
LAA1           770V 000 Z 3
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAR1           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
               8800 000   
               8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAPF           8800 000   
               8800 000   
               8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAPF           8800 000   
LAPF           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAR2           8800 000   
LAR1-1*        8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LARE9          8800 000   
LARE15         8800 000   
LAPF           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAM2           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LAOS           8800 000   
LARE11         8800 000   
               8900 000   
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EXMPT_CLAIM_TYPE PP_KEY PP_VAL PP_EXMPT_VAL FIXTURE_VAL FIXTURE_EXMPT_VAL
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
ÿ  000000000 000000000 000000000 000000000
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HMOWNR_EXMPT_NBR HMOWNR_EXMPT_VAL REAL_EST_EXMPT_VAL LS1_VERIFICATION_KEY
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1
000 000000000 000000000 1



SBF_GRIFFITH

Page 11Page 11

LS1_SALE_AMT LS1_SALE_DATE LS2_VERIFICATION_KEY LS2_SALE_AMT LS2_SALE_DATE
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 20000301  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
000000000 00000000  000000000 00000000
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LS3_VERIFICATION_KEY LS3_SALE_AMT LS3_SALE_DATE BDL1_SUBPART BDL1_DESIGN_TYPE
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0505 6600
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
 000000000 00000000 0000     
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BDL1_QLYCLSSHP BDL1_YR_BUILT BDL1_NBR_UNITS BDL1_NBR_BEDS BDL1_NBR_BATHS
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     1966 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
     0000 000 00 00
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BDL1_SQFT_IMPROV BDL2_SUBPART BDL2_DESIGN_TYPE BDL2_QLYCLSSHP BDL2_YR_BUILT
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
0000000 0000          0000
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BDL2_NBR_UNITS BDL2_NBR_BEDS BDL2_NBR_BATHS BDL2_SQFT_IMPROV BDL3_SUBPART
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
000 00 00 0000000 0000
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BDL3_DESIGN_TYPE BDL3_QLYCLSSHP BDL3_YR_BUILT BDL3_NBR_UNITS BDL3_NBR_BEDS
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
         0000 000 00
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BDL3_NBR_BATHS BDL3_SQFT_IMPROV BDL4_SUBPART BDL4_DESIGN_TYPE BDL4_QLYCLSSHP
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
00 0000000 0000          
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BDL4_YR_BUILT BDL4_NBR_UNITS BDL4_NBR_BEDS BDL4_NBR_BATHS BDL4_SQFT_IMPROV
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000
0000 000 00 00 0000000



SBF_GRIFFITH

Page 19Page 19

BDL5_SUBPART BDL5_DESIGN_TYPE BDL5_QLYCLSSHP BDL5_YR_BUILT BDL5_NBR_UNITS
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
0000          0000 000
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BDL5_NBR_BEDS BDL5_NBR_BATHS BDL5_SQFT_IMPROV
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
00 00 0000000
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LDL1 LDL2
TRACT # 9766 EX OF FLOOD CONTROL        EASEMENT L A RIVER CHANNEL LOT          
*TR=SUBDIVISION OF RANCHO PROVIDENCIA   AND SCOTT TRACT*LOT (EX OF ST) COM N    
IVANHOE LOT COM NE ON SE LINE OF LOT 36 150 FT FROM MOST S COR OF SD LOT TH NE  
IVANHOE EX OF STS LOTS 1,2,3,4,5,6,7 AND LOT    8 BLK    1                       
EX OF ST LOT 2 TR NO 10781 AND ALL OF   LOTS 28 AND 29 BLK 4 TR NO 9367         
LOT COM AT SW COR OF LOT 2 IN SEC 26 T  1N R 14W TH N ON W LINE OF SD LOT 440 FT
*LOT COM N 89›49' E 2199.99 FT AND N    398.92 FT FROM SW COR OF LOT 2 IN SEC   
*LOT COM AT SE COR OF SEC 26 T 1N R     14W TH W 679.90 FT TH N 395.51 FT TH    
TRACT NO 10781   LOT    6                                                       
THAT PART DESC IN OR22071-300 S AND E   OF TR NO 10781 E NE 1/4 OF              
TRACT NO 10781   LOT    5                                                       
TRACT NO 10781   LOT    8                                                       
LICENSED SURVEYOR'S MAP AS PER BK 22    PG 32 OF L S LOT COM AT MOST N COR OF   
LAND DES IN DOC 1990, 74-4-18 TRACT     NO 9766   (EX OF ST) LOTS 181, 182,     
M R 43-47-59 FOR DESC SEE ASSESSOR'S    MAPS POR OF SD RO                       
L S 22-32 FOR DESC SEE ASSESSOR'S MAPS  POR OF LOT 3                            
POR OF LOTS 2 AND 3 L S 22-32 AND POR OF PROVIDENCIA PARK TRACT M R 43-47-59     
M R 43-47-59 FOR DESC SEE ASSESSOR'S    MAPS POR OF SD RO                       
HILLHURST PARK 2.69 MORE OR LESS ACS    COM AT MOST W COR OF LOT 103 TRACT      
HILLHURST PARK 4.79 MORE OR LESS ACS    BEING EX OF ST COM AT NE COR OF LOT 114 
GRIFFITH'S SUB OF THE SOUTHERN SLOPE    OF THE RO LOS FELIZ AND OF LOTS 15 AND  
LOT COM AT INTERSECTION OF NW LINE OF   RANCHO SAN RAFAEL PER FM12325 WITH W    
LOT COM S 89›52'15" W 284 FT AND N 0›   08' W 150 FT FROM SW COR OF LOT 11 TR   
RANCHO LOS FELIS COM AT SW COR OF SEC 29 T 1N R 13W TH E TO NE LINE OF RO LOS    
RANCHO LOS FELIS EX OF ST AND EX LAND   DESC IN DDS 1900-274 TO L A CITY        
RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT COM AT NW COR OF   SEC 5 T 1S R 13W TH S TO A PT S 81›54' W
RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT EX OF STS COM AT SE COR OF SEC 24 T 1N R 14W TH N TO SW LINE
RANCHO LOS FELIS SEC   36 T   1N R 14W                                          
RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT COM AT NW COR OF   SEC 1 T 1S R 14W TH S ON W LINE OF SD   
RO LOS FELIS FOR DESC SEE ASSESSOR'S    MAPS POR OF SEC 19 T 1N R 13W           
LOT COM AT NW COR OF LOT 14 TR # 5673 TH N ON W LINE OF SD TR 369.96 FT TH S 89› 
LOT COM AT NW COR OF LOT 14 TR # 5673   TH S 610.09 FT TH N 89›52' E 100 FT TH S
SUBDIVISION OF RANCHO PROVIDENCIA       AND SCOTT TRACT   THAT PART DESC IN     
RANCHO LOS FELIS THAT PART DESC IN      DDS1900-274 IN GRIFFITH PARK            
IVANHOE LOT COM AT NW COR OF LOT 30     BLK 3 TH N 86›30' E TO SW LINE OF       
HILLHURST PARK LOT COM AT NE COR OF     LOT 25 TR # 4040 TH S ON E LINE OF SD   
RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT COM AT INTERSECTION OF N LINE OF IVANHOE WITH NE LINE OF    
TRACT NO 10781 EX OF ST                 LOT    1                                
TRACT NO 10781 LOT COM AT NE COR OF     LOT 2 BLK 19 TR NO 6450 TH S 78›49'19" E
LOT COM AT E 1/4 COR OF SEC 35 T 1N R   14W TH S 0›02'30" E TO S LINE OF SD SEC 
LOT EX OF ST COM AT NW COR OF SEC 30 T  1N R 13W TH S TO SW COR OF SD SEC TH E  
RANCHO LOS FELIS 72.39 MORE OR LESS ACS BEING EX OF STS LOT COM AT SW COR OF    
RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT COM AT NW COR OF   SEC 6 T 1S R 13W TH E TO NE COR OF SD   
THAT PART IN GLENDALE CITY OF LOT COM SE ON SW LINE OF S P R R  R/W 924.56 FT    
LOT 3 TRACT NO 10781 AND LOT 26 BLK 6   TRACT NO 9367                           
TRACT NO 10781   LOT    7                                                       
TRACT NO 10781   LOT    4                                                       
LAND DES IN DOC 1990, 74-4-18 SUBDIVI-  SION OF RANCHO PROVIDENCIA AND SCOTT    
LOT COM AT MOST E COR OF LOT 8 TR # 4040 TH SW AND FOLLOWING BDRY LINE OF SD TR  
RANCHO LOS FELIS LOT COM AT STA 23 TH N 21›42'55" E TO N LINE OF SEC 25 T 1N R  
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LDL3
                                        
39›42'58" W 20 FT FROM MOST S COR OF    
ON SE LINES OF SD LOT AND LOT 37 TO SW  
                                        
                                        
TH E 900 FT TH N 92 FT TH E 1200 FT TH  
26 T 1N R 14W TH N 34.68 FT TH W 100    
W 645.75 FT TH N 925.41 FT TH SE        
                                        
SEC   35 T   1N R 14W                   
                                        
                                        
LOT 5 TH S 21›24' W 2949.20 FT TH N 13› 
183, 184, 185, 186, 187, 188, 189, 190, 
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
NO 27460 TH W ON W PROLONGATION OF N    
TH SW ON NW LINE OF SD LOT TO W LINE    
17 LICK TRACT LOT BD E AND NW BY FERN   
PROLONGATION OF N LINE OF LOT 2 WATTS   
# 11437 TH N 0›08' W 460 FT TH S 89›52' 
FELIS PER F M 12325 TH NW THEREON TO W  
SEC   31 T   1N R 13W                   
FROM MOST N COR OF TR # 9050 TH N 81›   
OF SUBDIVISION OF RANCHO PROVIDENCIA AND
                                        
SEC TO NW COR OF HILLHURST PARK PER     
                                        
52' W TO SW LINE OF RANCHO SAN RAFAEL   
190.04 FT TH N 89›52' E 100 FT TH S 0›  
DOC NO 2801, 6-24-71 OF PROVIDENCIA     
                                        
RIVERSIDE DR TH SE THEREON 28.06 FT TH  
TR TO NE LINE OF BLACK OAK DR TH SE     
RIVERSIDE DR TH N 86›09' E TO SW LINE OF
                                        
56.43 FT TH NE ON A CURVE CONCAVE TO SE 
TH W ON SD S LINE TO A PT E THEREON 60  
TO SE COR OF SD SEC TH N TO NE LINE OF  
SEC 32 T 1N R 13W TH N TO NW COR OF SD  
SEC TH S TO A PT S 81›54' W FROM MOST N 
FROM MOST N COR OF LOT 6 TR NO 646 TH S 
                                        
                                        
                                        
TR AS PER BK 43 PGS 47 TO 59 OF M R     
TO W LINE OF LOT 1 SD TR TH S 89›55'30" 
14W TH E AND FOLLOWING BDRY LINE OF SD  



SBF_GRIFFITH

Page 23Page 23

LDL4
                                        
LOT 6 TR NO 9213 TH N 39›42'58" W TO    
LINE OF RIVERSIDE DR TH NW THEREON TO NW
                                        
                                        
S 92 FT TH E 100 FT TH S TO S LINE OF   
FT TH N 92 FT TH W TO W LINE OF LOT 3   
1330.90 FT TH S 1230.47 FT TO BEG  POR  
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
12'27" W TO NW LINE OF SD LOT TH N 57›  
AND              LOT  191               
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
LINE OF SD LOT TO E LINE OF FERN DELL   
OF SD LOT TH S THEREON TO N LINE OF RED 
DELL DR AND SE BY LOS FELIZ BLVD PART   
SUB OF A PART OF THE RANCHO SAN RAFAEL  
15" W TO NW LINE OF RANCHO SAN RAFAEL   
LINE OF SD SEC TH S TO BEG PART OF      
                                        
54' E TO SD MOST N COR TH S 22›20'55" E 
SCOTT TR TH NW AND FOLLOWING BDRY LINE  
                                        
MB22-190-191 TH N 72›25'40" E TO E LINE 
                                        
PER F M 12325 TH S 51›30' E TO STA 12   
08' E 150 FT TH S 89›52' W 373.99 FT TH 
PARK TRACT                              
                                        
SW ON SE LINE OF LOT 33 SD BLK 415.58 FT
THEREON AND N ON W LINE OF FERN DELL DR 
GOLDEN STATE FRWY TH NW AND FOLLOWING SD
                                        
RADIUS EQUALS 65 FT 43.51 FT TH N 53›   
FT FROM NW COR OF LOT 1 BLK 15 TR       
RO LOS FELIS PER F M 12325 TH NW THEREON
SEC TH E TO NE LINE OF RO LOS FELIS PER 
COR OF TR # 9050 TH S 81›54' W TO A PT S
71›46'06" W 169.34 FT TH S 73›26' W     
                                        
                                        
                                        
LOT COM AT MOST S COR OF TR NO 9766 TH  
49.94 FT TH S 0›04'30" E 244.37 FT TH   
SEC TO BEG PART OF                      
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LDL5 LDL_LAST
                                                                                
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION PARK TRACT                              
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT   37                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION PART OF N 1/2 OF SEC   35 T   1N R 14W  
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION SEC   26 T   1N R 14W                   
OF SE 1/4 OF SE 1/4 OF                  SEC   26 T   1N R 14W                   
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT    5                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT  115                                
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT  114                                
OF LOTS 2 AND    LOT    3 BLK   82                                              
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION THE RANCHO SAN RAFAEL                   
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION T 1N R 13W RANCHO LOS FELIS             
SEC   29 T   1N R 13W                                                           
                                                                                
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION SEC    5 T   1S R 13W                   
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION TO BEG PART OF   LOT      BLK   24      
                                                                                
OF SD SEC TH N TO NE COR OF SD SEC TH W TO BEG PART OF   SEC    1 T   1S R 14W  
                                                                                
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION 13W RANCHO LOS FELIS                    
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOS FELIS                               
                                                                                
                                                                                
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT   33 BLK    3                       
AND SW ON SE LINE OF RED OAK DR TO BEG  PART OF          LOT  114               
FRWY TO E LINE OF LOS FELIZ BLVD TH S   THEREON AND SE ON SD NE LINE TO BEG     
                                                                                
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION LOT    9                                
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION SEC   35 T   1N R 14W                   
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION RANCHO SAN RAFAEL                       
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION PART OF          SEC   32 T   1N R 13W  
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION TO BEG PART OF   SEC    6 T   1S R 13W  
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION TRACT NO 646                            
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION THEREON TO BEG                          
SEE ASSESSOR MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION FELIZ AND OF LOTS 15 AND 17 LICK TRACT  
SEC   25 T   1N R 14W                                                           
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CURRENT_LAND_BASE_YR CURRENT_IMPRV_BASE_YR CURRENT_LAND_BASE_VAL
1975 1975 000000212
1975 1975 000065000
1975 1975 000142000
1975 1975 000260000
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000009162
1975 1975 000019431
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000001000
1975 0000 000000000
1975 1975 000028697
2000 2000 001515981
1975 1975 000117747
1975 1975 000110000
1975 1975 000170000
1975 1975 000018600
1975 1975 000019700
1975 1975 000066700
1975 1975 000003100
1975 1975 003290000
1975 1975 000300000
1975 1975 001300000
1975 1975 003200000
1975 1975 001000000
1975 0000 000000000
1975 1975 000255000
1975 1975 000249000
1975 1975 000000100
1975 1975 000005100
1975 1975 000058000
1975 1975 000124000
1975 1975 000180000
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 015260000
1975 1975 000378000
1975 1975 000258000
1975 1975 000000100
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000000000
1975 1975 000001500
1975 1975 000074400
1975 1975 006436000
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CURRENT_IMPROV_BASE_VAL CLUSTER_LOCATION CLUSTER_TYPE CLUSTER_APPRAISAL_UNIT
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 03 1 83
000000000 25 6 97
000000000 22 8 07
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 22 3 52
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 28 6 01
000000000 28 6 01
000000000 28 6 01
000000000 04 4 23
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 4 20
000000000 04 1 93
000000000 04 1 93
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 22 3 67
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 04 1 93
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 04 4 23
000000000 04 4 20
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 22 3 57
000000000 27 8 80
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 1 90
000000000 04 4 20
000000000 28 6 05
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LAND_REASON_KEY IMPAIRMENT_KEY DOC_XFER_TAX_SALES_AMT BDL1_YR_CHANGED
G 00000 000000000 0000
R 00000 000000009 0000
B 00000 000000000 0000
B 00000 000000000 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
R 00000 000000009 0000
R 00000 000000009 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000009 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
9 00000 000000009 0000
9 00000 000000000 0000
9 00000 000000009 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000009 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 1968
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
B 00000 000000009 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000009 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
G 00000 000000000 0000
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BDL1_UNIT_COST_MAIN BDL1_RCN_MAIN BDL2_YR_CHANGED BDL2_UNIT_COST_MAIN
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000012010 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
00000 000000000 0000 00000
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BDL2_RCN_MAIN BDL3_YR_CHANGED BDL3_UNIT_COST_MAIN BDL3_RCN_MAIN
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
000000000 0000 00000 000000000
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BDL4_YR_CHANGED BDL4_UNIT_COST_MAIN BDL4_RCN_MAIN BDL5_YR_CHANGED
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
0000 00000 000000000 0000
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BDL5_UNIT_COST_MAIN BDL5_RCN_MAIN LANDLORD_REAPPRAISAL_YR LANDLORD_NBR_UNITS
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
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00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
00000 000000000 0000 000
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FIRST_TRANSFEREE_NAME FIRST_TRANSFEREE_NAME_OVRFW SECOND_TRANSFEREE_NAME
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RECORDERS_DOC_KEY RECORDERS_DOC_NBR
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
1 0273928
1 1586572
1 0273928
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
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0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
1 0563281
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
0 0000000
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Appendix 3: 
Pre-Existing Los Angeles City Parks with Historic Cultural Monument Designation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Los Angeles Parks Declared City Historic Cultural Monuments (HCM)  

 
 
HCM NO. 25 General Phineas Banning Residence and Banning Park 

Built in 1864, it was the home of General Phineas Banning, founder of Wilmington, California 

in 1858.   

Location: Banning Park, 401 East M street, Wilmington 

Declared: 10.11.1963 

 

HCM NO. 34 Barnsdall Art Park 
Eleven acres on the crown of Olive Hill were donated to the City of Los Angeles in 1927 by Aline 

Barnsdall with the stipulation that the land be used for a park and playground.  It is the site of 

the Los Angeles Municipal Art Gallery, Junior Arts Center, Hollyhock House, Gallery Theater and 

Barnsdall Arts Center. 

Location:4800 Hollywood Boulevard 

Declared: 2.26.1965 

 

HCM NO. 48 Chavez Ravine Arboretum 
This area was Southern Califronia’s first botanical garden.  In 1893 the Los Angeles 

Horticultural Society began planting of rare trees in the upper part of the ravine. 

Location: Elysian Park, Los Angeles 

Declared: 4.26.1967 

 

HCM NO. 64 Plaza Park 
Part of the original Spanish land grant, it was on the plaza that Governor Felipe de Neve 

constructed formal ceremonies on September 4, 1781 establishing El Pueblo de Nuestra 

Senora la Reina de Los Angeles.  The present site of the existing plaza is not precisely its 

original location. 
Location: Area approximately bounded by Cesar R. Chavez Avenue, Alameda, Los Angeles, Arcadia, New High and 

Main Streets, Los Angeles  

Declared: 4.1.1970 

 

 

 



HCM NO. 100 General Douglas Macarthur Park 
The parkland was acquired by Los Angeles on January 6, 1886 and was named Westlake Park.  

In 1890 the lake, which had been a neglected pond, was enlarged and in 1896 a bandstand 

erected.  The park was renamed in 1942 at the height of the general’s popularity.  

Location: 2230 W. 6th Street, Los Angeles 

Declared: 5.1.1972 

 

HCM NO. 210 Terrace Park and Powers Place 
This 1.17-acre site was dedicated for public use on August 22, 1904.  The Terrace Park area is 

an integral part of the Alvarado Terrace complex.  The brick paving of Powers Place recalls the 

era when horse-drawn vehicles were prevalent.  

Location: Powers Place and 14th Street, Los Angeles 

Declared: 2.21.1979 

 

HCM NO. 579 Wattles Park, Mansion and Gardens 
Built in 1907 and designed by Myron Hunt and Elmer Grey, the Wattles estate is typical of the 

winter homes built by wealthy Eastern families long before Hollywood became the movie 

capital of the world.  It stands as one of the last remaining such estates in Hollywood.  The 

mansion is in the Mission Revival style with an Italian Renaissance park and a Japanese 

garden. 

Location: 1824-1850 North Curson Avenue, Hollywood 

Declared: 5.25.1993 

 

HCM NO. 836 Echo Park 
Echo Park is one of Los Angeles’ earliest city parks and is the location of the City’s second 

established, and oldest remaining, municipal playground.  The history of Echo park’s creation 

and development represents significant trends in the provision of municipally funded parks 

and recreation facilities in Los Angeles during the early twentieth century. It is also significant 

as a remnant of Los Angeles’ early water system and the trends and policies that shaped 

thecity’s distribution and use of public lands in the late nineteenth century.  

Location:  751 North Echo Park Avenue 

Declared: 3.01.2006 

 



Appendix 4: 
Griffith Park Resources: Coordinate Points 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Dog Park 34°09'19 02" 118°17'10 14"

GRIFFITH PARK RESOURCES: COORDINATE POINTS

LOCATION AND RESOURCE NORTH WEST

RIVERSIDE DRIVE SOUTHEAST OF CRYSTAL SPRINGS DRIVE
Riverside Dr. Edison Station 34°06'46.51" 118°16'03.53
Breakfast Club 34°06'50.37" 118°16'07.80
Ranger House 34°06'54.30" 118°16'07.80"
Soccer Fields 34°06'57.09" 118°16'10.73"
Tennis Pro Shop 34°06'58.73" 118°16'12.84"
Main Tennis Court 34°06'59.23" 118°16'14.56"
Tennis Courts 34°07'00.63" 118°16'12.34"
Plunge: Main Building 34°07'04.29" 118°16'14.19"
Pool 34°07'04.72" 118°16'14.75"
Day Care Building 34°07'03.40" 118°16'15.87"
Playground  34°07'02.48" 118°16'15.82" 
Former Costume Workshop and Area/ LA Shares   34°06'50.70" 118°16'11.76"

CRYSTAL SPRINGS DRIVE:
Griffith J. Griffith Statue 34°07'03.93" 118°16'19.01"
Pony Stables 34°07'12.07" 118°16'22.17"
Pony Ride 34°07'15.64" 118°16'24.64"
1984 Olympics Benchesy p 34°07'15.69" 118°17'25.27"
Concessions Building 34°07'16.52" 118°16'24.15"
Griffith Park & Southern RR & Assoc. Resources 34°07'18.95" 118°16'24.21"
DWP Building 34°07'20.81" 118°16'25.30"

CRYSTAL SPRINGS: PICNIC AREA, POTE FIELD, RANGERS 
STATION, ETC:
DWP Building 34°07'51.79" 118°16'33.39"
Pettigrew Complex 34°07'53.80" 118°16'35.75"
Minimal Traditional Restroom Bldg. 34°07'51.29" 118°16'30.28"
Recent Firestation   34°07'54.57" 118°16'33.67"
Pote Field 34°07'59.34" 118°16'41.74"
Pote Field Concessions and Clubhouse 34°07'59.81" 118°16'38.23"
Rangers Headquarters 34°07'59.17" 118°16'45.42"
Education and Visitor's Center 34°07'58.11" 118°16'48.09"
Feliz Adobe 34°07'58.00" 118°16'49.87"

WESTERN HERITAGE DRIVE:
Zoo Magnet School 34°08'44.23" 118°17'03.68"
Auxilliary (L. A. Zoo) Support Bldgs.  34°08'46.87" 118°16'58.82"
Autry National Center 34°08'55.06" 118°16'52.47"
L.A. Zoo 34°08'54.08" 118°17'08.70"

ZOO DRIVE NORTH:
Sycamore Grove  34°09'07.40" 118°16'47.69"
Ferraro Soccer Fields 34°09'16.76" 118°16'50.99"



ZOO DRIVE:
Pecan Grove Picnic Area 34°09'14.41" 118°17'23.30"
De Anza Monument 34°09'15.69" 118°17'25.27"
Riverside Drive Bridge 34°09'22.23" 118°17'39.38"
Picnic Area 34°09'17.25" 118°17'34.17"
Picnic Area 34°09'19.08" 118°17'54.21"
Griffith Maintainence Service Yard 34°09'20.75" 118°18'05.89"
Live Steamers 34°09'18.24" 118°18'08.83"
Picnic Area 34°09'19.46" 118°18'16.24"
Travel Town: Entrance 34°09'14.21" 118°18'30.71"
Travel Town: Early Restroom 34°09'17.64" 118°18'27.96"
Travel Town: Admin Bldg. 34°09'17.93" 118°18'28.31"
Travel Town: "Spirit of CCC" Statue 34°09'16.48" 118°18'26.66"
Martinez Arena 34°09'13.21" 118°18'38.11"

ZOO DRIVE → FOREST LAWN DRIVE:
Silverlake Headworks 34°09'12.77" 118°19"03.65"
Junior Achievement Center 34°09'97.97" 118°19"08.97"

GRIFFITH PARK DRIVE:
Mineral Wells Picnic Area 34°08'46.02" 118°17'40.91"
Mineral Wells: C.1950s (?)  Bathroom 34°08'47.95" 118°17'42.56"
Mineral Wells: Concessions Stand 34°08'48.33" 118°17'43.81"
Animal Hospital (Recent)  34°08'49.60" 118°17'40.85"
Wilson & Harding Golf Courses (WHGC) 34°08'35.93" 118°17'11.88"
WHGC: Clubhouse 34°08'38.96" 118°17'21.45"
WHGC: Driving Range 34°08'39.52" 118°17'26.12"
WHGC: Restroom 34°08'14.80" 118°17'03.52"
WHGC: Wood Shed 34°08'31.82" 118°17'08.48"
WHGC: Park Style Landscape Features 34°18'96.3" 118°28'51.5"
WHGC: Golf Shop, Café, Restroom Bldg. 34°08'19.28" 118°16'50.49"

GRIFFITH PARK DRIVE→CAMP DRIVE:
Boy's Camp   34°08'26.63" 118°17'47.87"
Foundations of 1920s Cabins 34°08'22.73" 118°17'49.36"
Abandoned Pool 34°08'19.63" 118°17'53.07"

GRIFFITH PARK DRIVE CTD:
NYC 3 Picnic Area  34°08'22.57" 118°17'17.65"
NYC 2 Picnic Area  34°08'18.99" 118°17'17.44"
NYC 1 Picnic Area  34°08'12.18" 118°17'17.34"
Remains of Zoo Keepers House 34°08'06.03" 118°17'21.23"
Old Zoo Buildings 34°08'00.59" 118°17'19.33"
Land and Water Conservation Fund Plaque 34°08'05.90" 118°17'11.10"
Shane's Inspiration   34°08'06.77" 118°17'04.50"
Wilson Harding Turf Maintainence Facility 34°08'10.51" 118°17'03.73"

GRIFFITH PARK DRIVE: PARK CENTER:
Tennis Courts 34°07'59 44" 118°16'57 57"



Merry Go Round 34°07'57.68" 118°17'01.67"
1950s Restroom 34°07'59.19" 118°17'00.77"
Seal Show 34°08'02.40" 118°17'00.43"
c.1930s bathroom 34°08'03.37" 118°17'00.07"
Sycamore row with picnic tables 34°08'01.62" 118°16'56.30"
Mystery Bldg., Square Plan 34°08'03.63" 118°16'59.56"
Spanish Revival Service Facility     34°08'06.59" 118°17'00.91"
Recreation Centers Centennial Plaque 34°08'06.03" 118°17'00.62"
Marty Tregnan Golf Academy 34°07'14.98" 118°16'30.90"

GRIFFITH PARK: AMENITIES EAST AND NORTH OF LOS 
ANGELES RIVER

LOS FELIZ BOULEVARD:
Los Feliz Golf Course (LFGC) 34°07'29.27" 118°16'13.27"
LFGC: Los Feliz Cafe 34°07'24.04" 118°16'09.47"

CHEVY CHASE DRIVE:
North Atwater Park  34°07'57.76" 118°16'19.88"
Griffith Park Central Servive Yard 34°08'13.40" 118°16'23.30"

RIVERSIDE DRIVE NORTH OF LOS ANGELES RIVER:
Bette Davis Picnic Area 34°09'27.72" 118°17'47.16"
Los Angeles Equestrian Center 34°09'37.51" 118°18'32.14"
Pollywog 34°09'19.92" 118°19'12.17"

GRIFFITH PARK: SOUTHERN PORTION AMENITIES

VERMONT CANYON ROAD:
Rossevelt Municipal Golf Course (RGC) 34°07'11.61" 118°17'26.52"
RGC Café and Shop 34°07'06.02" 118°17'37.39"
Floyd Bailey Plaque and Tree 34°07'06.58" 118°17'37.73"
RCG Auxilliary Buildings 34°07'08.95" 118°17'37.61"

VERMONT CANYON ROAD→Boy Scout Rd:
Restroom 34°07'05.33" 118°17'40.59"
Picnic Area 34°07'04.55" 118°17'45.34"
Ampitheater 34°07'05.22" 118°17'46.21"

VERMONT CANYON ROAD→COMMONWEALTH CANYON 
DRIVE:
Tennis Courts 34°07'15.97" 118°17'36.09"
Nursery Caretaker's House 34°07'14.34" 118°17'09.34"
Picnic Area 34°07'15.99" 118°17'08.87"
Nursery Office 34°07'17.35" 118°17'08.69"
Nursery Multi‐Purpose Building 34°07'17.84" 118°17'06.05"
Nursery: Greenhouse  34°07'16.94" 118°17'06.76"
Nursery: Additional Greenhouses 34°07'16.82" 118°17'03.87"



VERMONT CANYON ROAD CTD: 
Greek Theatre 34°07'40.89" 118°17'03.55"
Greek Theatre Box Office 34°07'14.15" 118°17'47.03"
Bird Sanctuary 34°07'28.59" 118°17'49.10"
EAST OBSERVATORY ROAD:
Griffith Observatory 34°07'06.07" 118°18'01.33"

VERMONT CANYON ROAD→ MT. HOLLYWOOD DRIVE:
Mt. Hollywood Tunnel 34°07'25.09" 118°18'02.04"

WESTERN CANYON ROAD:
Rock Wall 34°07'24.75" 118°18'08.54"
Picnic Area 34°07'28.47" 118°18'22.76"

FERN DELL DRIVE/ FERN DELL:
Fern Dell   34°07'38.02" 118°18'26.60"
Berlin Bear Monument 34°06'30.01" 118°18'26.03"
Rollin Lane Plaque 34°06'30.00" 118°18'29.10"
Lief Erickson Monument 34°06'29.44" 118°18'29.59"
City HCM #112 Plaque/ Fern Dell Entrance 34°06'33.94" 118°18'27.40"
Soroptimist Picnic Area and Plaque 34°06'42.50" 118°18'25.40"
The Trails Café  34°06'50.26" 118°18'23.61"
Pow Wow Gathering Area 34°06'50.06" 118°18'28.29"
Ranger's Facilities 34°06'52.31" 118°18'29.20"
Ranger's House/ Fern Dell Nature Museum  34°06'46.12" 118°18'27.74"

CANYON ROAD:
Girls Camp 34°06'32.49" 118°18'51.96"
Girls Camp: 1950s Era Cabins 34°06'36.34" 118°18'55.14"

CANYON LAKE DRIVE:
Lake Hollywood Park 34°07'37.16" 118°19"33.05"
Hollywood Sign 34°08'02.57" 118°19"17.98"

WILDERNESS AREA RESOURCES 

NAMED MOUNTAINS AND PEAKS:
Beacon Hill 34°07'42.43" 118°16"38.44"
Glendale Peak 34°07'28.47" 118°17"16.00"
Mt. Hollywood 34°07'42.71" 118°18"04.19"
Mt. Lee 34°08'05.07" 118°19"14.22"
Mt. Chapel 34°08'11.30" 118°18"30.21"
Mt. Bell 34°08'10.95" 118°18"14.70"
Bee Rock 34°08'04.11" 118°17"35.78"

NAMED CANYONS:
Fern Canyon 34°08'04.11" 118°18"14.70"
Aberdeen Canyon 34°07'28.31" 118°17"21.46"
Vermont Canyon 34°07'18 51" 118°17"53 30"



Western Canyon 34°07'19.61" 118°18"27.40"
Brush Canyon 34°07'33.31" 118°18"43.62"
Spring Canyon 34°07'58.60" 118°17"43.88"
Royce's Canyon 34°08'57.44" 118°18"27.91"
Toyon Canyon 34°08'37.09" 118°18"08.38"
Oak Canyon 34°09'02.95" 118°17"59.54"

NATURAL AND LANDSCAPE FEATURES:
Cedar Grove 34°07'12.23" 118°16"57.94"
Berlin Forest 34°07'19.35" 118°18"01.56"
Bronson Caves   34°06'16.31" 118°18'50.54"
3‐Mile Tree 34°07'54.07" 118°18'03.54"
Captain's Roost 34°07'40.82" 118°18"08.48"
Dante's View 34°07'45.77" 118°17"54.14"
Bee Rock, Sandstone Face 34°08'04.30" 118°17"34.59"
Amir's Garden  34°08'32.95" 118°17"34.83"

SELECTED OBJECTS (Non 1930s Park Style) 
Former Site of Airfield Beacon 34°07'42.43" 118°16"38.44"
Early Water Tank Near Cedar Grove 34°07'16.53" 118°16"57.99"
Hogback Bridge 34°07'34.33" 118°17"19.26"
for list of 1930s era infrstructure objects in burn area, please 
see Appendix 6

NOTABLE VISTAS:
Vista View Point 34°07'24.82" 118°17"07.00"
Griffith Observatory 34°07'06.07" 118°18'01.33"
Mt. Hollywood 34°07'42.71" 118°18"04.19"
Dante's View 34°07'45.77" 118°17"54.14"
Lake Hollywood Park 34°07'37.15" 118°19"33.70"

CLOSED TO PUBLIC AUTO ROADS; END POINTS:
Vista Del Valle Drive, end point northwest 34°08'10.09" 118°18"20.56"
Vista Del Valle Drive, end point southeast 34°07'16.64" 118°17"17.03"
Commonwealth Avenue end point north 34°07'16.62" 118°17"17.00"

Commonwealth Avenue end point south 34°07'07.43" 118°17"10.25"
Mt. Hollywood Drive, end point north 34°08'58.00" 118°18"07.97"
Mt. Hollywood Drive, end point south 34°07'24.23" 118°17"59.12"
Mt. Lee Drive, end point northwest 34°08'04.44" 118°19"17.51"
Mt. Lee Drive, end point southeast 34°08'00.02" 118°18"57.69"



Appendix 5: 
Selected pages from:  
Good, Albert H. Park and Recreation Structures, Part 1: Administrative and basic Service 
Facilities. United States: Department of the Interior, National Park Service [Washington D.C.: U.S. 
Government Printing Office], 1938.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









































Appendix 6: 
Griffith Park Fire Survey Field Notes 
Conducted by Jones & Stokes. July, 2007.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Griffith Park Fire Survey 
Field Notes 
 

   

Date Feature # Description Side Location                 GPS 
Error

6/29/2007 1 1950s Rock Drainage. Joe Klass Water Stop on 
Valle del Vista 
 

 381821E 3776562N 16ft 

6/29/2007 2 Rock and poured concrete drainage channel 
 

Upper 
end, 
west  

381498E 3776478N 16ft 

6/29/2007 3 Rock and concrete drainage channel 
 

east  381378E 3776585N 23ft 

6/29/2007 4 Rock and concrete retaining wall 
 

west 381260E 3776725N 16ft 

6/29/2007 5 Metal ladder. It is associated with transmission 
towers and is possibly used for access for 
maintenance. It is painted yellow 
 

east  381090E 3777138N 13ft 

6/29/2007 6 Rock-lined channel with concrete. It is located at 
turn at #7 
 

east  380836E 3777157N 4m 

6/29/2007 7a Rock and concrete culvert. It is 2.5m south of 
Feature 7b.   
 

west 380629E 3777168N 5m 

6/29/2007 7b Paved concrete square-shaped structure with 3 
walls. The walls are approximately 3ft tall and 1 ft 
wide. The opening faces the road. It has a thick, 
circular metal disk/cap. It is off-center on the 
concrete floor. 
 

west 380629E 3777168N 5m 

6/29/2007 7c Concrete block culvert. It has machine-made 
concrete with small to medium sized inclusions. This 
is a large structure. 
 

west 380629E 3777168N 5m 

6/29/2007 8a Small, poured concrete culvert 
 

west 380506E 377722N 5m 

6/29/2007 8b Rock and poured concrete check dam. It is 
located above 8a. It has a long, low wall and the 
center is covered in dirt. 
 

west 380497E 3777215N 6m 

6/29/2007 8c Rock and poured concrete drainage connected 
to 8a and 8b.  It is located below a steep incline. 
 

east  unavailable n/a 

6/29/2007 9 Poured concrete block wall. The wall is low, long, 
and is a possible boundary at a picnic stop. It has 
paved concrete steps for an entryway at the south 
end and towards the north end - both are buried in 
dirt and rubble. 
 

west 380423E 3777353N 4m 

6/29/2007 10 Low cobble wall. It is approximately 11 ft high. 
 

west 380419E 3777468N 4m 



6/29/2007 10b Rock cobble and paved concrete drain. It is 
located above feature 10a.  There is an abandoned 
road fragment located across the main road and 
down slope from feature 10b. 
 

west 380393E 3777459N 4m 

6/29/2007 11 Concrete with metal drain pipe 
 

west 380480E 3777569N 6m 

6/29/2007 12 Poured concrete drain 
 

east  380663E 3777625N 3m 

6/29/2007 n/a The end of the fire area is just north of Bee Rock 
 

n/a 380652E 3777721N 4m 

7/3/2007 13 Metal water pipeline 
 

west 381594E 3776733N 23m 

7/3/2007 14 Poured concrete dam. It is located below the road 
surface and is buried in debris and mud. 
 

west 382331E 3776208N 6m 

7/3/2007 15 Rock coble and concrete drain. The walls are 
approximately 2 ft high and 1 ft thick. A lazy "s" 
shape with a triangular opening is located on the 
south end (see drawing in notes) 
 

not 
listed 

North end: 380415E 
3777751N, South 
end: 380433E 
3777733N 

5m 

7/3/2007 16 Metal ladder and metal water pipe. The ladder is 
painted yellow and is the same as feature 5. 
 

not 
listed 

380524E 3777677N 6m 

7/3/2007 17 Retaining wall buried in a hillside. It is made of 
rock cobble and concrete. 

 North end: 381128E 
3776893N, South 
end: 381136E 
3776872N 
 

9m-
7m 

7/3/2007 18 Cut concrete block and cement drain. The floor of 
the drain is cobble-lined. The walls are 
approximately 3ft high and 1ft thick. There is  metal 
pipe across the center. 
 

north 381751E 3776325N 4m 

7/3/2007 19 Retaining wall and culvert. It is made from 
concrete blocks with small to medium inclusions and 
rock cobbles, poured concrete, and it has a metal 
water pipe across the center.  The wall is 
approximately 2 ft high. 
 

south 381874E 3776194N 6m 

7/3/2007 20 Cement block and large rock cobble wall.  
It has a drain at ground surface in the center and 
a concrete and cobble sluice. The center of the 
wall has a concrete design feature. The wall has 
small and large rock cobbles and is painted 
white.  It is approximately 7ft high. 
 

north 381664E 376321N 7m 

7/3/2007 2?- Last concrete wall near road 
 

 381451E 3776336N 4m 

7/26/2007 21 Bottom of Fern Dell Drainage. It has a large 
concrete drain opening to a tunnel under the road.  
It contains cobble stones.  A large metal grate 
constructed over the drain has been modified 
several times. 
 

west 381725E 
3777211N 

15m 



7/26/2007 22 Cement Block Wall/ Check Dam. The feature is 
located above feature 21. 
 

not 
listed 

381673E 
3777165N 

10m 

7/26/2007 23 Check dam with a cement wall and concrete 
blocks. The blocks have small to medium 
inclusions. Its two eroded stone walls and "floor" are 
made of the same material. Feature 23 is located 
above feature 22. 
 

not 
listed 

381630E 
3777103N 

9m 

7/26/2007 24 A segment of concrete bridge footer with some 
green paint.  It is located above feature 23. 
 

not 
listed 

381610E 
3777088N 

9m 

7/26/2007 25 A cement check dam with concrete blocks and a 
cement "floor."  It is located above feature number 
24. 
 

not 
listed 

38158E 3777202N 10m 

7/26/2007 26 Concrete drainage. This feature has a squarish 
blocks, 2 walls, and a "floor".  The north end is 
made of a square of recycled sidewalk and the north 
end is made of rough, rectangular blocks of 
concrete with small to medium sized inclusions. It is 
located north of feature 21. 
 

not 
listed 

North End:    
381649E 
3777202N;         
South End: 
381689E 
3777197N 

North: 
10m 
South: 
17m 

7/26/2007 27 Long, winding concrete drainage with squarish 
blocks.  It is narrow and uphill. 
 

west 381595E 
3777259N 

10m 

7/26/2007 28 A series of check dams. See field sketch 
 

south   

7/26/2007 28a The northernmost check dam of feature 28. This 
dam is made of rough concrete and has a V-shaped 
opening.  It was patched with a material that looks 
like asphalt. 
 

south 381288E 
3776989N 

10m 

7/26/2007 28b Check Dam. This feature is similar to 28a.  It has 
two walls and 4 metal (possibly iron) pipes, 2 in the 
center of the wall and one on both sides of the wall. 
 

south 381297E 
3776988N 

9m 

7/26/2007 28c Check Dam. It has the same shape as 28a and 
28b.  It has four pipes in the wall.  The larger wall is 
made of poured concrete with small inclusions, 
granite blocks that appear to be pieces of buildings, 
sidewalks, and 2 rounded blocks (resemble 
headstones). Two side walls, made of recycles 
building material, follow down to 28d. The south end 
of the walls are made from machine-cut cement with 
cement between them. 
 

south 381319E 
3776980N 

14m  

7/26/2007 28d Concrete block culvert.  It is painted silver-gray 
and has a metal grate on the south side.  
 

south 381340E 
3773673N 

16m 

7/26/2007 28e Large poured concrete culvert with salvaged 
concrete and granite blocks.  It has a corrugated 
metal drain pipe at bottom center and two curving 
sidewalls. 
 

south 3813150E 
37769967N 

13 



7/26/2007 29 Series of four check dams.  They are located up a 
steep hill.  The culvert closest to the road is made 
from machine-cut concrete blocks. 
 

south 381353E 
3776922N 

12m 

7/26/2007  Drainage with rock wall  
 

north 381357E 
3776937N 

8m 

 



Appendix 7: 
The Ferns of Fern Dell, C. 1958 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



THE FERNS OF FERN DELL, CIRCA 1958

Latin names cited from: Drummond, W.C. "The Fern Dell, Los Angeles." 
American Fern Journal. Vol. 49, No. 1. (Jan. ‐ Mar., 1959), pp. 2‐9.

Taxonomy Common Name or Other Referent

Adiantum pedatum Maidenhair Fern

Alsophila australis     Australian Tree Fern 

Blechnum brasiliense no common name (Blechnum= "Hard Fern")

Blechnum gibbum Silver Lady Fern  

Blechnum occidentale Swamp Fern 

Cibotium chamissoi Hawaiian Tree Fern, hāpu‘u

Cibotium menziesii Hawaiian Tree Fern, hāpu`u `i`i

Cibotium schiedei Mexican Tree Fern

Ctenitis pentangularis  no common name

Cyrtomium Butterfieldii no common name

Cyrtomium falcatu Holly Fern
 
Cyrtomium falcatum (Mayi) 

Cyrtomium falcatum 'Rochfordianum' Japanese Holly Fern 

Dicksonia antarctica Soft Tree Fern

Dryopteris arguta  California Shield Fern,

Dryopteris atrata Wood Fern 

Dryopteris setigera no common name

Llavea cordifolia no common name

Microlepia platyphylla  Plate Fern

Microlepia strigosa Lace Fern 



Pellaea falcata  Australian Cliff Brake Fern

Pellaea viridis Green Cliffbrake Fern

Phyllitis scolopendrium  European Hart’s Tongue Fern

Polypodium aureum Rabbitt’s Foot Fern 

Polypodium californicum California Polypody

Polypodium glycyrrhiza Licorice Fern

Polystichum munitum Western Swordfern

Polystichum setosum  Japanese Lace Fern

Pteridium aquilinum   Western Brackenfern

Pteris tremula  Tender Brake 

Pteris vittata  Ladder Brake 

Pteris cretica   Cretan Brake

Pteris parkeri   No Common Name  

Pteris ouvrardii  Ouvrardii Cretan Brake

Rumohra adiantiformis  Leatherleaf Fern

Thelypteris dentata Downy Maiden Fern 

Tectaria cicutaria Button Fern

Thelypteris gongylodes (schkuhr) small  

Woowardia fimbriata   Pacific Chain Fern 

Woodwardia radicans European Chain Fern

 
 



Appendix 8: 
Griffith Park Plant List, October 2007. 
Conducted by Dan Cooper, Cooper Ecological & Rick Fisher, LA PW/BOE/ARCH 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





































Appendix 9: 
Wildlife Species Checklist for Griffith Park, January, 2008.  
Daniel S. Cooper, Cooper Ecological Monitoring, Inc.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







Appendix 10: 
A Preliminary Large Mammal and Herptile Survey of Griffith Park, Los Angeles, California, 
August 15, 2007. 
Paul Mathewson, Stephanie Spehar, and Daniel Cooper.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

































































Appendix 11: 
Annotated Checklist of Birds of Griffith Park 
April 2007 
Daniel S. Cooper, Cooper Ecological Monitoring, Inc.  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



























Appendix 12: 
Preliminary Insect (Butterfly) Survey at Griffith Park, Los Angeles, California.  
October 30, 2003 
Kathy Keane, Keane Biological Consulting 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



























Appendix 13: 
Griffith Park Historic Areas and Resources GIS Map, 24”x36” 
ICF Jones & Stokes, April 2008 

 



!

!(28

!(26

!(27

!(25

!(24

!(22

!(41
!(23

!(32

!(34
!(33 !(40

!(2

!(3

!(4

!(5 !(19

!(6

!(7!(18

!(17

!(14

!(16

!(36

!(35

!(15!(39

!(37

!(8

!(9
!(11

!(10
!(13

!(12

!(21

!(38

!(31

!(30

!(29

!(37

!(1

Fo
re

st
 L

aw
n 

Dr

·|}þ134

Cr yst al  Spr ings Dr

Gr if f it h Pa r k Dr

§̈¦5

Zoo Dr

Lo
s 

Fe
liz

 B
lv

d

Vist a Del  Val l e

Verm
ont Canyon Rd

Fe
rn

 D
el

l D
r

W
es

te
rn

 C
an

yo
n 

D
r

Ca
ny

on
 D

r

Mulholland Hwy

Mount  Hol l ywood Dr

Griffith Park Dr

Riverside Dr

C
rystal Springs D

r

Com
m

onw
ealth

Canyon Dr

North Zoo Dr

Mount Lee Dr !(20

!(14

X:
 \ 

G
IS

 \ 
PR

O
JE

C
TS

 \ 
G

R
IF

FI
TH

 \ 
00

00
0.

00
 \ 

PA
R

K
_B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y
_F

IG
U

R
E.

M
X

D
  N

B 
 (0

4-
19

-0
8)

City of Los Angeles Park Boundary (approx.)
1897 Park Survey Boundary (approx.)

Historically Senistive Resources and Areas
Non-Contributing or Altered Components
Wilderness Area

Griffith Reservation

SOURCE: ESRI Streetmap USA (2006), ESRI USA Imagery (05/15/2006,0.5m)
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Miles

Historically Sensitive Resources and Areas:

1- Former Costume Workshop and Surroundings/ 
    LA Shares Warehouse, 1961 
2- Ranger House, c.1938
3- Municipal Plunge and Associated Buildings, 1927
4- Pony Ride, 1947 & Train Ride, 1947, 1963
5-1920's era DWP Building (I)  
6-1920's era DWP Building (II)
7- Feliz Adobe, 1853, 1934 (City HCM No. 401)
8- Sycamore Grove
9- Riverside Drive Bridge, 1938
10- L.A. Live Steamers, 1956
11- Walt’s Barn, 1950
12- Travel Town Transportation Museum (Collection), 
      1952-1962
13- “Little Nugget” Railcar, 1937 (City HCM No.474)
14- Wilson & Harding Golf Courses, 1923, 1924
15- Wilson & Harding Golf Clubhouse, 1937
16- Old Zoo Buildings, 1914- c.1937
17- Wilson Harding Turf Maintenance Facility, 1927
18- Merry-Go-Round, 1926, installed 1937
19- Los Feliz Cafe and Signage, 1948, 1956
20- Central Service Yard Administration Building, 1958
21- Former Cricket House, c.1933
22- Vermont Tennis Courts, c.1927
23- Nursery and Horticultural Center, 1927
24- Greek Theatre, 1930
25- Bird Sanctuary, 1922-c.1937
26- Griffith Observatory, 1935 (City HCM No.168)
27- Mt. Hollywood Tunnel, c.1927
28- Fern Dell Nature Area, 1914 -c.1937/ 
      Gabrielino Indian Site (City HCM No.112)
29- Bronson Caves, c.1909-1920
30- Hollywood Sign, 1923, 
      reconstructed 1978 (City HCM No.111)
31- Hollywood Sign Viewshed
32- 1930's era Stoppage Dam
33- Cedar Grove
34- Early Water Tower, c.1927
35- Bee Rock
36- Bee Rock Trail, 1903

Non-Contributing or Altered Components:

37- Los Angeles Zoo and Autry National Center, 
      1966, 1987
38- Freeways and All Associated Ramps, 1957
39- Toyon Landfill/ Reclamation Project, 1958
40- Marty Tregnan Golf Academy, 2000
41- Roosevelt Municipal Golf Course, 1966

The Wilderness Area is a Historically 
Sensitive Resource
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